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BRBOUT THE WEST KOWLOON
CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY

@

FARAAXELEEER

The West Kowloon Cultural District (WKCD or the District) is a strategic
investment by the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (the HKSAR Government) to meet the long-term needs of Hong
Kong's arts and cultural sector, a vital part of any world-class city's
economic and social fabric.

The West Kowloon Cultural District Authority (WKCDA or the Authority) is a
statutory body established by the HKSAR Government in 2008 under the
West Kowloon Cultural District Authority Ordinance (the WKCDA Ordinance)
(Cap. 601) to develop WKCD. WKCDA is governed by the WKCDA Board
and led by an executive team comprising experienced administrators and
experts from different fields.

With an area of 40 hectares alongside Victoria Harbour, of which 23
hectares are reserved for public open space, WKCD is an asset for both
local residents and visitors. The Authority has been working hard to develop
the District into an integrated arts and cultural district where people can
embrace creativity and enjoy an innovative and leisure environment while
appreciating arts and culture.
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ABOUT THE WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY

FANRBEAXLKEERR
Our Vision
HMFES

Hong Kong has always been a trading and financial hub and a tourist
destination. It has been able to attract millions of visitors each year largely
due to its diverse shopping and dining offerings. International cities attract
talented people to live and work, inspire residents with a sense of pride
and belonging, and provide visitors with memories and reasons to return.
In recent years, Hong Kong's cultural scene has evolved into one of Asia’'s
most vibrant, notably in the areas of art trading and visual arts.

The development of Hong Kong into an international cultural metropolis
needs a focal point to catalyse and synergise the efforts of all the players
and stakeholders. In Hong Kong, WKCD stands ready to be this focal point.
As an integrated arts and cultural hub, the vision of the WKCD is to become
a vibrant cultural quarter for Hong Kong through providing a suite of world-
class museums and performing arts venues, presenting high-quality visual
and performing arts programmes from Hong Kong, Mainland and around
the world, and providing a platform for nurturing talents and building
audience.
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ABOUT THE WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY

Our Values
BMANES

Our people and partners are guided by the Authority’'s commitments to:
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ASPIRATION 18

We pursue excellence across all our venues
and operations to create a world-class cultural
experience for visitors, a valuable platform for

artists and a fulfilling work environment for
employees.
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KNOWLEDGE #0135

We offer authoritative insight into the works
and performances hosted at our venues,
enhancing enjoyment and appreciation of arts
and culture.
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ACCESSIBILITY &E

We make WKCD's events, venues and
resources as user-friendly and affordable as
possible for artists and audiences, including

seniors and people with disabilities.
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INCLUSION 5l

We regularly host exhibitions, performances
and events that appeal to audiences from
all walks of life and make West Kowloon an
enjoyable place to spend time.
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EDUCATION &

We provide educational resources for young
and old, students and professionals, and Hong
Kong people and international visitors alike.
REFRE - PEEFXAT FEMRE
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AUTHENTICITY EE

We believe in enabling genuine interactions
from places of shared interest with audiences,

customers and artists.
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(%)

INSPIRATION Bie

We strive to stimulate minds and encourage
participation across a wide spectrum of
society, driving discourse, sparking creation
and bringing people closer to the world of art.
BN EEZERS BT - SRt EEz
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CURIOSITY 7%

We constantly seek innovation, tools and
technology to enhance the art and our ability to
interpret the world around us.
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BENEFITS 2z

We give opportunities to those who aspire
to careers in the creative industries and
contribute economic and societal benefits to
the local community.
REEHBABEENAT RIEHSE
WA AMA B AR EFN I B R
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ABOUT THE WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY

FRAAXKEEERR

Our Mission for Visual Culture
EMRRE b fER

Situated in WKCD in Hong Kong, M+ is Asia’s first global museum of
contemporary visual culture. It exhibits and interprets visual art, design
and architecture, moving image, and Hong Kong visual culture of
the twentieth and twenty-first centuries, pursuing a bold ambition to
become one of the world's leading cultural institutions. M+ also reflects
our unique time and place, building on Hong Kong's historic balance of
the local and international to define a distinctive, innovative voice for
Asia’'s 21st century.

The Hong Kong Palace Museum (HKPM) offers a new and unique
perspective for interpreting and appreciating Chinese art and antiquities
from the Palace Museum, a UNESCO World Heritage Site holding more
than 1.8 million artefacts covering 5,000 years of historical Chinese
art from the imperial courts. HKPM provides an ideal platform for
showcasing the finest of traditional Chinese culture and fostering
dialogues between world civilisations.

Through M+ and HKPM, the Authority strives to inspire passion for visual
culture and Chinese arts across the local and international communities;
pursue cross-cultural, multi-disciplinary approaches that encourage
audiences to consider new perspectives; nurture talents by providing
platforms for expression and opportunities for collaboration; and
foster the organic growth of Hong Kong's artistic, creative and design
industries.
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ABOUT THE WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY

Our Mission for Performing Arts

BIINFREEM LD

The world-class performing venues in WKCD include the Xiqu Centre which
is dedicated to the promotion, preservation and transmission of Chinese
opera; Freespace, a venue for contemporary and experimental performing
arts; the Lyric Theatre Complex (LTC), a three-in-one complex for staging
dance, theatre, musical and western opera; as well as the 11-hectare Art
Park. Together they will provide nearly 50 individual spaces for staging
performances, exhibitions, workshops and outdoor events across the
District. The Performing Arts Division of WKCDA works to achieve its
mission through producing, presenting and promoting performing arts in an
Asian context for the twenty-first century.

Firstly, we produce by identifying talent, fostering collaborations, nurturing
artists, and supporting boundary-pushing experimentation and innovation.
We ensure artists have time and space to delve into the creative process
and generate work that surprises and inspires.

Secondly, we present performances, workshops and forums for audiences
of all ages and interest levels. We also provide stages for local, regional and

global art groups to perform for Hong Kong audiences, ensuring both new

and devoted audiences have access to these performances.

Thirdly, we promote performing arts to a wide range of audiences and
communities, ensuring all of Hong Kong's diverse residents and visitors
have opportunities to participate in arts and culture at West Kowloon. We
provide exposure on new stages locally, regionally and internationally for
Hong Kong's artists, offering expanded opportunities and resources for
Hong Kong's innovative dance, theatre, music and xiqu performers.
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BCHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEHRE
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spite the pandemic, we made exceptional progress
ards completing two major world-class museums
the reporting year. We are immensely proud that
e were able to open the doors of the first, M+, to

The past twelve months have perhaps been the most extraordinary in the
history of WKCD.

On the one hand, never before have we faced such challenges in delivering
our mission. The impact of the pandemic on how we could operate and
serve the people of Hong Kong was profound. Our venues had to close
periodically and often at short notice, and many events had to be cancelled,
just like similar arts and cultural institutions around the world.

On the other hand, never have our efforts borne such productive fruit as
in the past twelve months. Despite the pandemic, we made exceptional
progress towards completing two major world-class museums in the
reporting year. We are immensely proud that we were able to open the
doors of the first, M+, to the public in November 2021. We have also
completed all the core construction work for the Hong Kong Palace
Museum, on track for its scheduled opening in July.

Managing the challenges while forging ahead with our ambitious plans
required great dedication and resilience from our staff. | am grateful for
their efforts, often over and beyond the call of duty, to keep WKCD moving
ahead at a time of unprecedented global disruption.

008 WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY AL EEEF
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public in November 2021. With the opening of the
g Kong Palace Museum in July 2022, WKCD is set
ay an important role in the efforts towards shaping

Itural map for the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao
Greater Bay Area.
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In late 2021, we began welcoming visitors to Asia’s first global museum of
contemporary visual culture, M+. Anyone who has visited M+ will agree that
this museum represents a very significant addition to the global cultural
scene. It holds pre-eminent collections in the fields of visual art, design,
architecture and the moving image, with holdings focusing on Hong Kong
and Greater China but also a strong representation from further afield too.
The contributions and staunch support of our friends, donors and patrons
have been instrumental in building a museum of such scale, quality and
importance.

| am delighted that the value of M+ for the community has been reflected by
visitor numbers from the outset. From its opening in November 2021 to 4
January 2022, that was before the temporary closure due to the fifth wave
of epidemic, nearly 400,000 visitors passed through its doors, while some
20,000 people took part in its 280 opening programmes. The museum
made it to the list of the top 100 most popular art museums in the world in
2021 -in only one and a half months after its opening in the pandemic. This
represents a real vote of confidence by the Hong Kong public when the
border remained largely closed.

Our existing venues also played their parts in making the District an
increasingly popular destination for all. Despite the challenges of social
distancing and travel restrictions, our Performing Arts team were untiring
in their efforts to connect performers and audiences. They were active
in expanding our partnerships with local artists and art groups. At the
same time, Freespace and the Xiqu Centre continued to find ways of
collaborating with Mainland and overseas artists and arts groups despite
travel restrictions. Important here were the Performing Arts team's creative
efforts to develop digital programming initiatives to connect with home-
bound audiences when physical venues were closed.

Whenever possible, we also utilised the Art Park for a wide range of outdoor
activities in the second half of 2021, including a number of highlight events
such as the annual Freespace Jazz Fest, a “Go Hong Kong Team” Olympic
Fun Day, the “2021 Hong Kong WinterFest Christmas Town", and the “Hong
Kong New Year Countdown Concert". These events drew enthusiastic
audiences and further confirmed the Art Park as one of the best and most
popular outdoor destinations for the local community.

With the opening of the Hong Kong Palace Museum in July 2022, WKCD is
set to play an important role in the efforts towards shaping a cultural map
for the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area (GBA).

WKCD is particularly important within the GBA initiative because, like
nowhere else, it encapsulates Hong Kong's unique identity as an East-
meets-West metropolis and a hub for worldwide cultural interactions.
That position will be further enhanced when LTC is completed after 2024,
providing yet another world-class performance venue for dance and
theatre.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERERS

From an economic perspective, the Authority is continuing its efforts to
establish a sound footing for long-term financial sustainability. This involves
launching various commercial projects in phases over the next few years,
with the aim of creating a new "Cultural CBD" that will deliver significant
and recurrent income. To this end, we welcome members of the business
community to join us as potential development partners or tenants.

These commercial developments will bring new challenges and
responsibilities for the WKCDA. To prepare for these, the Authority
has recruited its first Deputy CEO (District Development) to strengthen
our ability to plan and develop effective marketing strategies for our
Hotel/Office/Residential (HOR) and Retail/Dining/Entertainment (RDE)
developments.

To conclude, | would like to extend special thanks to the Government for
the valuable support it has provided the Authority over the years. Within the
Authority, my thanks go to the members of the Board and its Subsidiaries
and the Consultation Panel, for their support, advice and overall guidance.
Throughout our organisation, from top to bottom, colleagues have worked
tirelessly throughout the year to achieve our goals, and | extend my
warmest gratitude to them all for their efforts.

Henry TANG Ying-yen, GBM, GBS, JP

[, KEFIEHNE, GBS, JP

Chairman of the Board of the West Kowloon Cultural District Authority
BAAXVEERFESRER

Hong Kong, 26 August 2022
&% » 202248A26H
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_HJEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S STATEMENT
THEAERES

€€

pite the challenging circumstances, WKCD has
pus potential to enhance people’s quality of life and
ong Kong's cultural profile. Once the pandemic is
sed and travel restrictions eased, WKCDA will step
s collaboration with partners and stakeholders to
strive towards our vision.

BEZRMIEHES IR - HRFIREEN
T REEERREEXNTERNEXESN - F&EH(
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Like many places around the world, Hong Kong has been affected by HALREM—E 0 BEME  BEFENZH2019BRBESH
successive waves of the COVID-19 pandemic over the past two years. The FEFE - BHRFELREBENEE - BAANEMR R
fifth wave COVID-19 hit the West Kowloon Cultural District hard, resulting EBFMEEA=EA - BEEESERNES TRERM C TBR

in the closure of our arts and cultural facilities for over three months. Pt ) A0 TR S ERRE - BANERE RO AR Z ErE
Closely associated with the pandemic are terms like “social distancing”, BERIZIM - BEAAMNLE - BIERREEHITER  UEAIENA
“self-isolation”, and "quarantine”, all implying disconnection between ARSI ER O B EE o

people. Nevertheless, WKCDA has responded swiftly to the new normal,
using creative means to connect with audiences even when they have not
physically been able to visit our venues.

Holding the firm belief that “the show must go on", we have worked closely FREREDAEE NER  REEEEN  RMAHENRET
with artists and art groups throughout the reporting year to deliver a rich EENXNZ2ERZAE  RUEEESHENHRREREMNFRE
and diverse programme of world-class exhibitions and performances. This #E  EREAALHBERIME - HE - BHUEESERER
has involved us bringing people together to create, produce, perform and NHEN - EREAMESME  BEEETRABRNREENE
celebrate all forms of art, and acting as a source of inspiration, nourishment, & B HENHERR -

comfort and strength during the prolonged pandemic.

The most significant milestone for the District in 2021 was the opening N EESKEERRE L EEM+REE 11 B12HHAE
of M+, Asia's first global museum of contemporary visual culture, on 12 HAFENE2021 FREEZNEEME - M+EH 17,0007 KR
November. With 17,000 square metres of gallery space in 33 galleries B REBEREN—FIEA3RERNER  22KEXR
and a cinema with three houses, M+ is one of the largest museums of HIRAREERBE X IEYEZ—  RIEEEHEBNRFFRA
modern and contemporary visual culture in the world, about the same size ENE - BYENHEIBEENEEEREE - E9iBia1,500
of London’s Tate Modern. The opening programme of this magnificent HEREMHERRTNIES « MHEME20125REY - HE
museum featured six thematic exhibitions, showcasing over 1,500 works B8 0004 &H « KHPZEMBEREMRAIMELER ©

chosen from the impressive M+ Collections. The M+ Collection built up

since 2012, and currently comprise over 8,000 outstanding works by Hong

Kong, Greater China and international artists.

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY FAAX L EEEF
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S STATEMENT
THRBEES

Under the stringent social distancing measures during the fifth wave of
pandemic, M+ had to close its doors from 6 January to 20 April 2022.
However, this did not stop the museum from engaging with the public
and sharing its rich programmes. In particular, the social media campaign
#MPlusFromHome was highly successful in bringing people back through
the museum'’s virtual doors, attracting over 82,000 views by the end
of March 2022. Museum-lovers returned to M+ as soon as the venue
reopened on 21 April 2022, and the museum has recorded over 1.22 million
visitations by the end of July 2022 since its opening.

With the pandemic effectively removing international artists from our
stages, the Authority has focused on creating opportunities for our
homegrown artists to showcase their talents to the city's audiences. In
October 2021, Freespace Jazz Fest brought together a host of top local
talent performing works in various musical styles, from jazz reinterpretations
of classical pieces to traditional big band, sounds, experimental music, and
world music fusion. The Jazz Fest attracted around 20,000 participants
over its four days of events.

In the face of intermittent venue closures, the Authority has been as flexible
and helpful as possible by adopting the “3R policy”: namely refund, rescope,
and reschedule, with the aim of minimising losses for our venue hirers.
During periods when the District's performing arts venues were closed,
WKCDA made good use of the downtime by arranging live-streaming and
pre-recorded performances at our venues for local artists.

Although the pandemic led to delays in the delivery of building materials
and other supplies, preparations for the opening of the Hong Kong Palace
Museum (HKPM) continued in full swing and Practical Completion was
achieved in December 2021. The project set an exemplary record by
being completed on time and under budget. HKPM colleagues worked
at full speed to complete the interior decoration, exhibition fabrication,
transportation and installation of over 900 exhibits from the Palace Museum
within a very short timeframe for public opening in early July 2022. HKPM
will significantly enhance the cultural richness and diversity of WKCD as a
centre for international cultural exchange, and strengthen its position as a
must-visit destination for local, regional and international visitors.

Meanwhile, construction of the Integrated Basement (IB), a vast
underground area covering 240,000 square metres that also includes the
Underground Road, continued in the reporting year. The IB will provide
an essential substructure base for the arts and cultural facilities that are
planned to be built above it. These include the splendid LTC, which will be a
centre of excellence showcasing the best of Hong Kong and international
dance and theatre, and a Music Centre that will provide a world-class
concert hall among other facilities. A broad range of RDE facilities and HOR
developments will also be built above the IB, which will generate income to
support the sustainable development of the District.

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY AL B EERF
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2021F12AERET © &i% - HENERE BRI TMIAFER
FRESERIES - HEHRE XU EYREIEFR202247 A H
SR BEERE—RESRENESESERBD2NME
ERERENTREYENENEE - RESMERBIE00M4
EREREHNMHRTE - EERERLAENNXLERETEE
MEELX  ZEEMEARM - BENIIBIMRELEIRHNE
8 XA AERBIRSUSTR A DRIL ©

ELIEEN - ARAHEREE TRENREFENEEET - B
B IE(G1#h240,000F KM A BB T1TEERS © AR EHIEENT
HEENBENXURBRHEENRESE - EhEERRD
BRRAENS - RRAMMERAES SR « BENEL - Mk
—EEFRAL - RERRFLEIMEMRE - ROUELE
TEEERERENTE R CHEREEEHAE
FERRER - ATNFRBN - HEATRERR



CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S STATEMENT

TTRAARRS
Alongside its work on the opening of new arts and cultural facilities, PR T HARNEN X EEN  EERBEENRAREERESE
WKCDA has continued to enhance the connectivity of the District. A major FER o 2021512 ABNENESREREP—EEEER
milestone was the opening in December 2021 of the Artist Square Bridge, T RESEEANABENEEL - REFENERERNTAE
providing a convenient, barrier-free pedestrian link from WKCD to Kowloon BEE o A T EET AEERGEEEREEEA T i
MTR Station. In addition, the Austin Road Pedestrian Linkage System now EREERL . ARRSFENEEE
provides a direct connection between Austin MTR Station and the Xiqu
Centre.
With the new HKPM and the Xiqu Centre each focusing on the preservation, FEEURE « #E - REERTEEARENNXYAERENE
promotion and transmission of traditional Chinese art and antiquities, and B EMEPOEEERN - URERTERERXHNM+IIE
the opening of M+ and Freespace earlier showcasing contemporary arts HEBERERIFE  AABEGFIAESEENXXKEIR
and culture, WKCD stands ready to leverage its rich cultural resources to XRHEBEERBRABRR(THAERIAE) THHRINHLERR
support the development of Hong Kong into an East-meets-West Centre TRARD

for International Cultural Exchange under the National 14th Five-Year Plan.

Located on the doorstep of the High Speed Rail Hong Kong West Kowloon BN SEEERNELMESRE Y WBUER
Station and the Airport Express Kowloon Station, WKCD can play a key role o EEXERE - SN R EMENREEES RS H

in promoting cultural tourism to visitors from the Greater Bay Area, Asia and EEEARE - SERCHBERERRER (RERE) BIHKRE
beyond. The Authority has already formed a strategic partnership with the EBHER  BENREHIENEENRINESR  BEBHEER
Hong Kong Tourism Board (HKTB) with the aim of promoting Hong Kong ERESCAL R B O o iREEFIN2021 EEFRAERNLIEEER

as an international cultural tourism destination, leveraging the exceptional BOEE) - BEENLHKENBEERAE  rEREARTLE
range and quality of arts experiences offered by the District. The HKTB BESIKRGEERSBEAMEREAR

brought some of its major international events to WKCD in 2021, including
Winterfest and the New Year Countdown, with the latter event and its
associated concert broadcast live to a global audience of over 2.4 billion
people.

2021/22 has been a remarkable year for WKCDA. Despite the challenging HEBBME @ 2021/22F BHERTINN—F  BMERMEE
circumstances, WKCD has enormous potential to enhance people's EEHE > RARGANBARATREZTERREBEXNE

quality of life and raise Hong Kong's cultural profile. Once the pandemic is KNEXEN - FRBERRINERRERERS® SR
stabilised and travel restrictions eased, WKCDA will step up its collaboration PHRAESTHNESSEBHENRNENNE  —B5H » B
with partners and stakeholders to strive towards our vision. FHFHFER ©

| would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to the WKCDA Board for its ENROBRAEEREERNESES  UKEEREENE
valuable guidance, and to my WKCDA colleagues for their dedication, FAERR - BAMFHLL > FBRASULEBEBERIFIREN
perseverance and hard work during the most difficult times faced by the REERSZ) ©

Authority.

Betty FUNG CHING Suk-yee, GBS

2R, GBS

Chief Executive Officer of the West Kowloon Cultural District
BAAXVEERBITBHER

Hong Kong, 26 August 2022
&4 0 202248A26H
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IR GLANCE
FEHE

In 2021/22, the District's museum and performing arts venues were closed for 72 and 84 days respectively due to the pandemic. Despite the
cancellation and repeated rescheduling of planned events, the WKCDA team made every effort to sustain the promotion of arts and culture via
different formats, such as organising virtual tours, online exhibitions, and a variety of virtual talks, programmes and performances for different
audiences. The team also resumed physical live shows whenever the pandemic situation allows. In addition, the Authority made solid progress
on the District's remaining hardware and supporting infrastructure projects despite external challenges. The quick facts below underscore the
Authority’'s commitment to creating a sustainable and vibrant arts and cultural quarter for Hong Kong people during the reporting year.

#£2021/22%F - RIFEBIRASHEBFE - AANEYERA T 72X - RREMNSHAIEIE T 84X o IR % RETH B EB EECEAINERLES -
EEFERDRBAURNDTIEEEN M - WRPREFRSE - B LRE - BERSEEE) - RENEHERTI TEMRISRE o SHEEHEIMIB
g AAXCERER THRGNLEERREEE LMANEEEER - EERBANATBIE—EFERTWENNENXLE - ITHEREE
TEERFNNSA -

M+

Visitations Attendees of public

AR opening programmes

(from Grand opening in November 2021 O FSEEEZSE AR O

to 4 Jan 2022%) -

(12021411 BH&EZE2022F154H%) @ )
Shia

383,000. 20,000.

Works in the M+ Collections (items) M+ Collections Archives (individual items)

M+ BRI IPRvEmR () M+ tESEiEm (FEBYY)

including the M+ Collection and the M+ Sigg Collection

8,000. | LB 47.000.

e——=
M+ website pageviews | Reach of M+ social media channels
M+AEELBIEE R MR A SIS RBRE A B &

5,560,000. = 10,000,000: "¢

* M+ was closed for the remainder of 2021/22 due to the fifth wave of the pandemic. It reopened its doors to the public on 21 April 2022.
M+EE EERBFTEEIS - 1£2021/22F EER T —ERIfE - £2022F4H21HER °

Hong Kong Palace Museum | &&= LIEYIEE

Successful completion of its building structure

BEETEERIEFISTRX @
December 2021 g‘g}
2021512H

(Construction of HKPM commenced in April 2018)
(BB E XL IEYER20185F4 B FARMETL)

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY AL B EER
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Hong Kong Palace Museum | &FENEXLIEYE (&)

Loan exhibits from the
Palace Museum

WEEbELREm ()

941

Performing Arts | R;EZEMT

AT A GLANCE
FEME

Visits and online participation at
Preview of HKPM at Fine Art Asia 2021

EHEWE VISR rHoEE S
20211 RIS EHBRME ESEAR Q

33,000-

=

Performing arts projects and
activities organised
SEMNREEMEE RS
0O 00O00O
@@@@g

940. 22070

including over 900 on-site and 40 online projects and activities
BERBIE005IRISM40548 1 BFEE)

i

Swire Symphony Under The Stars online streaming views

A B85 - B - i) HigtERE

(co-presented by WKCDA and the Hong Kong Philharmonic Orchestra)

(AEAXNEEERREBEZEESH)

31,000-

WKCD's Online Outreach | A48 RS

Page views of WKCD website
BAAXKERAERIERE

westKowloon
BEAXKE

—\3
17,494,900

Audience reached
BRAR

167,1 OOACI]P%%

including over 155,000 pax on-site and 12,100 pax online
B 15818 155,000 3587 12,1004648_ EERR

§ N\

Followers of WKCD's Social Media pages
BAAXKERELRERSE
REHEHtERHE

167,100-

Project Delivery | IEB#E

Man-hours of construction work undertaken
BETEZHIEFCIAIREEHE)

(from 2014 till the end of the reporting year)
(2014FEHREFETHERD)

43,946,200-

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY A XL B EERE
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BBVENT HIGHLIGHTS

BEEE

During the reporting year, WKCD reached a

number of key milestones in its development H
and made great progress towards becoming one h
of the most vibrant arts and cultural hubs in the

world. Key events are highlighted as follows: tu rn (ft) 0 u t fes tfval

NERSFENE! ZEEENEREME Ui -
EE;%@Mcpl—T@Tgaiyasafa@gmxftwg i o Eﬁ ) BHi7ED
I BSTREER - TENBREENT ¢ b -

18.03.2021-04.04.2021
Freespace EFHZR

turn(it)out festival
BE(EE) BN

| G T W Evesimsd™

S ean . wn

8= 3G E R T

A e B

I - S 22 45 (0 405 S BR AR
= il i 200174 10 TN

02.04.2021-29.04.2021 HE  EMnRElREEET
Art Park BT AR
1 Go to West Kowloon y
04.2021-06.2021
Hong Kong Palace Museum &&= X{LiEY)

KEABN _
Palace Museum Culture Lecture Series Part|
I EX B R SE—ERE

LEL

15.05.2021-19.06.2021
Xiqu Centre EiBHFRIT

Intergenerational Xiqu Journey

B E

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY BEA XK BEEERF
ANNUAL REPORT 2021/ 22 A4 K&



EVENT HIGHLIGHTS
BRiEE

26.06.2021-27.06.20:
Freespace Bz

Choreographer and Composer Lab 2021: Works-in-Development
Showcase

T . SEfif 2021, BEERRE

04.07.2021-19.07..
Freespace EIFHZSR

William Forsythe's Nowhere and Everywhere at
the Same Time No. 2 (Asian Premiere)

FURR - RIFE(RESGER (D)) GEMER)

09.07.2021-18.07.
Freespace EHHZ

Giant Steps 2.0 - Jazz Rhythms for Kids
R T2.0

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY A XL B EERE
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EVENT HIGHLIGHTS
BRiEE

14.07.2021-20.07.2021
Hong Kong Palace Museum & &

Hong Kong Book Fair 2021: The Hong Kong Palace
Museum “Art Beyond Walls"
HEER2021 : FENEXLIEYEEE, 2k

23.07.2021-25.07.2021

Art Park Z{fiAHE

"GO Hong Kong Team" Olympic Fun Day
& BRI SERSH

\

15.08.2021-21.08.2021

Multimedia theatre experience “

P

o
Freespace EEHZR ¢ '
A Thousand Plateaus 1 a
S RIS (TR "

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY BEA XK BEEERF
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EVENT HIGHLIGHTS
BEEY

] ] L] | a R ] L] A

Hast = . I'n . v howow s md Feaww

i EESPACEiFRI

waesH{owloon wesH{owloon
i LES-£1] LES 0] LES T ]

03.09.2021-12.09.2021
Freespace EFHZ/

Freespace x Edward Lam Dance Theatre: Hello, Baoyu

BH=ME x FEMZE(EE, R

09.2021
Freespace EJFHZ

Freespace Ensemble launched
BHHEE=HEEHRHEEHR

29.09.2021-08.10.
Freespace EIFHZS|

Hiroaki Umeda: Indivisible Substance

BHERR(ZEFRTS)

23.09.2021-0

Art Park {23

West Kowloon Neighbourhood - FriendsWithYou Giant Art Installation
KiB/NEFENEE — FriendsWithYou XEUEEEER

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY A XL B EERE
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EVENT HIGHLIGHTS
BREED

07.10.2021-13.11.2021
Xiqu Centre E{BHAR/Dy

Black Box Chinese Opera Festival 2021
VEISEREEET2021

01.10.2021-02. 10.2021
Freespace EHHFZR

08.2021
Art Park E2|

Cycling Piano launched to share free live music in the Art Park

EMAREHERE=RE 5 PRSERERE

Gu Jiani and Untitled Group: Transition
HERR+OEREGEE)

@

SREEE IO T 0 B

The Rise and Fall of Ritual Jades in Early China

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY BEA XK BEEERF
ANNUAL REPORT 2021 / 22 B4R &

10.2021-12.2021
Hong Kong Palace

EEREXLEYE

Palace Museum Culture Lecture
Series Part

S X BEERTSE &R




EVENT HIGHLIGHTS
BEEY

Preview of the Hong Kong Palace Museum at
Fine Art Asia 2021
BEREX LY ERRE "HEEE2021,

19.10.2021-2
Xiqu Centre F

Xiqu Centre Original Production: Experimental Cantonese
Opera Farewell My Concubine (New Adaptation)
BRI FRDEME © NEHS BRI ERIE) (FrdR)

28.10.2021
Freespace E

Freespace Jazz Fest

BHRTESE

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY FEA XK B EEF
ANNUAL REPORT 2021/ 22 A&EHRE



EVENT HIGHLIGHTS
BREED

12.11.2021
M+

M+, Asia’s first global museum of
contemporary visual culture in the West
Kowloon Cultural District, opens to public
DHEESREERREXLIEYE M+
FRFARSE

13.11.2021-21.11.2021
Freespace B FHZSR

CCDC in Residence 2021 - "Danzcation"
BHE  WhEAEREE2021 — "EERE

13.11.2021
Art Park EAE

Swire Symphony Under The Stars: Concert Live Screening
@ West Kowloon Art Park
AiTBE - 2% - REM RIS EHEBQANXKEENRAR

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY BEA XK BEEERF
ANNUAL REPORT 2021/ 22 A4 K&



17.12.2021-19.12.2021
Freespace & Art Park B FHZF

ON VIEW: Panoramic Suite
(#R - 52 - JhsEEAEH)

.‘_ West Kowloon Cultural Distrct BERICHEE ©
- 20

[ t Frembiame ] AR TEIRAE Moments in Time with e King of
Kewioan

< AR BERENT REIEBENANEE. SR DURES| | MFRE s
[ badiiccn i

BRI LA DTS [TURRE NS
g _ ' See more

EVENT HIGHLIGHTS
BRiEE

26.11.2021-28.11.2021
Freespace & Xiqu Cel

Hong Kong Dance Company and Helen Lai: Nine Songs
EEZEERZEECLE)

18.01.2022
M+

Social media campaign #MplusFromHome
T# B A FAEMplus) 11 3 15885 ED

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY A XL B EERE
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EVENT HIGHLIGHTS
BEEY

26.11.
ArtPa

2021 Hong Kong WinterFest
Christmas Town

2021 HEBEHLAKIEZEFU A

Hong Kong New Year Countdown Concert

EERTRENEES

31.12.2021-0
Xiqu Centre i

Winter Holiday Comedy: The Emperor
BEXE : FEER(HE)

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY A XK EEIEF
ANNUAL REPORT 2021/ 22 BAF#k&



EVENT HIGHLIGHTS
BEEE

27.01.2022-17.04.2022
M+

Touch for Luck

(ERITKE)

M+ received significant donation of works by Chinese-
French master Zao Wou-Ki
M+ R ESENAMERENERFR

Palace Museum Culture Lecture
Series Part

E AR R S SE = ERHh

22-27.11.2022
M+

Angela Su: Arise, Hong Kong in Venice, Collateral Event of the
59th International Art Exhibition - La Biennale di Venezia
TRt  BF - HEEREN B EREHREEFRINER

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY A XL B EERE
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THE YEAR
IN REVIEW

F & [B] BR

The Opening of M+:

A New Dawn for Visual Culture in Hong Kong

M+ Fi®% | EEHEXUNH—R

Hong Kong Palace Museum:
A Future Icon Readies Its Door

BENEXLEYE | RRMIFEERE

Advocating for Arts and Audiences

EEEN FREXR
Spreading the Word
SRR

Enhancing the Customer Experience

R HER

Our Sustainable Journey to
Creating Positive Impact
AR EN AT RHER R ZIR
Building the Future

BRI

Behind the Scenes

amEE

Financial Review

R %5 Ol RH
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THE YEAR IN REVIEW
oF EE[o] E

On 12 November 2021, WKCDA and the wider art world celebrated

the much-anticipated opening of M+, Asia’s first global museum of

contemporary visual culture. One of the largest institutions of its kind in the
world, M+ is dedicated to collecting, exhibiting and interpreting visual art,
design and architecture, moving image, and Hong Kong visual culture of the
twentieth and twenty-first centuries. The ground-breaking project builds
on Hong Kong's historic balance of the local and international to define a
distinctive and innovative voice for Asia, delivering stories from artists who
are participating in and influencing the global conversation.

Guests and members of the media were invited to a preview held on 11
November 2021, and a momentous ribbon-cutting ceremony officiated by
Mrs Carrie Lam Cheng Yuet-ngor, the then Chief Executive of the HKSAR.
The occasion was withessed by guests who attended the event in person as
well as those who joined via livestream.

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY AL B EERF
ANNUAL REPORT 2021/ 22 Bk &

2021118128 - EEENEEENAE—RERRIAIEME
HIM+FE ° FANERLRESERRE IR - M+8
RIS RANZNEEEYE - M+EHRIKE - BREEE
TR —HEREEN  REATREE RBEEULRES
\BEX  WNEETASEENELFEAER A2+t
LCEEMAIN — R — B F ISR - BfIABLESIRK
T RER LT —EAE B AR ENNENREE - ARt
MMERFNEE ©

M+7E2021F 11 B 11 HETERE » AEBRIITRER{EITE
REMBBBEREENIAER  ZUBEESRRIFISH
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THE YEAR IN REVIEW
oF E [o] E

The Opening of M+: A New Dawn for Visual Culture in Hong Kong

Designed by a global team of the world-renowned architecture firm
Herzog & de Meuron in partnership with TFP Farrells and Arup, the
65,000-square-metre M+ immediately became one of Hong Kong's most
iconic landmarks and cultural attractions. Visitors were invited to enjoy
three weekends of special programmes organised to celebrate the grand
opening. These included tours, creative workshops, sensory experiences,
live performances, screenings, digital engagements and a series of family
programmes designed to introduce community members to the museum
and celebrate its grand opening.

M+ H%E: BEEABXUNI—R

M+ K18 4B E 15 1E 65,000 F 77K - Ftt B AN & Z LA EH AR
Herzog & de MeuronB#[ETFP Farrellsf1 BRI 40:851 » BIENER A
EABEEHIEN XL RE - AEREESHE  MHEE=E
EREWM—RINFHETEB THESN  BFEEE - Al
TiEY - RERREE - HBREE - Kg - ALES UK
ZIEZRFDEE - FBUIITR AR EM+RIREH ©

} Visitors explore one of the opening displays at M+.

hESEM+ETR—ERERE -

A Many Families take partin M+'s opening events. A

M+FIREI B IR [ RSB KKK

Visitors enjoy a drop-in screening at the Grand Stair in M+,

BRIEM+ R A RERE RIS IRET B

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY A XL B EERE
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THE YEAR IN REVIEW
F RO

The Opening of M+: A New Dawn for Visual Culture in Hong Kong
M+ % EEREXLNT—E

Spectacular Opening Highlights

The museum'’s inaugural displays showcased M+'s pre-eminent collections
of visual culture from Hong Kong, Greater China, Asia and beyond. Around
1,500 works were featured across 33 galleries and other exhibition spaces.
Six thematic exhibitions surveyed the museum'’s far-reaching collection,
which spans visual art, design and architecture, moving image and Hong
Kong visual culture. These six exhibitions marked the first time a very large
portion of the M+ Collections was shown to the public. They also enabled
visitors to experience the M+ Collections, which the museum has been
building since 2012.

Visitors line up in a queue to be among the first to enter M+ on the opening day.

M+FIEE BRI REMERBRIHE

@

Hong Kong: Here and Beyond presents our city's celebrated art,
architecture, design and cinema from the 1960s to now and explores
what makes Hong Kong such a unique place.

M+ Sigg Collection: From Revolution to Globalisation presents four
decades of contemporary Chinese art from early 1970s to 2012, drawn
from the most coherent and comprehensive collection from this period
in the world. The exhibition traces this extraordinary journey, looks at
how international audiences have come to understand China today and
captures the bold generation of artists who defined the contemporary
Chinese experience.

Things, Spaces, Interactions showcases design and architecture from
Asia and beyond, telling the story of how our societies in this region
have been built and how design shapes identities and imagines our
future.

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY BEA XK BEEERF
ANNUAL REPORT 2021/ 22 A4 K&
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M+BIEEERR41,5004 KRB ES - KPEME - SRk
HRZ U SRR - HMATEISEREREMEEETRE - EF
HENEEERE  TOBEM+BRNSEENES  8FE
BEM - BT REE  RBEERUREEREX - ENER
BEMEFEMHBRANERNRIEQAREL © FHREEHR
EM+E201 2FFIR R ZERIEER ©

o TEE KT EMEBR1960FRESHEN - &2
£ REATERM R RREERHEFERAZE

o TM+EREE  RREMI LI BEH1970FKNE
2012FNTEERBMER - BREBRATRERK - &
BRESNKE - REDBRSREREERE - REH
WIETERERE RS B ERNRE T BITER - A
BETHEREFLRN—RBRAFENR -

o Tt - = - BE) RGN RS MEER SR ERE
o REBRAELEREE S NATREEHR - DUk
ARBNEFIEEE S 2 REABBARK




e Individuals, Networks, Expressions presents an expansive story of art
from the 1950s to now. At its core is an exploration of how artists have
created their own visions amid the rise of contemporary Asia on the
world stage.

e The Dream of the Museum lets visitors experience a global
constellation of art at the heart of M+'s unique Asian context.

* Antony Gormley: Asian Field is a single monumental work by the British
artist that presents a sea of clay figurines made by residents from
Guangdong.

Other highlights of the grand opening were single-artist presentations,
including Nalini Malani: Vision in Motion, Young-Hae Chang Heavy
Industries, and M+ Commissions by acclaimed calligraphy artist Tong
Yang-Tze and South Korean artist Haegue Yang. Danish artist Danh Vo and
Chinese French artist Chen Zhen also had major works on display. The
exhibition Conserving Neon Culture in the CSF Gallery introduced M+'s
role in preserving Hong Kong heritage, and the M+ Community Pilot Project
— L Community highlighted a socially driven initiative that empowers artists
and community partners through creative practice.

THE YEAR IN REVIEW
oF E [o] E

o TER - RE - REIRB—RR1950F RS RIRE
BiE  EFRFENREEADNRERESIBLE .
B - AITEEAE B CRRA ©

«  TEYEZE FRJGEMHBENBSEMNRE - KR
BRIESEAMT

o TRHEE-BRTE: Nt 2—HREEEER B
HEHERTRE - SRENERN RERREEL—FE
FIINEA ©

FRREEAUE-—ZNR/ERNET  BFETMERE - Bl
e : BRRE, - RIWBETEMNER  UREREEENRE
B - EERBNREZZENM+ELER - FEBNREAK
FETEENREENERFREMRL - BERERORE
ERMEESILEYE  NAEAMEREEBEEXYHIENEE
e MHTEEEHEIHE ABEENRREESY - &
NREFENRIEEE

 —

A Installation view showing CRUCIFIED
TVS-NOT A PRAYER IN HEAVEN
(TRADITIONAL CHINESE/ CANTONESE/
ENGLISH VERSION)(2021)
by YOUNG-HAE CHANG HEAVY INDUSTRIES.
RICBE TEMFR(EETETFRVER
H—REBRENRS (ERPX/ERE/
TXHRA) ) (2021) REIRS,

A Astreet-level window offers a view into the Conservation and Storage Facility Gallery, where the
exhibition Conserving Neon Culture exhibition is on display.

ERERENER @ R —REEREDLRENNBEEILES -

The M+ Facade, facing Victoria Harbour, also lit up in October 2021 and
displayed a daily countdown ahead of the museum’s opening. At 65 metres
tall by 110 metres wide, it is visible up to 1.5 kilometres away when viewed
from Hong Kong Island. This enormous light-powered canvas enlivens
the Hong Kong skyline as a key point of connection with its audience. A
dynamic mix of screening works were displayed on the M+ Facade after the
museum opening and offered moments of play, humour, poetry, intellectual
reflection and meditative contemplation to onlookers.

HEELZFEENIM+ERBINER2021F10A =L » WEEY
BRI EMREEE - M+BIE=65K » 110K {8152
BLUMUBSRABH AR - ElREANAZERREERE
HIRBRAR > RAM+BERETNESIER o EYEREE > M+8
EREHARERESTIRNEER  AETIZHITWEE - W
R - R MERENHENRZ -

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY EAX K EEEF
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THE YEAR IN REVIEW
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M+ welcomed visitors with free admission in its first year of operation, and received overwhelming response from the public.

M+HAREFRERBTAESESE » ARRERI

Overwhelming Support from the Public

M+ became one of the 100 most popular art museums in the world in
2021 just one month and a half after its launch. Since the public opening
on 12 November 2021 to 4 January 2022, M+ received more than 383,000
visitors, including over 20,000 who participated in 280 sessions of the
opening programmes. During this same period, M+ hosted more than 110
screenings at the Grand Stair — the museum'’s multi-purpose public space
connecting the building’s ground floor and second floor — drawing around
11,300 audience members. M+ also held 402 pop-up talks at various
venues, which attracted over 9,600 participants.

Due to the surge in COVID-19 cases, WKCDA temporarily closed M+ on
5 January 2022 through the end of the reporting year in accordance with
local health and safety regulations. Despite the closure, M+ continued to
carry out its mission of bringing contemporary visual culture to the public
through #MPIlusFromHome social media campaign. Highlights included a
virtual talk, “What is Visual Culture?”; a travelling moving image exhibition
and online streaming platform, "Watch and Chill: Streaming Art to Your
Homes"; and an interactive digital work commission by Studio Moniker,
“Touch for Luck”, which explored the mechanics of social platforms through
gameplay. M+ also offered other virtual public programmes, which have
enabled M+ to keep connecting with our global community via thoughtfully
curated and safely accessible digital content.

-

A M+Facade
M+E1E

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY AL B EER
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M+FBERE—E¥A - FEEEF2021 FL2KKZEUDHY 100
BIEMIEME 25 » H2021F11B12BERXFARFARE
20224F1 B 4B HAR - Bi#BiB383,000 AR EFHM+ » EREIBR
20,000 AR B T A4 2808 R EE) o B » M+TEEEG
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A The M+ Facade displayed Touch for Luck by interaction media and design
studio Moniker in early 2022.
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The Opening of M+: A New Dawn for Visual Culture in Hong Kong

Acquisitions and Cultural Outreach

Despite the busy opening year, M+ continued to add to its world-class
collection of contemporary visual culture works. A total of 30 new
acquisitions were made for M+ Collections, including 98 works, three
archives comprising 610 archival items and two Library Special Collection
acquisitions totalling four items. Among the highlights were Negotiated
Differences by Shirley Tse (2019-2020); Roaming Vision by Leung Kui
Ting (2011); Industrial Forest by ESKYIU: Eric Schuldenfrei & Marisa Yiu
(2011-2017); Under Heaven — 2232MT2151 by Xu Zhen (2014); and
Reunion by Chen Fei (2019). Museum staff is also dedicated to digitalising
its Collections onto the M+ Collection Online, where digital collections data
are made available. At the end of the reporting year, close to 70% of works
from the M+ Collections had been available on view on the M+ website.

To help expand the dialogue that the museum had been constructing with
audiences around the world, M+ partnered with international publisher
Thames & Hudson, combining M+'s unique mandate with the publisher's
70 years of illustrated book experience and global reach. The collaboration
delved into the history of M+ and the museum's collections, resulting in
the works The Making of M+, Hong Kong Visual Culture: The M+ Guide,
M+ Collections: Highlights, and Chinese Art Since 1970: The M+ Sigg
Collection.
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In partnership with Thames & Hudson the publisher, M+ published The Making of M+ and Hong Kong Visual Culture: The M+ Guide.
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Hong Kong Palace Museum: A Future Icon Readies Its Door

BEEMEXLIEYE: RIMIFEERE

During the reporting year, HKPM was in its final stage of preparation. The
scheduled opening of HKPM in July 2022 marked the culmination of five
years of preparations in bringing the collections of the Palace Museum to
the city's shores. A collaboration between the Palace Museum and WKCDA,
HKPM aspires to become one of the world's leading cultural institutions
committed to the study and appreciation of Chinese art and culture as
well as to foster dialogue between world civilisations. The opening of the
museum also marks a new chapter in the advancement of Chinese arts and
culture in Hong Kong and signifies an important milestone for Hong Kong
and WKCDA in developing Hong Kong into an East-meets-West Centre for
International Cultural Exchange as outlined in the National 14th Five-Year
Plan.
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Completion of the Museum Building

Located at the western tip of WKCD along the Victoria Harbour waterfront,
the HKPM is a seven-storey building that covers a site area of 13,000
square metres with a total floor area of approximately 30,000 square
metres. Designed by the acclaimed Hong Kong-based Rocco Design
Architects Associates, the museum is a contemporary interpretation of
traditional aesthetics, drawing inspiration from historical Chinese art and
architecture as well as the city’s urban environment. Three atria vertically
connect HKPM's floors in reference to the horizontal spatial configuration
of the Forbidden City’'s central axis, providing vistas of Museum Plaza,
Lantau Island and the Hong Kong Island skyline while enabling visitors
to appreciate the harmony between the HKPM building and its dynamic
surroundings. Other features include barrier-free facilities, nursery rooms,
ample rest areas both inside and outside the museum, and amenities
including an auditorium, learning spaces, a gift shop and dining areas.
Construction of the museum building was largely completed upon
attainment of the occupation permit on 29 September 2021.
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Hong Kong Palace Museum: A Future Icon Readies Its Door
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Preparation for the Opening

914 treasures from the Palace Museum were thoughtfully selected for
display in HKPM's opening exhibitions representing the largest loan to
another cultural institution outside the Mainland in the history of the Palace
Museum. Many loaned treasures are exhibited in Hong Kong for the first
time, covering diverse themes including architectural art, court life, and
craftsmanship; and featuring Palace Museum'’s collections of bronzes,
ceramics, paintings, and calligraphy. HKPM has also borrowed more than
100 loaned objects from local museums and cultural organisations as well as
13 objects from the Louvre, Paris.

Nine galleries were specifically designed for thematic and special
exhibitions, boasting a floor area of about 7,800 sgm of exhibition spaces
at HKPM. Five galleries host thematic exhibitions exploring the history and
culture of the Forbidden City through exceptional works from the Palace
Museum collection; two feature Hong Kong art collections and multimedia
projects; and two are devoted to special exhibitions organised by HKPM
or presented in partnership with other institutions. Several major private
collections have also committed donations to HKPM, establishing a culture
of collaboration that enables the museum to develop original exhibitions,
conduct academic research, and bolster Hong Kong's position as a global
centre for arts and culture.

FmEEE

FRERER N4 SEYRS OENRER - BR=EY
BB A DURR AR AL IEIME - AP R OERIYEE
REFERL - HHIECERE  SEAENERIZ 5
IMIEEE EYBAERER - BE - EFNEES - RS
ALY RE M A S Y A S B (R REIR 10014 21T,
UK BRET = ES 1302 Mm o

EERNEREERSREERBNGHIREME AR - BE
TEAETB00F K AP A ESEREREMEEYRES
LW ENERREFBNERXK ; AEWmERBERFRE
EERMNEMUGRT S FERRE - MERHRE S SEMH
FRWE X EY BRI RS E A M E ARG FRARR
RE - EREE A IEY) BTN F PIRESRIE R R BRI R 1B G R
W EEYE T MRAIR LR  EITENR - UEEEES
TER PRI ERTRADRIMAL ©

Interior fit-outs and display cases ready for the installation of artefacts in HKPM galleries.
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Since October 2021, all nine galleries and other operationally essential
venues have been handed over in phases by the contractor to the HKPM
and the District Facility Services teams. The HKPM office moved into the
museum in December 2021, and the Authority took over the entire museum
building from the contractor at the end of January 2022.

The HKPM project was delivered on time and within budget. During the
reporting period, interior fitting-out works and the installation of display
cases were completed at the end of April 2022 for installation of artefacts
scheduled in May 2022. Applications for Places of Public Entertainment
Licenses (PPELs) for all galleries, the auditorium and activity rooms were
also submitted to the authorities.

In accordance with its detailed work schedule, HKPM and the Palace
Museum signed the Opening Exhibition Agreement for all loaned objects
in May 2022. Given the shortage of materials, shipping capacity and
manpower as well as travel restrictions due to the pandemic, HKPM worked
closely with the Palace Museum and other parties — including experts from
the Louvre and shipping and packing professionals with expertise in the
handling of fragile artworks.

Deepening Public Engagement

In preparation for its opening, HKPM participated in large-scale cultural
events to increase its visibility and engage new audiences. The museum'’s
beautifully designed "HKPM Connects” booth at Fine Art Asia 2021 offered
a preview of its landmark architecture, innovative programmes and breath-
taking treasures. Dance and music performances and Chinese painting
conservation demonstrations were presented, attracting more than 3,000
visitors, with more than 30,000 people participating in the online talks.
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In an online dialogue, Mr Bernard Chan, then-Chairman of the HKPM Board and Dr Louis Ng,
Museum Director of HKPM discussed the groundwork and planning of the museum.
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A Mr Bernard Chan, then-Chairman of the HKPM Board
and Dr Louis Ng, Museum Director of HKPM visit the
“"HKPM Connects"” booth in Fine Art Asia 2021.
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At the Hong Kong Book Fair 2021, HKPM created a thematic creative
learning zone, "Art Beyond Walls", a virtual journey transcending space and
time that enabled visitors to explore the halls and corridors of the Forbidden
City, the architecture and exhibitions of the museum, and the uniqueness
of Chinese art and culture through onsite and online learning experiences.
The zone attracted around 1,300 participants.

The learning zone "Art Beyond Walls" hosted by HKPM at the Hong Kong Book Fair 2021
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In addition, HKPM presented three parts of its Palace Museum Culture
Lecture Series during the reporting year. The series is part of the museum'’s
pre-opening programmes, aiming at broadening its audience base
and fulfilling its mission and vision to advance the understanding and
appreciation of Chinese art and culture. Since its inception last year, the
series has attracted thousands of attendees in Hong Kong, the Mainland
and around the globe.
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Dr Daisy Wang, Deputy Director, Curatorial and Programming of HKPM; and Dr Jiao Tianlong, Head Curator of HKPM, introduce the museum'’s opening exhibitions

at the Hong Kong Book Fair 2021.
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Advocating for Arts and Audiences

In 2021/22, the fourth and fifth waves of COVID-19 posed challenges for
industries across Hong Kong. The arts and culture sector was no different,
as the District's museum and performing arts venues had to be closed
periodically to protect public health and safety. However, WKCDA continued
to engage and grow audiences by working closely with its partners and
adapting nimbly to prevailing conditions. For example, following multiple
cancellations and reschedulings, the Authority reinvented many of its
events and performances with online versions. In mid-2021, when the
pandemic eased slightly, the Authority returned to relatively normal
operations, organising numerous live arts and cultural events across West
Kowloon.

The Performing Arts Division (PA Division) strives to cultivate arts
audiences, promote lifelong arts learning, and encourage wider and
deeper engagement from diverse segments of the local and global
communities through an array of programmes and events. In-house and
hirer programmes returned to the stage in May 2021 until the fifth wave of
the pandemic in January 2022. For the launch of the 2021/22 Performing
Arts Season, PA Division continued to present exceptional mainstage
programmes and cultural activities. Two popular annual festivals, Freespace
Jazz Fest and Black Box Chinese Opera Festival, returned to West Kowloon
in the fall of 2021. The four-day Freespace Jazz Fest 2021 attracted close
to 20,000 attendees across 35 programmes.

FREESFPACE

JAZZ FEST
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Visitors enjoy indoor and outdoor music shows during the four-day “Freespace Jazz Fest 2021".
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A child creates his own mini Chinese Opera warrior in a workshop under Black
Box Chinese Opera Festival 2021.
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Xiqu Centre

The Xiqu Centre promotes the rich heritage of xiqu by commissioning new
works with wide appeal. Winter Holiday Comedy: The Emperor, an original
Cantonese opera production with a New Year's Eve audience countdown,
premiered at the end of 2021. Its first commissioned Experimental
Cantonese Opera Farewell My Concubine (New Adaptation), staged in
2016, was awarded one of “The 40 Most Influential Productions in Chinese
Contemporary Black Box Theatre” — the only Cantonese opera among
the 40 awarded productions. The award, organised by Beijing Theatre
Association and other leading authorities in the Mainland, was part of the
celebrations to mark the 40th anniversary of the Chinese Contemporary
Black Box Theatre. The Xiqu Centre also continued its long-running Tea
House Theatre Experience for newcomers to Cantonese opera.
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Winter Holiday Comedy: The Emperor
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Freespace

Freespace and the Hong Kong Dance Company co-presented a 30th-
anniversary production of Nine Songs, a Chinese literature inspired
contemporary dance epic created by local choreographer Helen Lai and
Oscar winners Tan Dun and Tim Yip. Other major dance programmes
included the Hong Kong premiere of Transition by Chinese choreographer
Gu Jiani and Untitled Group, and ON VIEW: Panoramic Suite, a large-scale
dance film installation presenting 27 dancers from Hong Kong, Japan and
Australia. Hello, Baoyu, a production jointly adapted from Dream of the Red
Chamber by Freespace and Edward Lam Dance Theatre, and tailored for
the pandemic era with both digital and live performances, premiered at
Freespace in September 2021.

A Nine Song, a work of contemporary dance theatre inspired by Chinese
literature
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} Audiences enjoy the live screening of Swire Symphony Under The Stars in
the Art Park.
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WKCDA continued to curate a diverse range of productions in collaboration
with local, Mainland and overseas arts groups. The digital turn(it)out festival,
co-presented by Freespace and the Hong Kong Ballet from March to April
2021, brought virtual on-demand dance programmes and fringe activities
to audiences. The "Danzcation”"- themed City Contemporary Dance
Festival 2021 was co-presented with City Contemporary Dance Company
in November 2021. There were also two collaborations with the Hong Kong
Philharmonic Orchestra (HK Phil) in 2021: the live screening debut of HK
Phil's popular Swire Symphony Under the Stars at the Art Park in November
2021; and the opening programme of WKCDA's Tea House Chamber Music
Series, performed by the principal string players of the HK Phil together
with the acclaimed pianist Colleen Lee.
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To explore new ways of delivering arts content to onsite and online
audiences, Freespace commissioned three teams of Hong Kong artists to
develop innovative creations. These collaborations resulted in three new
works that were presented to the public in 2021/22 as part of the Future of
Performance series.

Nurturing and Capacity-building

During the year under review, the Authority continued developing West
Kowloon into a world-class integrated arts and cultural hub by supporting
artists, nurturing young arts practitioners, cultivating audiences, and
engaging the community and youth.

At the Xiqu Centre, Tea House Rising Stars Troupe, the first venue-based
artistic troupe in Hong Kong, trained and performed through the Tea House
Theatre Experience under the artistic curatorship of renowned Cantonese
Opera actor Law Ka-ying.

The Xiqu Centre and the Centre for Chinese Music Studies at The Chinese
University of Hong Kong also co-organised a course on “The Heritage Art of
Nanyin". Designed to help preserve and transmit Nanyin — a traditional form
of Cantonese narrative singing — this course was led by Cantonese opera
and nanyin maestro Yuen Siu-fai and offered an in-depth exploration of
the history and art of nanyin and other closely related Cantonese narrative
singing forms. The Xiqu Centre also co-organised another course with the
Hong Kong Metropolitan University (formerly the Open University of Hong
Kong) to promote the development of the art of Cantonese opera. Students
learnt to appreciate Cantonese opera through interactive experience and
exchange with the artists and production crew.

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY AL B EERF
ANNUAL REPORT 2021/ 22 Bk &

@

BT RWSERR  RGNALEREERXENE  BARE
R E A BN RAR N =@ LR ARSI RER
=X o BEESEEAMEN =ZMSMIER - BETREBERR RIN—
B9 R2021/122FEE NI LE -

EEAT HREREH
REBEERN  ERRGEEASHRINS « HEFEERR
%8 BUBRTHUREDHEREVF2H - BEARER
At RIR AT UARA -

B O7THE - FEEEMUGARTMRIIAEIE R BN EE
E, - HAESGEEAREEMRENEE - ENEREEREE
BEETE - % - R EEEIIAELEE -

{ Talented young artists from Tea House Theatre Experience
perform The White Dragon Pass.
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Freespace Ensemble, PA Division's latest boundary-expanding initiative,
offered musicians regular opportunities to collaborate across genres,
experiment with new compositions and arrangements, and showcase their
new music in and around Freespace.

Freespace's Choreographer and Composer Lab has brought choreographers
and composers together to experiment with new collaborations since
2016. Twenty-four artists participated in the programme this year. In 2021,
the Authority launched TechBox, a four-year collaborative platform with
the School of Theatre and Entertainment Arts of The Hong Kong Academy
for Performing Arts that assembles media artists, theatre designers,
faculty members and students to rethink new frontiers of technology
and performance and devise experimental creations in a technological
context. The District also supports emerging creatives, arts practitioners
and academics through its Arts Impact Fellowship, which since 2019
has supported five fellows in developing proposals that demonstrate the
potential for social impact and positive change in Hong Kong's performing
arts ecology.
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A. Young local artists conduct creative experiments with
technology and art in TechBox —art TALKS tech.
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A Arts Impact Fellowship supports research initiatives that inspire change, community
engagement and audience building.
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Advocating for Arts and Audiences
EEEN HBEX

M+ also contributes to capacity-building through a variety of programmes. M+EBREEI AR REREHEL SR o 571, 1R20185F
The Sigg Prize was established in 2018 to promote exciting, diverse work on B EERERBN B RAEEE « GHNERMER TS
an international scale. The Council for New Art is supported by professional MEEF I BARNTEMEETELTSNEA » UR—LEFRE
art patrons and active participants in the contemporary arts across Greater EEREMRANALTHZEF c 5—75MH » "M+/Design Trusthff
China. Meanwhile, the M+/Design Trust Research Fellowship Programme REBFE EEXRESIRIE TIRATEES - IWI=AMNit
aims to contribute to design and architecture knowledge in Hong Kong, & BRI AR ET R IBRB BN Et &l o FHEIB RIS RIE M
the Pearl River Delta and Asia, all within a global context. The fellowship EMREE . HP—HEBUEBRAERNHRER  MB—
currently has two separate fellowship projects, one focusing on Hong Kong JERIEBh BRI RIEE © i BERESFET
and the other supporting a research project related to Asia as a whole. In 4R MPEEBRTIFEI—HE20022EEE - ZBM+EE
addition, the M+ Volunteer Programme recruited over 200 guides at the end BETFEMM+EEHE  MHERBS D FEEMARA
of the reporting year. M+ will continue to engage and cultivate young people T+ AtfHRHEZAREYES TSI

and the public in museum learning through the M+ Internship Programme
and the M+ Volunteer programme.

{ Visitors listen to a sharing by an M+ volunteer in the gallery.

IEERBEERIEM+HZTHIHR -

™ =18

esizszz | VOLUNTEERY -
PROGRAMME

} The HKPM Volunteer Programme kickstarted in December 2021.
rEENE XL IEYER T EI1R2021412ARED.

At HKPM, the HKPM Volunteer Programme kickstarted in December 2021 BEENEXHIEYEAR  TEEREXHIEERTIHELR
with some 2,000 applications received. The programme is designed to 202112 A& - BE IR HIEIA2,0001HE © 5tEIEE
engage participants as crucial stakeholders of the museum and to learn BESHETRABYENEE—57F  HERESE B2
together with like-minded people, in areas including Chinese arts and BEHREENXL - FlREREERE UK EYELESER
culture, special or standing exhibitions, and museum operations. HKPM will A - B8R E XU IEYERRERER T RHIEIIRE -
provide training sessions featuring leading experts with the aim of having HEUERINESEEEBYERESRENTEATEENAR
volunteer and docent support for the museum's operations and public TEE ©

engagement activities upon the museum'’s opening.
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Exchange and Networking

Despite travel restrictions, WKCDA continued to collaborate with the
Mainland and overseas artists in 2021/22. In July 2021, the interactive
art installation Nowhere and Everyone at the Same Time No. 2, created
by the renowned American dancer and choreographer William Forsythe,
landed at Freespace for its Asian Premiere. Forsythe is acclaimed for
bridging classical ballet and twenty-first century art forms in projects
spanning installations, film and web-based knowledge creation.
WKCDA also presented the online performance indivisible substance in
September 2021, as a follow-up experimental collaboration with Japanese
choreographer and multi-disciplinary artist Hiroaki Umeda since 2020. In
October 2021, Gu Jiani — one of China's greatest contemporary dance
innovators — and Untitled Group travelled to Hong Kong despite quarantine
requirements to present their works Transition. The German theatre group
Rimini Protokoll also presented 7100% Hong Kong, the group’s unique
collaboration with Freespace and Hong Kong's On & On Theatre Workshop.
For Freespace Jazz Fest 2021, the Authority brought together musicians
from Hong Kong and Germany for a session of live and online multi-sensory
improvisation in the programme Imaginarium — HK/Cologne.

THE YEAR IN REVIEW
FEEIRE

BILERER

BERERGEREE - EEFI2021/224F B HEE B P
BHBEMRENE - 2021578 HXHELEBRRHEZR
BB - RIERMEMNESEMEE(BESGER (Z) ) EEEHAT
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W+ —HLENTR - BRTSREER - RERETEER
AIE - 2020F R B ARBER R S ERENKISHRBEE
RRFE L EREENAIE - HENEZF - BEAR202159
BEAL BET(ERAS) © 20215108 » FEREENER
SEANE 2 —HERETOER - EETREERTRE
ZRMEPIRERCEIE) © tb5h - R EEPSRPACSREIE R
BHE=EREBIEERE TIFHEFER(100%EE) - T8
HEBTE%E12021,77H - EEEBHEREEEREHENES
A ETRHE—FE RE SR PETRSNELSER
BENENE -

A, indivisible substance by Japanese choreographer and multi-disciplinary A. 100% Hong Kong was presented collaboratively by Rimini Protokoll in
artist Hiroaki Umeda. Berlin. Freespace and On & On Theatre Workshop in Hong Kong.
AR RERN S ERENRIEARBANER(ER D) (100%&E#)HEHEE TN - EBEETEEISRPAHE B AHEERS
THEEE -

To foster partnership with the museum community and maximise the
exposure of M+ amidst travel restrictions, M+ has organised 12 promotional
virtual tours for museums and institutions from Hong Kong, the Mainland
and overseas for their conservation and curatorial teams, artists and
makers, trustees and patron circles in 2021/22. These institutions included
the UCCA Center for Contemporary Art in Beijing, Guangdong Times
Museum in Guangzhou, Kusama Studio and Ota Fine Arts in Tokyo, Art
Gallery of New South Wales in Sydney, Guggenheim Museum and New
Museum in New York, and Tate Modern in London.

HKPM also built partnerships in the areas of exhibitions, scholarly research,
conservation and professional development with some 70 museums and
other organisations in Hong Kong, the Mainland and overseas. As part of
the HKPM Fellowship Programme, the Palace Museum has agreed to send
conservators and other experts to support HKPM in 2022 and beyond.
Many major international museums, such as the Louvre in Paris, National
Gallery in London and Uffizi Gallery in Florence, have demonstrated their
interest in partnering with HKPM to present travelling exhibitions featuring
the art of China and other parts of the world.

BT EIRER G 2 T B B BRI B R E R R N RS
HE  M+TE2021/22FER/ARE « HFIEIMEEE K ST b i
BENTIBERFEE  TEHRATANBREERKER
B - BERRMAMEA - EEMEASE - BEUIEESIEIL
RIUCCAL M EREM D « BINMERRENEE - X
FHEBRETEERARFRIEE « BENFREERBIEM
B~ AN IR EYENNERENEYE  UREEN
TAFIRASEMIEE -

tesh » FEREXCEYETERESE - AEMNMIT0ME
MEREMEEERE - SWMR - BENEREREREE
MBHERE o FREBREMASEFAN—RY K=Y
RERSH2022FEREBRABNEMERDEBRENL
BYERHTIE - BROEISBYE - MEHEREMNEN
BEMITNGFEENES BT EEREYENERTEH
BEEBNEUEYESF - SRR TR SRR
REBKERE -
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Advocating for Arts and Audiences
EEEN EBREX

Internships and Work Immersion

WKCDA prides itself on developing talents and nurturing the future growth
of arts and culture in Hong Kong. Students can gain meaningful on-the-
job experience and take advantage of opportunities to work alongside
industry professionals through several internship programmes covering a
variety of fields. In 2021, WKCDA recruited 66 interns across five internship
programmes: M+, HKPM, Performing Arts, and Marketing and Customer
Experience for graduate interns, and the Summer Internship Programme for
undergraduates. Over the past five years, 41 interns have been recruited as
full-time employees after completing their programmes. The Authority also
hosted a Virtual Career Event comprising eight live and online career talks,
each designed to provide insights into working at WKCDA. These sessions
attracted more than 1,800 views.

wesH{owloon

BaxEd

ANLEEEYAS kﬁU:IF” ::_,
13

WKCDA Virtuwal Career Event

2% Jily - | Auguse 2021 (THUR - SUN)

A WKCDA Management outlined future plans for WKCD and shared some tips for
the job applicants at a virtual career event.

ANEEEER L BEE LA FAARRIE R BIFINBBES o

N WKCDA interns acquire meaningful on-the-job experience through a programme
of activities.

ANEEL SRR RETFCRES -

} M+ interns gain hands-on knowledge about conservation.

M+EEESBERBEENRH -

Sustaining Promotion of the Arts

In the face of financial challenges, as a self-financing statutory body, the
Authority has put more emphasis on revenue generation. Fundraising is a
core component of our revenue generation strategy.

In addition to the resources provided by the Authority, our two museums -
M+ and HKPM, as well as the Performing Arts Division, have been striving
to identify other income sources to shoulder the substantial operating
expenditures. In 2021/22, we are pleased to have received a total of $45.5
million donations, corporate sponsorship and membership fees from our
donors, sponsors and supporters, with the following highlight —

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY AL B EER
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* Inits opening year, M+ received generous support from corporates
and institutions, as well as from more than 700 individuals through
customised contributions, from major giving to acquisition platforms
and annual giving. Individual giving includes M+ Director’s Circle, M+
Founding Benefactors, M+ Councils, M+ Founding Patrons, Patrons
and Young Patrons, M+ Founding Donors, and M+ American Friends
Foundation. Moreover, more than 6,000 members have joined the M+
family of supporters when the museum offers free admission in the first
year of opening.

* With the introduction of the Performing Arts Donation Funds,
comprising the Youth Empowerment Fund, Accessibility Fund,
Creativity Fund and Artists Development Fund, the Performing Arts
Division has been able to support our artists and their creations and to
make their work accessible to our community and beyond.

*  During 2021/22, HKPM was coming close to its opening and it has
sought to reach new donors and to cultivate existing supporters. The
museum is grateful to have received generous contribution from its
Founding Partners, Founding Sponsors and Founding Patrons. Their
support has helped lay the groundwork for the museum's opening in
mid-2022 and realise its core mission to share Chinese art and culture
with the world.
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Advocating for Arts and Audiences
EEEN EBREX
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A M+welcomes the public to become an M+ Member. A. M+ Donor Wall displays our supporters’ names, symbolising their support to
M+ERDARINAM+ G555 © the museum's continued success.
M+ TREHEHE R —EEXFENEFREF-—REIEL  FHES

SRS EMHSER N BRNES -

As a result of the pandemic, the economic environment and sentiment
in the community may not be favourable to our fundraising effort. The
Authority will however continue to reach out to the community and promote
our cause of fundraising — contributions from our donors, sponsors and
supporters play a vital role in enabling WKCD to make art and culture
accessible to all.

HREERE - RERETR  dERFATHBRMNERTIE
BRTE  ERMAGEEET SR FEE  BREBHERT
1 BHERFHD  EENESZFEALERIREETX
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Spreading the Word
SR

In a post-pandemic world, digital marketing has become increasingly
important to WKCDA's efforts to promote its arts and cultural offerings to
the world and keep the community abreast of the latest news. In 2021/22,
the Authority continued to launch innovative online and social media
initiatives alongside eye-catching, traditional campaigns to engage with
local and international audiences, drive visitation and build loyalty.

Sustaining Promotion of the Arts and Maintaining Visibility
During the Pandemic

The District's biggest event of the year was the grand opening of M+. To
ensure a successful launch and encourage local visitation despite travel
restrictions and social distancing measures, WKCDA rolled out a large-
scale ad campaign in Hong Kong featuring print, billboard, tram shelter and
MTR station placements. The campaign was supported by extensive online
marketing and advertising campaigns that enabled overseas audiences
to experience the opening event virtually as well. In addition, the Authority
publicised the availability of M+ merchandise to the Mainland and Greater
Bay Area audiences through its various social media channels.

EIERER  BISEHMEENACERIMEERRT X LEE)
MAARERRINESMANBRER © 7£2021/22F K » [/ME
RIRFBRTISHEEEES - EEBRETER LT REREDR
TIBHEERTE] - BRI - IRSIAHAEERERR - LUBMEE
BEMRFIREREREHRE

FHEEEENNER R RRARSNAE

M+ERRSFRNNERE - AR5 EFSENBEARIEL
FTRRGIFIM IR IE T RIEh T L - EEREABREMT -
FANESE - BEGMBHLS  HEARRNESSEH
B TEHNBEBERMNELTSRERES  SEEIEBE)
WEUR - tEEE L RENERM REEEERZ it - &
ERTEANENERER  [AENIOEREREEM R
HEBELER -
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M+'s advertisements at MTR stations and tram stop.
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Spreading the Word
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One of the most critical components of WKCDA's marketing efforts for EEFRSFEHZ—ERHHETE  BRAMHELETNRELR &
the museum was the launch of the new M+ brand. Inspired by the city's R RNAMEERRETBSERMEENNEHmRE  &a
unique and colourful urban landscape, the brand featured prominently in BEMNTISHEREEE - M+EIHERSRTY K5I RTEE © 2021
advertising and marketing materials during the lead-up to the opening. In F10A - M+ER LM+ B H B EEE R (FRM+E5H
October 2021, a promotional drone video, Fly through M+, was screened 2B ERZBEEESNEINES I HEEARKE - BEm
both online and on the M+ Facade, attracting millions of views both locally REHHEERENESANNEREE  SEREFEERE

and internationally over a three-week period. As a result of these and other M+E$%15i8i8460,000 N RFBLIZE - M+IE B RIS HEAE
campaigns, more than 460,000 people have made reservation to visit M+, E581,0008 AKX » MEFETHE - M+E R RIEEREHET
and M+'s social media channels have reached more than 10 million people FASE » IR "#ETRE FEMPIus) 58] - BEFEBHR
by the end of the reporting year. Later in the year, when the museum had Taff LR FamEM+RIE « EaEE o

to be closed due to social distancing measures, the Authority unveiled the
#MPlusFromHome campaign, which enabled audiences to appreciate M+
and its collections and programmes via social and video platforms.

@u- Wt Kowioon Cultursl Diseice & ".\
P -

BERENLERTF I
Whingsl i e b (gl T Pooregry b [saThesiry. L dal 0 svflors Dbl (o oy e
iredtve] Wt BRI 3 et ] eageatye ST gk g BCTvites migied by SRt e
workithaps bom prevous W= Summar Cmp programeme ot Coastia Recesy B youl The
TRCipey BrCTage YO 1o Dl Bungy sroond you and get s by thee

J Crmibrew activiam fon s iley ol Borrm Lirus Mew Sas
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A. M+ drone video Fly through M+ offers the first reveal of the museum’s spectacular
infrastructure.

M+RAAR A (ERIRM+ RSN Z ) RN FRIEYI R R R AIPIETIREE -

N #MPlusFromHome social media campaign: Creative Recipe
T# R FEMPlus  HE RIS ES—RIZR T

} Visitors checks out M+ themed merchandise displayed at M+ The Other Shop.
SREM+ NERI B EYE—RIES
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Spreading the Word
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WKCDA's PA Division dived even deeper into digital media to boost
interactions with audiences, offer virtual alternatives for experiencing live
performances during the pandemic, and drive engagement and ticket sales
in support of the District's first-ever performing arts season. Themed “Back
to Live" to celebrate the reopening of venues, the season launched in June
2021 with an early-bird online booking scheme that resulted in more than
4,000 tickets sold. Meanwhile, the digital marketing campaign “Reimagine
Xiqu Centre and Freespace” used augmented reality and interactive
components to create a series of animated, site-specific Instagram filters
and stickers.

Supported by innovative marketing initiatives like these, WKCD's
performing arts programmes enjoyed high audience participation and
ticket sales. More than 4,000 visitors attended the installation and dance
video of William Forsythe's Nowhere and Everywhere at the Same Time No.
2; the Freespace Jazz Fest 2021 achieved 99% ticket sales; 700% Hong
Kong averaged 90% ticket sales, with a full house for its last performance;
the Black Box Chinese Opera Festival 2021 hosted two award-winning
productions, Wenguang Explores the Valley and Farewell My Concubine
(New Adaptation), achieving a full house 10 times; Winter Holiday Comedy:
The Emperor was well received by audiences; and the digital programming
initiative “Culture Clicks", which enables viewers to explore a variety of
curated performing arts content at home, expanded to a wider audience.

FRHHEEE  SERRERNETERTINAES @ BHR
EEIGEHETLGEERA L MMEEREYL - AATEEEER
BENE  BBARSHEBAANIBHNEEMNE - RIEEWN
F=E2021F6 AR UUER - BRI AEE  UESIGHHE
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MHFRIEIER Instagrami BRI B4R o
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Nowhere and Everywhere at the Same Time No.2 by William Forsythe
B - RIFE(RRESGBRE (Z))
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At HKPM, work continued on this future landmark's brand marketing
campaign ahead of the museum's grand opening in July 2022, as well
as on long-term integrated marketing, social and ticketing strategies to
build anticipation and drive online and in-person visitorship. The team
also continued to collaborate with Government departments and public
transport companies to ensure clear signage and easy navigation for
visitors.

Intermittent tightening of social distancing measures led WKCDA to engage
audiences at home with quality arts content and news delivered via online
platforms. For example, the “"Art Park Summer Advertorial Campaign”
encouraged visitors to enjoy the green space and fresh air of Art Park,
reaching more than 850,000 people online and garnering 200,000 video
views.

The West Kowloon Cultural District website and social media platforms
enable the Authority to spread the word about events and happenings
in the District and reach an ever-wider audience of fans, followers and
subscribers. August 2021 saw the revamp of the www.westkowloon.hk
website, which features a mobile-friendly design, clean and simple
ticket purchase interface, feature articles and suggested itineraries, and
information on venues and registration. The website's video capabilities
have also been enhanced for increased visual impact. In 2021/22, it
received approximately 17 million page views, representing an increase
of around 220% compared to the same period last year. WKCDA's social
media accounts also continued to flourish: The District's various Facebook
pages had more than 143,000 followers compared to 127,000 the year
before, and its Instagram accounts had over 73,000 followers compared to
40,000 last year.
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Engaging the Community

With WKCD now moving confidently into the operational phase, it is more
important than ever to promote its multitude of offerings and encourage
participation from the wider community. Crossover Lab Initiative was
launched in 2016 to showcase the distinctive arts and culture of local
districts and foster organic interactions between artists and audiences.
During the year under review, the Authority continued to evolve this project
in collaboration with NGO partners. One example was a new partnership
with The Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups, although this had to be
rescheduled to the summer of 2022 due to the outbreak of the fifth wave of
COVID-19.

Despite the challenges of the pandemic, WKCDA continued to prioritise
engagement with youth and local communities through initiatives such as
the online programme |/ Go to West Kowloon , which was organised
in April 2021 to introduce the District and offer creative workshops that
people could enjoy from the safety and comfort of home. This programme
ensured inclusion and accessibility with bilingual captions and Hong
Kong Sign Language interpretation, attracting more than 3,600 direct
participants and over 170,000 indirect engagements with support from 10
organisations. Another highlight was the Taste of West Kowloon School-
based Programme, an initiative organised for nine primary schools in
the neighbouring Yau Tsim Mong District. The Authority provided online
programmes and resources to participating schools to support special
teaching arrangements during the suspension of physical classes. The
Authority also launched the Be Our Guests Community Programme to
introduce the District to members of the community through a wide range
of tailored engagement experiences. Twelve activities have been organised
since August 2021.

A. Young students take part in Taste of West Kowloon School-based
Programme.
FRE4EDHEBRBMER—TE BRG] -
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A Participants experience a tea ceremony in the community programme “Be
Our Guests".
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Building Trust with Transparency

WKCDA regularly engaged with media throughout the year to introduce
M+ as Asia’s first global museum of contemporary visual culture and
promote the District's other arts and cultural venues. To build anticipation
and momentum towards the launch of M+, the Authority organised a series
of pre-opening media engagement activities, including previews of the
museum's Hong Kong visual culture gallery as well as its retail and dining
outlets. These were followed by opening events featuring a media preview
of the entire museum plus a livestreamed opening ceremony for local,
Greater China and international media and key stakeholders.

Throughout much of the year, media representatives and influencers were
invited to enjoy performing arts programmes in person. Events included the
popular Freespace Jazz Fest, which had been held for the third year, and
the Winter Holiday Comedy: The Emperor. To raise public awareness and
build anticipation for the grand opening of HKPM in July 2022, the Authority
also rendered support to promote and publicise the museum's pre-opening
programmes and events.
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Numerous Hong Kong, Mainland and international media outlets
attended the media preview for M+'s opening.

SERAM - RTIERMEHES EMREIREERE -

Overall, the Authority proactively engaged approximately 360 media
representatives throughout the reporting year, working closely with the
HKSAR Government, HKTB and other partners. As a result, the District
and M+ received unprecedented attention from local, Greater China and
global media, attracting a record-breaking 14,000 media articles and
predominantly positive reviews.
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Enhancing the Customer Experience

RFrshERER

WKCD offers the best of eastern and western cultures at our world-class FAASELERFGHIZHEAATERNERER @ FIEE

venues and is well-positioned to be the hub for international cultural BEBRAPINUERZRPD - BT RANITERAKE
exchange. To promote WKCD as the must-see cultural destination of the ERAEBNXLRE  EBEN2021FRE—FHIREFE
Greater Bay Area, the Authority entered into a strategic partnership with IR BEBHRER - EANBHAERNERA THEANE
HKTB in the last quarter of 2021. The collaborations that have resulted E ERERNAEEHERES T

from the partnership have raised the public's awareness of the diversified
activities and experiences that are available in WKCD.

The towering 20-metre Christmas tree at Hong Kong
Winterfest 2021.
BEENL BB BIUNE F20KEHERYEHH

Building Buzz Through Strategic Partnerships EARBSERERERRRANEN

The initiative began with a marketing campaign in September 2021 EHAREESIEBRN2021F98 —EmiGHE TS  SESHETE
designed to increase visibility of WKCD's myriad offerings to residents BEEA R - EEHERERERNRE - #EAASSEN
and tourists in the WKCD-Yau Ma Tei-Jordan area. This was followed by B - Hig BN AESEENE HFriendsWithYouX
the FriendsWithYou display at the Art Park Harbourfront Lawn, a collection WENEE  ZECEENMNACRSIELEERETE  EHhE
of large-scale installations of colourful characters that also featured an BRESNERGE o

augmented reality element which enabled visitors to take unique selfies.

-

West Kowloon Neighbourhood - FriendsWithYou Giant Art Installation
K \EFEFE—FriendsWithYou K BUEE B B4
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FE DO
The collaboration ramped up during the holiday season with Hong Kong L HAEEHEERTHN 2021 FBEHL AR REARTIGEN
Winterfest 2021 — which saw “Christmas Town" and the towering 20-metre H—ER o SEERUNE) B20KEEFHER FIREEBAN
Christmas tree that are usually located in Central's Harbourside Lawn ZEENEN AR @ EEBEEFENEEBEEEAISBCEIES,) N
relocated to WKCD's Art Park - plus an electrifying Hong Kong New Year [EtEE MR EETR RN A 5A B R THT-F 1 20BE - T7E TEBIEEA
Countdown Concert. The Christmas tree, equivalent in height to a six-storey EEIEE, b BFHASMRRORME B EZLE %3,0000F&E
building, quickly became a “check-in" hot spot for visitors. During the Hong HIRGREZMBERE  EREHRER  2KBE24EAR

Kong New Year Countdown Concert, 3,000 lucky draw winners enjoyed FIREILLEE) - ERERE - M+ KBILEDRHE HIREE R H KR
performance of boyband MIRROR and the Hong Kong Philharmonic FEIBEE - BRI E MBI —ERIZRER -

Orchestra on the Great Lawn, while more than 2.4 billion people were able

to catch the shows live on television around the world. During the grand

finale of the show, the audience celebrated the new year in spectacular

style with a countdown clock displayed on M+'s gigantic LED facade.

3,000 lucky draw winners enjoy performance of young pop
stars including AGA, Alfred Hui, Gin Lee, Jay Fung, Joyce
Cheng, MIRROR and the Hong Kong Philharmonic Orchestra
at the Hong Kong New Year Countdown Concert.
EEEEFESEIES, £ DEN - FER  FEH B
FER ~ BRARE ~ B FAHEMIRROR F1& 8 B 5444 73 3,000
(EEMRISREERBERE
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Enhancing the Customer Experience
RASFEREE

From 23 to 25 July 2021, the Authority took part in the "GO Hong Kong
Team" campaign as a venue sponsor to support Team Hong Kong's
participation in the Tokyo Olympics and to contribute to the promotion of
sports and arts development in Hong Kong. During the campaign, visitors
watched the live broadcast of the Olympic Games at the popular Art Park
and experience exciting sports demonstrations in an inspiring artistic and
cultural environment.

Building a RDE Destination

As at the end of March 2022, there were 13 food and beverage and retail
outlets in the District. Several outlets at the Art Park provide visitors with
an array of choices for coffee, lunch, dinner and happy hour along the
harbourside. Choices include fine Western and Asian dining, contemporary
Chinese fusion, Italian favourites, gourmet coffee, alcoholic drinks and
snacks. There were also food trucks serving a variety of delicious food and
drinks to visitors of the Art Park.

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY BEA XK BEEERF
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R2021F7823HE25H - EERLUEESHEBEESH
RBHERHE TEBRXINE | OEE) - DUTEI BB B R R A
B BEDEFBNEHRENBRELER - FHHE - 9
ARENAERSREREREEER  THEENNXLEE
- RS2 ERHERESER -

"GO Hong Kong Team” campaign
TE BRI EED

TE - ERIEE

HE2022F3AK  BAHRE1IBEERNTEE - ZHERX
FHRAOERERER - BN RENESERBNSHEE  /HTR
R BEARFE « 18 - BERALRZANER - REG
EEBNEATMNEE  ReTERRNAIZTIE - B
RFER - BRI - EERRINE © 15 - BRAEPTR
FATERE - HESBERNBYMRG

Food trucks in the Art Park offer another food option to visitors.

ERERIERHESEREE -



The two retail outlets at the newly opened M+, The M+ Shop and The Other
Shop, offer patrons unique collections of keepsakes, gifts and publications,
while its CURATOR Creative Café practises an elevated interpretation of tea
and coffee culture.

A. M+ logo on top of beverages from CURATOR Creative Café.
CURATOR Creative Café IZEENEMHEZFERARA R AVERE o

Meanwhile, visitors to the Xiqu Centre could sit down to a meal at one of the
three restaurants or get a cup or bottle of take-away beverage for those
seeking to relax and recharge.

Located at Freespace, Lau Bak Livehouse, a bar cum restaurant with live
music performance space, has also become a popular spot for friends to
gather after work and on weekends.

Quality Visitor Services

Public open space continued to expand throughout the District with the
completion of several developments, including the outdoor podium area on
the third floor of M+, the entry plaza of the Xiqu Centre along Canton Road,
and the ramp connecting the Art Park to HKPM.

The Authority undertook continuous improvements to the Art Park’s
landscaping and amenities in the reporting year. At the mobile visitor
information booth, visitors may borrow battery chargers and umbrellas in
addition to the existing lawn chairs and inflatable sofas. To encourage waste
reduction, we also installed three water dispensers that enable guests who
bring their own bottles to refill for free.

THE YEAR IN REVIEW
oF E [o] E

Enhancing the Customer Experience
RAFHERE

M+ ENZ EEM+ARTERMHNEABERE—RIE
ERW 0 BEL2%  B5%  HRYE » MCURATOR Creative
CaféBlIL BB I F AR IRZANMBEEST L o

A Visitors in The M+ Shop.
SETEM+ANEEEE R ©

s - SR ARIER P O =R ETRALRE  WEE
IR 2B TIENWREES ©

AR B HAEEME HLivehouse £BIE - EEMRSERERES
BR—5  BE=ANC TUENRARE G, o

BEHERE

EEENZEEBZEMA  BNTREESQARRERAM
BEM+ =N EE - B EERENAOES - Y
REEEMNEREES S EYERRE

FERERGTFERERCEN L BNREMRNE - ERETm
FENM - BRTIRBRDVEBNREMRMLIN - HEETUER
BFEIETERNNE - ATHERE - ERNERRET =58
K FRBEKIERSE T MR ERFTRRAK

Visitors are welcomed to borrow battery
chargers, umbrellas from the Art Park
Mobile Information Booth. They can
also refill water bottles using the water
dispenser.

B AREN A AREREN T ENIGERE
EINETERNA - TFAEREKER
Bk o
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Enhancing the Customer Experience
RASFEREE

During Christmas, when social distancing measures were eased, a series of
Christmas workshops and giveaways were organised to provide a fun and
interactive experience for guests.

Enhancing Connectivity

The opening of M+ and an increase in the number of events being held in
the Art Park have made the District more popular than ever, with particularly
high visitation during weekends and festive seasons. The Authority
opened the Artist Square Bridge for public use in December 2021. The
bridge greatly enhanced connectivity between WKCD and its surrounding
neighbourhoods and provides a direct, round-the-clock, barrier-free
connection between the developments above MTR Kowloon Station and
the Artist Square, M+, Freespace, the Art Park, the future LTC and the
waterfront promenade.

SRR R M AN - AR T — R T
PARER IR YIEE) - RBINEREEBE R -

JIIEE:

M+REINEBNAEEREHARDS - CHAENLEE
REFHE - LHENBERMEARBBNHEAR - BEAH
& ° BWESRIER2021F128MARREK - KKINE T A
HEBSBHEETER - AEEN RN FENEREERER
B35 - M+~ BT - 2R - RRRERSSEISTEE
REERETERE - 2X&E - BERNEE -

With the addition of the Artist Square Bridge, the District now enjoys superb
connectivity, through the pedestrian footbridges and subways linking to the
cross-boundary High Speed Rail connecting major cities of the Mainland,
the Airport Express Line which takes 22 minutes to the Hong Kong
International Airport, the Tung Chung Line at Kowloon Station and the Tuen
Ma Line at Austin Station.

Two bus and minibus stops have been added along Museum Drive — one
near M+ and the other near the Art Park — providing a convenient and direct
means of transport to and from the western part of the District.

To further enhance the District's connectivity, the HKSAR Government has
applied funding from the Legislative Council for the construction of the
Southern Landing Facility located at the waterfront of the Art Park adjacent
to M+. The Facility will serve as a marine landing point for public use and
event-based water transport to and from WKCD.

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY BEA XK BEEERF
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The Artist Square Bridge connects WKCD and the
neighbourhoods nearby.
SNBESRISEEANNEINRIE

PEEEMESRBIRARE - BARASERKEEEINE) EE
LERE - BBITAXBURE EEERNMSE T 2T
BiEEH - RE220 B ALERHS RETET BRFRES -
TRAI BNV BRIEFNAT A TR B SRR B 54 -

s - YRR R M E BB 350\ B yE——H R — @8
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RBIA -
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WKCDA is committed to making WKCD a great place that creates positive
influence. ESG (Environmental, Social, Governance) related considerations
are closely integrated into the District's placemaking strategies. To this
end, a sustainability framework was established in WKCDA to guide our
efforts to create positive impact for society. Determined to drive its ESG
sustainable development forward, WKCDA is in the process of fine-tuning
its sustainability framework supported by four key pillars: arts and culture,
accessibility, green and economy.

Arts and Culture
ETeinz{b

The D. H. Chen Foundation -
West Kowloon Tea House Student Matinees

(BAARERS —FERESTRETTS)

The D. H. Chen Foundation — West Kowloon Tea House Student
Matinees, specially devised for secondary one to four students,
extended arts learning beyond the classroom through interactive
facilitator-led discussion sessions and narrated performances
presented by the Tea House Rising Stars Troupe. Amid social distancing
measures in the reporting year, we launched a 30-minute online
programme in 2021 for secondary students to continue arts learning at
school or at home. During 2021/22, over 2,000 students and educators
attended the onsite sessions and over 3,000 joined the online sessions.

(BANREEIG — R EEESEHE TS 2 —BAT —EFNBLEESET
ENEE - BEFHENRENE2EEZRMNBIRE - B4 sZHENS
R B E B 5 |ENE ETiRED - iSRINE B EHERE S - KEER
LEEENBHENARIERHERE - FfIE2021FE#H T — @300 148 _ L&
B BTSLEETERIERBEEN o 7£2021/224FF » #BiE2,000%
BANYE TEE2HRIGEEIRE - HEBIB3,000 A KRS\ FEEIR
g" °

M+ Learning Programmes

M+2EEE)

Online and in-person learning programmes were offered to primary and
secondary students at M+. The right image shows “People Make Good
Design”, one of the thematic tours that M+ offered to primary students.
In addition, M+ developed a series of free online learning resources,
which included exhibition-related toolkits, short clips of collection
stories and creative arts videos, for students to extend the museum
learning experience.

M+RFR S NSERETR EMRSS2EES  AEBRTET—ERNR
AMRARREE BT o S MHER T —RINGENR L2EE
R BERRERRNEM - BeEEER MAIRENR R - (2L R
YIREEE R -

THE YEAR IN REVIEW
FEEIRE

EERBBOBBENITEN —BRT TSR ENFIT
WHSERIE « LB EAT AR E B N R 2SR
KTES - Bl EEBHIE T ISERRIESR - 581
RUBAEEEZE - EERREEE U HERE - FIEHH
IUEMTES L ~ EEHE - RSB RNASER A FrEs
JRAEZE
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Accessibility
EERRF
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Access Services
BERTS

To enable everyone to enjoy our arts and cultural programmes, WKCD
continued to provide scheduled or on-request access services for our
programmes supported by or with the collaboration of various NGOs
focusing on the needs of people with disability in the reporting year. For
instance, we collaborated with the Arts with the Disabled Association
Hong Kong to provide a range of access services such as tactile map,
sign interpretation and audio description at Freespace Jazz Fest to
ensure that audience with disabilities could enjoy the event. The left
image shows interpreters providing theatrical interpretation at the
Freespace Jazz Fest.

During the reporting year, WKCDA provided access services for seven
live and online initiatives, supporting more than 400 people with access
needs.

RESMEMEZTZHRMINBENAEE - EEREETREFENES
BEEBAFEBELE - LEPIERRALREARIRT - TR THEE
A TRKIREERRTS - NI T EREZNESFERHE T EEEH
RIE—RINBERY - SEERE - FEEENEEED  BRRERT
BRI ERES) - LEENEEEEARR T ERAPRHEEISRTEE

EREFEN - EERER CERSNR L6 RERERT - EBIB400
HEEEFENAL

Engagement Activities
SHEE)

Between July and November 2021, the Authority held seven
pre-opening engagement activities where people with disabilities could
tour M+ and HKPM. These events offered valuable opportunities for
the Authority to meet with members of the disability community and
exchange ideas on accessibility in order to create a more inclusive
customer experience.

#F2021F7RE AR - EEREM T CHRENNSIEES  BRRAL
SEMHNEBR S UEYE - ELEHREERRMTHEENHS - &
BRRATEEMNRANLEEERY - HMALEE TR -



THE YEAR IN REVIEW
F RO

Our Sustainable Journey to Creating Positive Impact
BIEEBTENTHERERZIK

Green

Energy Efficiency
RER SR

In March 2022, WKCDA Tower received a BEAM Plus Final Gold rating,
recognising the Authority's effort for having design features that
help achieve energy efficiency performance exceeding statutory
requirements. As at the end of the reporting year, the following buildings
in the District had been recognised with the BEAM Plus certifications,
authenticating WKCDA's commitment to sustainability:

— WKCD: BEAM Plus Neighbourhood (Pilot Version) — Platinum

— Xiqu Centre: Final Gold

—  WKCDA Tower: Final Gold

- HKPM: Provisional Gold

— M+ (including Conservation and Storage Facility): Provisional Gold

7E20224F 3R - BAXMMEERF KR GRERT RS RETR - MR WKCDA Tower
EREFHRAETEERERRABERSERRNRAFMENS S - BERS BAAXKEERFEKRE
FEAERE - NTRENWEANEZEYEE EIRT B8 sETEER

HIATRAEES RAVAIE

— BAXKE : EERTHE GGBRA) 1 SaEETR
— BEEPD  RRER

- BAAXKEEEREAE  RKRER

— BEREXWEYE  BESH

- M+(BEEERETLD)  GESH

Development of Renewable Energy
AIELRERER

To promote renewable and low-carbon electricity generation, which
aligns with our vision to develop a smart and sustainable District, a
new photovoltaic system was installed on the roof of Freespace and
the Arts Pavilion in the Art Park. Such system is the first installation
operated in the District under the Incentive Feed-in Tariff (FiT) Scheme,
an initiative to promote the development of renewable energy in Hong
Kong.

EHIBLRRNERRENERMBEREENTHERRENRSR - B
It - EEREAZNAENNAE=BNENRSHRSMRABIELAR

% BURGRETEERE CAREHILBNRE SHNEENE T
ST A ASRRE - e new photovoltaic system installed on the roof of Freespace
e e T e
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Our Sustainable Journey to Creating Positive Impact
RIEEMmTZENTIFERRZIK

Economy

TR
I S A

Green Finance

BEsR

Efforts made to secure a Sustainability-Linked Loan of
HK$4 billion in April 2022 @

1E2022FE 4 B BB A0S ETT A ER BRI B TER

Job Creation

RLERMFRE ()

Recruited more than 100 full-time employees under
the Government's Anti-epidemic Fund Job Creation Scheme

TR RETEES TAERAEE) THEEBR10052HES

Supporting Tenants during the Pandemic

IS THERNXE

Granted 4 rounds of rental concession to @%
RDE tenants and licensee

EEE, BEADMERFEE P A Rl iHESEE b
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Building the Future
BRI

Despite the external challenges of the past year, the Authority continued
to make solid progress on many of the District's remaining hardware and
supporting infrastructure projects. Following the phased opening of the
Art Park starting from 2018 and the commissioning of the Xiqu Centre and
Freespace in 2019, the Authority achieved yet another milestone with the
much-anticipated launch of M+ in the second half of 2021. Construction
works of two other important projects, HKPM, LTC and the associated IB,
continued at full steam.

Project Delivery

From February 2022, the fifth wave of the COVID-19 pandemic in Hong
Kong led to significant reductions in the supply of construction workers
and site-based design liaison staff and disrupted the delivery of building
materials. These developments had caused adverse impacts on the
progress of the L2 Works Contract for LTC construction and mechanical/
electrical/plumbing (MEP) installations in the associated IB, as well as
other West Kowloon sites. The Authority has been closely working with
the relevant Consultants and Contractors to keep personnel safe from
COVID-19 while maintaining construction progress in critical areas to
mitigate delays.

THE YEAR IN REVIEW
oF E [o] E

BEFANBE—FEMEIIMNERRENILE - BEERBHEERRD
ERANB TN IREE R EMEEERSREER - HEML
ERIFR2018 5 #C /) BE ER BRIk Hh /v B R =S 72201 9 RE R
% BEABFEAMM+INR2021 FE THERENS  BEAT
ERMTEERRERE - b EEHRELEYE  BESFS
BHERERGEEMAEEIEENEE TS HESTET -

HE#ER

2022 2B F% - EER2019BRBE SRS LR FEEA
BERAREE T AT TRt AB KRR - BEMELE
MR MER - L2 TRSMNERRAEISRERNEEH
BREERKEEENTZEE - AEMTITFZE - §EF
—ERERBERTNZAEZEREGEF  UBEEERTA SRR
2019TFIRIRE  WHER T ERIBATFETER » BURIDIERR ©

Digital rendering of the Lyric Theatre Complex
ERRE RSN EIEEE

On 12 November 2021, WKCDA proudly launched M+, Asia's first global
museum of contemporary visual culture to the public. The 65,000-square-
metre M+ comprises 17,000 square metres of exhibition space and 33
galleries. In December 2021, the Authority opened the Artist Square
Bridge, a 94-metre-long, 7-metre-wide footbridge that enables visitors to
reach major District facilities conveniently. HKPM was in its final stage of
preparation during the reporting year.

2021118128 @ ENEESIREE RSB XL EYEM+E
NRFIN o EYEEMEEEE65,000F 5K » 815170005 KE
B33 MEREE © 20214128 - BNESRERE - XER
94 ~ 7K > EHRUUABEEERNSBEE RN © fERE
FEN  SENEXHENENAREETRERERNEET
E o
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Building the Future
ERRK

Moving Forward

WKCD's IB is an integral component of the overall Development Plan. Under
the IB concept, vehicular traffic, parking facilities, loading and unloading
facilities, plant rooms, and utilities are all located underground to create a
pedestrian-friendly environment at the ground level and direct connections
between facilities at the podium level. The IB covers an area of 254,000
square metres and is being implemented in phases, starting with Zone 3A
which was completed in 2021 and followed by Zones 3B, 2A and 2B/C.

Zone 2 of the IB has the largest floor area at approximately 200,000
square metres. It is located between the Xiqu Centre to the east and
Artist Square Towers (AST) in Zone 3B to the west. Construction of Zone
2 continued to make good progress during the reporting year. Under the
Zone 2A Foundation and Excavation and Lateral Support Works Contract,
all foundation piles were completed in January 2022, with the installation
of pipe piles and the grout curtain in support of enabling works ongoing.
Under the Zone 2B/C Foundation Works Contract, which commenced in
July 2021, pre-drilling and geotechnical investigation works are in progress,
as are the foundation works.

RERRK

FREMERTANERERETEANEZAERI o E4REHIER
BT HHRE - 2HE5 - LEEE - BENSQEEHEE
ERME - RESE—ETARSNHERE - RIT AT
HEFEDRANNERG © A HEEEE254,000F 5K » 1
DPEELHEE - SARER2021F5ER » 3B ~ 2AT2B/CEIE A4S
HR o

e b2 [ AR R E E & 494 200,000 F /52K - SRR E R
D - FAEIBENENEISKIE - REEFEN  2ENEETE
ERERE o RIB2AEMERISEEABAIEIRESY ek
HR2022F1 A BT » ERMERTE TRIMEEET - 1R
BR20214E7 B EFN2B/ICEMETESL » FEENES TR
TR R E TARINIE A TAR o

At Zone 3B, efforts in 2021/22 focused on the construction of seven
ventilation structures and other public infrastructure works under the L1
Contract. In December 2021, the box culvert running through the IB was
completed and is now operational.

As of the end of the reporting year, more than 55% of the structural
concrete works under the L2 Contract had been completed, with casting
concrete currently reaching the first floor of the LTC building. Construction
works are also progressing concurrently in the basement, with 20% of MEP
modules and the first District Cooling System chiller plant already installed.
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Digital rendering of the Artist Square
Towers above the IB
HERREHEZ FBMESAIEN
HisanE
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Behind the Scenes
BHRE

Developing the Talent of Tomorrow

Delivering a world-class experience requires talented people who are
passionate about the arts. As at 31 March 2022, the Authority had 677
regular and 709 temporary staff members to support its performing arts,
visual arts, marketing, and other programmes and operations.

As a dedicated member of society, WKCDA is always seeking ways
to contribute to the well-being of Hong Kong and its many diverse
communities. In 2021/22, the Authority participated in the HKSAR
Government's Anti-epidemic Fund Job Creation Scheme. More than 100
full-time employees were recruited during the reporting year, and 295
additional positions will be recruited in 2022/23.

Robust learning and development programmes are critical to our ability to
engage with staff, nurture the leaders of tomorrow, and deliver effectively
on WKCDA's vision and mission. They also enable us to unlock our
employees' potential and help them achieve rewarding, long-term careers
with the Authority. During the year under review, WKCDA carried out more
than 11,000 hours of training for over 4,600 participants, covering a wide
range of topics including arts management, conservation, leadership,
communications, digital marketing and much more. In July and October
2021, WKCDA also hosted two rounds of competency-based corporate
training programmes, with an encouraging 436 and 496 staff members
participating in the sessions respectively. To make the sessions as
accessible and safe as possible during the pandemic, the Authority
employed both in-person and virtual formats depending on the prevailing
situation.

THE YEAR IN REVIEW
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EEHRAAT

B RGN ERN SRR EEHENTMNENIAT - BHE
2022%3FB31H EERHEFE67T7&24ERETM709%BKE
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M+ Staff attended corporate training
programmes ahead of the opening of the museum.

EEEFZRE T AMRIRR T ES -
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Behind the Scenes
SIS

In November 2021, the Authority proudly launched its signature leadership
training initiative, “Executive Leadership Programme in the Arts and Cultural
Industries for WKCDA", which was developed in partnership with the
University of Leeds. This nine-month programme, the first of its kind for
the Authority, employs various learning components and covers a variety
of themes including leadership and the entrepreneurial mindset, research
and analysis, and finance and fundraising. Its primary goal is to develop
future leaders who enable WKCDA's continued development as a high-
performance arts and cultural organisation.

R20215E118 » EEFHE EUniversity of Leeds&{E3EH
EEEERENIEFEITAAXNEEEREN S EREITERA

E@EHEEL - EERPNERNGE  REERNERERER

 BETNEAHENS - FEIRENEESERET MR
KEVDRE ~ I - UREBNER - EXZBRRES
RIREH - L EEFREMRER RIA—ERR M ER
et

i

WKCDA also arranges annual trainings on compliance and governance.
These include programmes on integrity, anti-corruption practices,
introductions to the anti-discrimination laws of Hong Kong, data privacy,
and occupational health and safety.

Stringent Internal Controls

WKCDA's Internal Audit (IA) Department has the vital role of conducting
independent checks on the operations of the Authority. During the
reporting year, the IA Department completed 10 audits of various facets of
the Authority's operations. It also delivered 14 sets of advisory services to
various departments of the Authority.

In terms of risk management activities, the IA Department supported
Management in its review and assessment of current corporate risk
levels based on new developments and changing internal and external
circumstances. The review helps ensure that the Authority continues to
have an effective and up-to-date risk management process in place.

IA Department has been supporting Management in implementing a pilot
run of the Control Self-Assessment for enhancing the accountability and
responsibility of Management on internal controls.
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Staff from WKCDA participates in "Executive
Leadership Programme in the Arts and Cultural
Industries for WKCDA".
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FEREE
Behind the Scenes
aRiEE
Enhancing District Safety and Security nEFEATLERR
With more event venues available for event organisers, the Authority has FEE EPUERENIS B ER 0 B RS EMENEENERIEE
continued to work closely with venue operators and service providers B o BEEFEES RS GHEENEEBBIVES TMEM R
to ensure the safety and security of visitors and staff at the Xiqu Centre, BElE BEREEMTBL - BRA R - BRESEERM+HE I
Art Park and Freespace, and M+. Contingency plans and precautionary RREE o WA - AR T RIETERRIENE - B S
measures have also been prepared and implemented in response to =t FEE2019BIRREREIS ©
COVID-19.
Enhancing District Facility Services FANER RS
With the transition from construction to operations of various venues, the FEEFEN S EIGHBEE R NG E - ERABETIAHKRE
park and public open spaces in the District have escalated to a new level SHEEZERN - BEBEEERCEEERNE  BPUEER  BiEE

of popularity. The Authority continued to make improvements and deliver WERE » UXIEHEEE -
maintenance, cleaning, landscaping and other services to support the day-
to-day operations.

To ensure the safety of the public, audience and staff members, WKCDA enhances hygiene
measures and implements special arrangements in all of its venues so that visitors can enjoy
the performance while maintaining social distancing.

RAREAR - ASBRESINZ2  EEREEBRZSHINRHNEEREE - YEHRIZ
P BHBEMEREZER - (DRERIFHIREE

The Authority successfully relocated its offices from leased facilities to EEERBREFERENAERHATSEREINTERNEE
the newly built self-owned M+ and WKCDA Tower in the reporting year. To ME—M+HHEAXLERERFKRIE - HRSEINIIER

increase staff's productivity, the Authority's new offices were designed X BEENFMAZEDENESIARES » MAZERK
with user-friendly and modern features to suit the needs of its energetic Ek  URETRHNER - ZFITMGE TNRLMEL
workforce. Safety and well-being of staff were also prioritised: the Authority WEEN : 55 EERTGEMEIEGMETAEES
carried out annual fire drills for all workplaces and implemented safety plans BieRestE B TAEITEEEAR

so that all staff would be familiar with the evacuation plan.

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY FAX L EEERF
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F RO

Behind the Scenes
SIS

To ensure the health and safety of our visitors in the pandemic, the
Authority's frontline staff gave over 5,400 reminders to visitors to the Art
Park monthly on average about the social distancing measures in place.
Flags, signages and public announcements were also hoisted or issued in
the Art Park to remind visitors of the importance of social distancing.

Innovation and Technology

A key defence against COVID-19 for individuals is social distancing. On the
work front, that means adaptive work from home arrangements to minimise
the risk of infection. In the reporting year, the Authority's Innovation and
Technology Department has enabled staff to work remotely with all the
meetings, workshops and events held online as scheduled while continuing
the provision of the onsite IT support service to the frontline operations on
aneed basis as per the agreed service level.

-

REBHE  AREFENRRERS - EEBNIIRTEA
B AP REM AR BI85 4008 B B R EERkE
HERYIRR o tbsh - HAITEESHARRRER © RIESTAE
HEE » IREE S RIT L ARERE o

RUFTRHR

FREFERIBHEEABN2019ERBES RN EEENE - MEL
E5rT - EERAIRERFRHETERTIE - LURKKSE
BRER - EREFEN - EERNARRMEBAETiRM
ERTEMBIE  EMFfIEAREER L8TER  TF
PRGEE - FREERSTRABENBRBEER  EAFERAR
ARERR A ARIEE -

Executives in Performing Arts Division share the latest development, venue operation, and programming in our venues with other staff in WKCDA in a webinar series.

TREMRNEEEEOM LHBE - MEMSTNMERSHNRNERRE  SHEEEE - UIREERH-

ICT infrastructure and facilities setup in M+, including the museum's digital
signage, panel displays, kiosks, and AV systems for all the galleries and
exhibition studios were also completed. This has facilitated the opening and
operations of the museum.

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY BEA XK BEEERF
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Financial Position

The prolonged pandemic adversely impacted the finances of the Authority
as all arts and cultural venues in the District were closed from time to
time and the operating hours of its RDE outlets were reduced to comply
with the social distancing measures. Furthermore, in response to the
Government's call, the Authority has offered the fourth round of rental
concessions to our RDE tenants from January to April 2022. Comparing to
the 2021/22 Business Plan, the Authority's underlying income was down by
close to 55%, from around $240 million to around $110 million (excluding
investment income and donation income for construction).

Leveraging the opening of M+ in November 2021 and the stabilisation of
the pandemic, the growth in visitation and business in the last quarter of
2021 was encouraging. Boosted by the increasing footfall to WKCD, the
monthly revenue of the RDE tenants of the Authority have grown strongly
in 2021 Q4 compared to the previous 12 months. Venue hire has also
demonstrated rapid growth in the fourth quarter of 2021, attributable to
the premium location of WKCD as well as the wide range of offers including
unique venues, F&B and partnership opportunities.

Generating Revenue and Cutting Costs and Expenditures

As the pandemic-induced uncertainties linger, it is a priority for the
Authority to build resilience and preserve liquidity at this juncture. During
2021/22, the Authority has undergone strenuous expenditure cuts in
operating expenditure as well as recurring structural costs, such as staff
costs, facilities management and venue operation costs. Comparing to
the 2021/22 Business Plan, the underlying deficit before depreciation,
amortisation and finance costs was reduced by close to 30% from $1.1
billion to $772 million.

At this time of market uncertainties, the Authority will continue to exercise
prudence in managing its finances and will put more emphasis on revenue
generation.

THE YEAR IN REVIEW
oF E [o] E

RAFSHRIR
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Architecture
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Merit Award

Occupational Health Award 2020/21

Co-organised by Occupational Safety and Health Council,
the Labour Department, the Department of Health,

the Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board and

the Occupational Deafness Compensation Board

China State Construction Engineering (Hong Kong)

Hong Kong Palace Museum

Silver Award in Outstanding Environmental
Management and Performance

(Non-Public Works - New Works - Group A)

27th Considerate Contractors Site Award Scheme
Development Bureau and Construction Industry Council
China State Construction Engineering (Hong Kong)
Hong Kong Palace Museum

Bronze Award in Considerate Contractors Site
(Non-Public Works - New Works - Group A)

27th Considerate Contractors Site Award Scheme
Development Bureau and Construction Industry Council
China State Construction Engineering (Hong Kong)
Hong Kong Palace Museum

Bronze Award in Model Subcontractor

27th Considerate Contractors Site Award Scheme
Development Bureau and Construction Industry Council
China State Mechanical & Electrical Engineering Limited
Hong Kong Palace Museum

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY AL B EER
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Awards and Recognition
IRIRE T

Arts & Culture
1) 878 4

The 40 Most Influential Productions in Chinese
Contemporary Black Box Theatre

The 40 Most Influential Productions

Beijing Theatre Association, Black Box Theatre Committee of
the China Association of Performing Arts, Xinjuben magazine

REEZEN408E]
FEEANEIZEE40FEH ENIEE
TREERGE - FEERITERS
INEISBEIRE S - (REIAR) T -
bR EF RS R E e S

and the Beijing (Changping District) Tourism Development (FBERIE) Girém)
Committee

Farewell My Concubine (New Adaptation)

Business Development

Honoree (bar/lounge/social club category) BRI GEE, 268 Z+L4BR)
Best of Year Awards 2021 2021 EREER
Interior Design magazine Interior Designss

M+ Lounge M+ &8

Recommended Shop NS

2021 Time Out Hong Kong's recommended venues 2021"Time Outifif ™1 & E
Time Out Hong Kong Time OutZ ;&

The Other Shop at M+ M-+/)\Ef

Corporate Social Responsibility

PEH BRI

Barrier-free Companies/Organisations EERRELE WS
The Caring Company Scheme ERREEIEE

The Hong Kong Council of Social Service BN EIRBHE

Xiqu Centre, Freespace and Art Park B D BERSEREN AR
5 Years Plus Caring Organisation Logo 5 Plus"EIDVRRIR 1EEE
The Caring Company Scheme e e

The Hong Kong Council of Social Service BN ERBHE

West Kowloon Cultural District Authority AAXKEEER

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY A XL B EERE
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Awards and Recognition
BRIHE T

Marketing
TSR

The Committee’s Pick

The Best Use of Mobile Online Campaign 2021 Season 2
IAB Hong Kong

Reimagine Xiqu Centre and Freespace campaign

Safety
z2

ZEETE
2021 FE - SRETFHA FRAEREE
IAB Hong Kong

Reimaginegk#i+ 0F0 B =B MG H#EE T2l

Anti-Epidemic Hygiene Measures Certification
Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency
Freespace, M+ and Xiqu Centre

Sustainability
AIfHERR

BEREETERE
EERERER
BHZ=ME - M+AIE AL

Excellent Class

Indoor Air Quality Certification Scheme for Offices and
Public Places

Indoor Air Quality Information Centre

Environmental Protection Department Freespace

Good Class

Indoor Air Quality Certification Scheme for Offices and
Public Places

Indoor Air Quality Information Centre

Environmental Protection Department

WKCDA Tower and M+'s Conservation and Storage Facility

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY BEA XK BEEERF
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fREE

To enable the public to enjoy the arts and cultural facilities and public open
spaces in WKCD as early as possible, the Authority adopted a strategy of
prioritising the development of the Core Arts and Cultural Facilities (CACF)
in the early years of development. After years of efforts by the WKCD
team and relevant government departments, a number of arts and cultural
facilities have been opened in the District, including the Xiqu Centre,
Freespace, the Art Park and M+. The Hong Kong Palace Museum (HKPM)
also opened to the public in July 2022, bringing visitors a diverse and
comprehensive art experience.

The original financial arrangement of the WKCD project was to provide the
Authority with recurring income from RDE facilities and other commercial
facilities to make up for the long-term operating losses of arts and cultural
facilities. However, due to various constraints, the time that the Authority
can generate income from RDE facilities and HOR developments is
significantly later than originally planned.

Venues and facilities that require subsidies have been opened one after
another, but projects that can generate stable incomes have not yet been
launched. There is thus a mismatch between the incomes and expenses of
the Authority and as a result it is facing severe financial challenges. While
continuing to control costs, the Authority will also proactively explore new
sources of income, including raising more donations and sponsorships,
recruiting patrons and members, as well as seeking opportunities for
cooperation with commercial partners.

ATETREFEZARNENNXUENRENQL=ME - &
ERRFRINELRRR O EHTRERRE - LB E
BRI TE R ERPI S RIS ) » STREWN LR IEES BT
BRI - BEETO - BREE - ENAEEM ; M
BEREX L EYERER2022F7BRAARBEK - AHEF
RETT  2TTRIRVEMTEEEE o

BENERERANMBRHRURE - BRRAERREURE A
BIERE - HEERRACEERAN - LIRS EMNRIEN
REPEERT - RM > HREERZORY - EERRETE
BIRIBRERE - MRBEEPAE(EERRETRANE
[ > ERETRHEEE

FEMMNER CEEEEMA - Al ERBRERNRLS
EEBNBANZERERMEREL - ANE IS ERIRR R
BUPREL o IEAREIETIRANER - BRI EBR AT
NER - BERSIELRRENNEERE - SERERE
WEFEES -
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The Authority remains confident in the successful development of WKCD.
In fact, leveraging the opening of M+ in mid-November last year and the
stabilisation of the pandemic at that time, the growth in visitation and
business of WKCD in the last quarter of 2021 was encouraging. Boosted by
the increasing footfall, the Authority's average monthly income from RDE
facilities in the fourth quarter of 2021 increased by 80% compared to the
previous 12 months, while car park income also increased by 90%.

To ensure the long-term and healthy development of WKCD, the Authority
is formulating an active strategy to broaden the sources of income. We will
adopt a market-led approach, enhance the Build-Operate-Transfer (BOT)
model, and do our best to unlock the value of land resources and create
distinctive commercial projects through the development of RDE facilities
and HOR projects, with a view to bringing sustainable income in the long
run, to support WKCD to fulfill its cultural mission.

The Central Government announced the National 14th Five-Year Plan
last year, and WKCD will shoulder the critical mission of supporting Hong
Kong's development into an East-meets-West centre for international
cultural exchange. The concept of developing a Cultured Bay Area was also
proposed in the Outline Development Plan for the Guangdong-Hong Kong-
Macao Greater Bay Area promulgated in 2019. The Authority is ready to
work with the tourism industry to take advantage of the reopening of the
high-speed rail to promote and arrange culturally-themed travel routes to
tourists from the Mainland and the Greater Bay Area after travel restrictions
are eased.

With the opening of M+ and HKPM one after another in eight months,
together with our two world-class performance venues - the Xiqu Centre
and Freespace, the Authority stands ready to seize the opportunity to
collaborate with HKTB and the Economic and Trade Offices in the Mainland
and overseas to promote and enhance the brand value of WKCD. We
will also explore cooperation with museums in the Greater Bay Area to
launch joint tickets or provide discounts to promote the cultural tourism
experience of one trip and multiple stops in the Area as well as promote
and sell the cultural and creative products of M+ and HKPM to create a new
source of income through e-commerce platforms.

LTC, which is expected to be completed after 2024, will showcase the best
of Hong Kong and international dance and theatre, injecting new vitality
into the District. At the same time, the world-class arts and cultural facilities
in the District will continue to actively explore cooperation with other
prominent arts and cultural facilities in the Greater Bay Area to strengthen
talent exchange and cultivation.

WKCD boasts beautiful views of Victoria Harbour and is only a few steps
away from Hong Kong West Kowloon Station of the High Speed Rail and
Kowloon Station of the Airport Express, making it convenient for visitors
from the Greater Bay Area, other provinces and cities in the Mainland, as
well as locally and overseas. The Authority will continue to work with various
stakeholders and strategic partners in the community. With WKCD's
premium location and attractiveness from multiple aspects, the Authority is
confident that its operating income will improve in the post-pandemic era.

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY AL B EERF
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BRNANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (CONSOLIDATED)
EEE(FES)

2021
Financial results for the year ended 31 March HK$ million

EBEA3MBILLEEZ MRS SEIE BT

Income 9N :
-Underlying (note a) — &K (GHf#a) 431 . 411
—Reported -2 481 : 411
Expenditure A% (1.203) (901)

Deficit before depreciation, amortisation and finance costs KREHTE ~ B R RIERARIRT

- Underlying (note a) — &K (5fEa) (490)
- Reported -2 (490)
Deficit for the year FERF ;
—Underlying —EAR (1,559) : (869)
—Reported -2 (1,559) ; (869)
2021
Financial position as at 31 March HK$ million
HR3H31HZH#ERR BHEEETT
Total assets BEERE 27,145 27,593
Total liabilities BEEE ] : (4,562)
Total equity TETHERR 21,472 23,031
Note: 5338
(@) Donation income for construction has been excluded from both the underlying (a) EARBANRKFHE  BHERBERANRIZERRT  BERY
income and underlying deficit before depreciation, amortisation and finance TEEATEGRNBERAN  ERAZBARTRETHNR S
costs, because such income represents the amortisation of deferred income to > UECEBEEBNEREENITE - e AR 2K
match the depreciation of the relevant asset funded by the donation. Both the TEYBIERS NS -
amortised income and depreciation are non-cash in nature during the operation
period.
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THE BOARD AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREMSREEE

Structure of WKCDA

EERESEE

WKCDA BOARD
BAAXKEEER
BER

Internal Audit Development Projects Business Finance Corporate
Department Department Division Development Division Services Division Services Division

DR A R IEE (BRRE MBEBR BESBE
Chief Audit Director, Chief Projects Chief Business Chief Financial Chief Corporate
Executive Development and Officer Development Officer Services Officer
REEHES CEO's Office HEIRAR Officer HREEBER HRERESHER

RRRITEHAES HREBLRAR
YN
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M+ Acquisitions
Committee

M+ BEEEE

Legal and Board
Secretarial Division

EREBLEERMER

General Counsel
BEERER

Performing Arts
Division

REEME

Executive Director,
Performing Arts
RRBMITBMRE

M+

Museum
Director, M+
M+ R

Hong Kong
Palace Museum
EEREX L EYE

Museum Director,
Hong Kong
Palace Museum

EEREXLENE
[
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Board Functions and Conduct of Business

The Board was established on 23 October 2008 as the governing and
executive body of WKCDA. The current Board was appointed by the Chief
Executive of the HKSAR in October 2020. Mr Henry Tang Ying-yen was
appointed by the Chief Executive to succeed the Chief Secretary for
Administration as Chairman of the Board with effect from 1 October 2017.
In addition to the Chairman, the Board consists of one Vice Chairman, 14
Non-Public Officer Members, three Public Officer Members and the Chief
Executive Officer of WKCDA, who serves as an Ex-Officio Member. The
Board provides valuable knowledge, expertise and advice to WKCDA in
discharging its statutory duties and overseeing the development of the
District.

The Board adopts a set of Standing Orders and a Code of Conduct to
regulate its proceedings and ensure good corporate governance. The
Standing Orders regulate matters related to Board proceedings and
business, and the Code of Conduct sets out the standard of conduct
expected of all Board Members, including the control over the acceptance
of advantages and entertainment, the management of conflict of interest,
the use of confidential or privileged information and public funds, and the
misuse of their capacity as Board Members. Board Members are required
to follow the requirements stipulated in the Code of Conduct in undertaking
their duties.

Board and Committee Members are required to disclose all registrable
interests, as set out in the Standing Orders, both on their first appointment
and at the beginning of each calendar year after their appointment, in
accordance with Section 38(1) of the WKCDA Ordinance. They are also
required to declare an interest if they become aware of the existence of
one not previously disclosed, or after the occurrence of any change to an
interest previously disclosed. The register relating to disclosure of interest is
made available for inspection by the public at the WKCDA office.

It was a busy year for the Board, which held nine meetings. As the Authority
continued with its development programme and prepared for the opening
of additional major venues, there was an increase in the number of matters
requiring Board approval. The Board's focuses during the reporting year
included:

* Opening of M+ in November 2021 and ASB in December 2021
respectively;

* Matters relating to the operational readiness of the M+ building,
CSF, WKCDA Tower and HKPM, such as testing and commissioning,
statutory inspections and fitting-out works, security measures and
facilities management;

*  Formulation of admission and ticketing strategies for M+ and HKPM;

* Preparation for the remaining part of the IB, and various Public
Infrastructure Works (PIW) that are necessary for the topside cultural
and commercial developments in the District; and

*  On-going matters relating to the construction of LTC and the Art Park,
and to the preparation of the first BOT Tender for Artist Square Towers.

Members of the public can watch live webcasts of the open sessions of
Board Meetings on the West Kowloon Cultural District website.

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY AL B EERF
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Biographies of Current Board Members
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CHAIRMAN

£33

The Honourable

Henry TANG Ying-yen,
GBM, GBS, JP
BERESE, KERTE,
GBS, JP

Titles and other major offices &1 Efth = ZREFE

* Standing Committee Member of the National Committee of the Chinese People's Political Consultative Conference

2EBIHEE

* Chairman of the Friends of Hong Kong Association
BERFEEER

* President of The Légion d'Honneur Club Hong Kong Chapter Association
The Légion d'Honneur Club Hong Kong Chapter AssociationZ &

* Chairman of the Shanghai Tang Junyuan Education Foundation

EEEEEYEESTEER

Past experience iB{E4EEE

1991-1997

1997-1998

1997-2011

2002-2003

2003-2007

2007-2011

2008-2011

1995-2001

1995-2001

Member of the Legislative Council of Hong Kong

BREILEEEE

Member of the Provisional Legislative Council of Hong Kong
EBREIDEGHEE

Member of the Executive Council of the HKSAR

BT RITREERE

Secretary for Commerce, Industry and Technology of the HKSAR Government
EERNTHREBRN IBMARERER

Financial Secretary of the HKSAR Government

EERTREBNMEE R

Chief Secretary for Administration of the HKSAR Government
EBFITRERFERIER

Chairman of the Board of WKCDA

BAXUEEEREERER

Chairman of the Federation of Hong Kong Industries

BEBTHEGER

General Committee Member of the Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce

EBENEEEEEE

For more details, please visit the

West Kowloon Cultural District website.
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Titles and other major offices & #FIE fth = ER%FE

« Senior Partner at King & Wood Mallesons in Hong Kong
SHEMEBISHEBA

* Chairman of the Board of the FWD Group (the insurance arm of Pacific Century Group)
BRREEE TRIEEGREETEEEERTE

¢ Chairman of the Honorary Advisory Committee of SVHK Foundation Limited
BB EAREEESEERATBEHEZEEELE

 Chairman of the Common Purpose Charitable Foundation Limited, Hong Kong
ZF#Common Purpose Charitable Foundation Limited =&

 Chairman of Light Be Foundation Limited
TENBEESGERARLR

* Non-Executive Director of Asia Art Archive Limited

DNERRERARES

VICE CHAIRMAN

BIERE Past experience BT 4E5H

The Honourable

Ronald ARCULLI 1988-2000 Member of the Legislative Council of Hong Kong

GBM, GBS, JP BEARRE SR TRE T AT

BEREYE, KEFITE, 2005-2012 Non-Official Member of the Executive Council of the HKSAR
GBS, JP EEHTRETHESFETAS

2011-2012 Convenor of the Non-Official Members of the Executive Council of the HKSAR
BEEMITHETRERFETEEREA
2006-2012 Chairman of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited

BERGER

2002-2006 Chairman of the Hong Kong Jockey Club
EEEREIR

1992-2006 Board of Stewards of the Hong Kong Jockey Club
EEBERTEERNE

2010-2012 Chairman of the World Federation of Exchanges
ERRES R FTME TR

2008-2012 Board Member of the World Federation of Exchanges
ERESRGMEES

1986-1992 Board of Governors of the London Business School
RBAERERERE

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY AL B EER
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Members (Non-Public Officers)
HE AEABAR)

Titles and other major offices & #TFl1E fth = EREFE

* Founder and Chair of The Seradac Foundation The Seradac Foundation Sl A & E &
* Co-Chair of the Board of the Asia Art Archive SN ER UBEEECHIEEHE
« Member of the Board of Directors of Tai Kwun Culture and Arts Company Limited KEEX /L BRTE R AR ESGHE
* Member of the Board of Arts Company Ltd (ArtCo) and Chair of its Programming Committee
Arts Company Ltd (ArtCo) EEEMERMEZEEEF
» Member of the Asia Council for the Serpentine Galleries 1B ZEREIDNO SR E

Past experience B{E4EER

* Managing Director and Head of Global Real Estate, Greater China, UBS Global Asset Management
RS IREETEERRLE, 2REEXNTELE
« Co-CEO of UBS/Gemdale UBS/Gemdale B 1T EHER:
« Executive Director and Head of HKR Asia-Pacific for HKR International & i £ BIMS e B /T E 5 I To K B 28488

Mr Benjamin
CHA Yiu-chung
Education £ EiEhEE

» Master of Business Administration Degree from Stanford University
SEFRHEAR I EBE T2
« Bachelor of Arts Degree in International Politics and Economics from Middlebury College

e e I e e v

Titles and other major offices & #Fl1E fth = EREFE

« Deputy to the National People’s Congress of the People’s Republic of China £ A RRAERAE T

» President of Asia Financial Holdings Limited TEM & Bt B (1XA%) GIRAREE

* Chairman of Asia Insurance Company Limited ZE/{REEE

« Chairman of the Hong Kong-Thailand Business Council Z&&RER & £E

« Advisor to Bangkok Bank (China) Company Limited 888817 (FREl) B&RT

* Director of Bumrungrad Hospital Public Company in Thailand ZREIR RER AR BRATES

« Director of the Alibaba Entrepreneurs Fund in Hong Kong [l E BB & B A& ELES

« Chairman of the Board of Directors of Tai Kwun Culture and Arts Company Limited KEEX A BN BRATDEESTHE
« Chairman of the Executive Committee of the Hong Kong Chronicles Institute Z& A SR ONRITEET E/F

« Chairperson of the Hong Kong Council of Social Service &t & REHE T FE

Past experience B{E4EEH

« Convenor of the Non-Official Members of the Executive Council of the HKSAR The Honourable
BEEITHRITREFEETEEBEA Bernard Charnwut CHAN,

« Member of the Legislative Council (Insurance Functional Constituency) of the HKSAR GBM, GBS, JP
EEITHREIDEGHES (RIERAERT) BREBEE, KEMEE,

« Council Chair of Lingnan University $8m KEREZ EFE GBS, JP

« Chairman of the Council for Sustainable Development Al /& RES ST /F

« Chairman of the Antiquities Advisory Board tf¥)E55EE & T fE

« Chairman of the Advisory Committee on Revitalisation of Historic Buildings S& VB R REAHES G IE

» Chairman of the Standing Committee on Disciplined Services Salaries and Conditions of Service
CRAEFERRBREEBEESTER

» Chairman of the Standing Committee on Judicial Salaries and Conditions of Service

EIEANEHERBBREEBEEEGTR

Education £
« Pomona College in California I EEZANERE

For more details, please visit the
West Kowloon Cultural District website.
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Mr Henry FAN Hung-ling,
SBS, JP
SERRHIR ST, SBS, JP

Mr Glenn FOK
EEmEE

Titles and other major offices & #§IFNE {th F ERETE

Member of the Chief Executive's Council of Advisers on Innovation and Strategic Development
TRRERAHA RKE RERERS

Chairman of the Hospital Authority

EREEEIE

Board Member of the Hong Kong Financial Services Development Council
BECRERBEEFENE

Independent Non-Executive Director of Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited
FBEMERRAREIIFNTES

Independent Non-Executive Director of HKR International Limited
BEBAEEREEERAREIIIFNTES

Managing Director of Hong Kong Glory Limited

HABRABEEELRE

Chairman of the Fan Family Charitable Trust

SEREEETEETE

Past experience B{E4EER

Non-Official Member of the Executive Council of the HKSAR
BEEITHERTREFFETEE

Chairman of the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority
BHEIEAEESHAEERER

Chairman of the Standing Committee on Disciplined Services Salaries and Conditions of Service
LRAEHERRBRESBEETER

Non-Executive Director of the Securities and Futures Commission
BELAEEBEREEGENTES

Independent Non-Executive Director of the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited
BERGEMERITES

Member of the Exchange Fund Advisory Committee

INEESEAETEERE

Titles and other major offices & #FF1E fth = Z=0E75

 Board Member of the Hong Kong Financial Services Development Council &£ RISEREEERE

* Independent Non-Executive Director of China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited
FREIEEIRTT GEN) R BRRAREILFMITES

« Senior Consultant of Moelis & Company 355t B & R EaRS

« Senior Consultant to Gold Peak Industries (Holdings) Limited 11| T2 (55 AR A S EER-

* Member of the Board of Governors of the Hong Kong Philharmonic Society Limited

EEEZHEBRABDNEERHRE

Past experience @1 4ZEg

« Vice Chairman of UBS Corporate Client Services in Asia iR (b2 X RIS ERIEE

Head of Investment Banking Services and Joint Head of Corporate Finance of Schroders Asia Limited
BRDMNERAFRERITIREEENCEMEHEEE

Board Member of Bank of America (Asia) Limited Z£EI$R1T (Z2i) AR AR EEREHRE

Member of the Securities and Futures Commission Committee on Real Estate Investment Trusts
BERPEEERRZEGRMEREGETESZEEEE

Member of the Hang Seng Index Advisory Committee [E4 I8 B BERIZE 2 &S

Board Member of Trustees of United College of the Chinese University of Hong Kong &8 K LB S EFTiNE
Member of the Council of the Education University of Hong Kong B EH B ASREEHRE

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY FEAX K B EIEF
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Titles and other major offices & #TFl1E fth = EREFE

Member of the National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference £ BB EE

Member of the Legislative Council of the HKSAR (Sports, Performing Arts, Culture and Publication)
EEFITREILDEGHEE (B B2 - XUURERFTHEERR)

Vice President of the Fok Ying Tung Group &5 EIRI4E4;

Member of Hong Kong Art Development Council 8213 BFME

Member of the 11th China Federation of Literary and Art Circles Cooperation
FEXEEMEHEEE11EEZEREE

Executive Vice President of China Federation of Literary and Art Circles Hong Kong Member Association
FEXEEMAHEEESEERTELITR

Honorary Director of the Hong Kong International Music Festival & B[R 5 4848 E1EE

Adviser of the Association of Chinese Culture of Hong Kong & #FR# X (L AR & ERS

Vice President of the Sports Federation and Olympic Committee of Hong Kong, China
FEHESEEHEBRMNLTZEREIER

Vice Chairman of the Elite Sports Committee of the HKSAR Government 343 BT L EEHREESSEITE
Director of the Hong Kong Sports Institute &2 B 2 rEE

President of the Hong Kong Gymnastics Association FEIE#i2i2Ee e R

President of the Asian Electronic Sports Federation E | EFIEBHA S T/HE

Member of the Youth Development Commission of the HKSAR Government
EBRERNESERREEREE

Vice Chairman of the All-China Youth Federation FEE2EIE FE ST EIEE

Honorary Chairman of the YElites Association Z8& &£ @ ZLXF

* Consultant to the Hong Kong United Youth Association & 765 SR & EER

The Honourable Kenneth
FOK Kai-kong, JP
EREISEE, P

Titles and other major offices & #TF1Efth = Z0%FS

+ Member of the Town Planning Board iR EE &K S

* Council Member of the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology
BERRREREGNE

* Independent Non-Executive Director of Hongkong International Theme Parks Limited
BEERTELEARARE I FRITES

* Independent Non-Executive Director of Medialink Group Limited #33REEEBRABBIIIFNITES

» Chairman of the Accounting Advisory Board of the School of Business of the University of Hong Kong
BERERERSHRERNEES TR

* Fellow Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales, and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants

EEGILE KB TE A AR AT ERER

Mr Wilson FUNG Ying-wai,

Past experience @1 4EER MH
* Group Financial Controller of Jardine Matheson Limited 151 & AR A Bl S B TS AR IRRIRIE MH

* President of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants Z 8 & EIAE &R

* Founding President of the Hong Kong Business Accountants Association Z8R A Z: G ZAIEE R

« Chairman of the Board of Hong Kong Dance Company & & EEEEER 1%

* Member of the Hong Kong Productivity Council H84£E R ERBRE

» Member of the Insurance Agents Registration Board {RIGIEE L EE G M E

* Panel Member of the Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing (Financial Institutions) Review Tribunal
TERERAD TESSE (SRR BREIREE

 Non-Executive Director of the Financial Reporting Council BAFSERBIENITES

* Director of the Board of the Urban Renewal Fund TEEHESEETKE

For more details, please visit the

West Kowloon Cultural District website.
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Mr Andy HEI Kao-chiang
EERREE

Ms Tennessy HUI
Mei-sheung, MH, JP
FFEME Tt MH, JP

Titles and other major offices &1 E fth = ZR%IE

« Council Member of the Hong Kong Arts Development Council 52 EEAEES

« Trustee of Friends of Hong Kong Museum of Art 8 24T8E 2 KT A

» Non-Official Member of the Advisory Committee on Admission of Quality Migrants and Professionals
BWABSAT KEL BHEEGIFETHE

« Founding Chairman of the Hong Kong Antique and Art Galleries Association F#& & K ERAZAIEIFE

« Honorary Advisor of International Craftsmen Association BIFRIE A 177 & 4522 gARS

Past experience BT 4&5R

« Assisted Mr Robert H. Ellsworth, the late New York collector and dealer, in antique dealing and setting up the Chinese
Heritage Art Foundation in Hong Kong

BAEERELEBEANEER R A TTARBELREE - BEMESERIMERFEXY B EERES
« Initiated and organised the first edition of Fine Art Asia Bl|}fB155 &
« Founded Ink Asia, the world's first art fair dedicated to ink art Bt EREE L E KB AT ENBAIFEKEEE
* Staged a showcase booth of Fine Art Asia at the Masterpiece London art fair

REATEEERIECFERZETSR

Titles and other major offices & #TF1E fth = ZREFE

Member of the Liquor Licensing Board

B E

Member of the Hong Kong Examination and Assessment Authority

EEEARZEER

Lay Member of The Medical Council of Hong Kong

EERBEESRINES

Lay Person of the Chinese Medicine Practitioners Board of The Chinese Medicine Council of Hong Kong
REEBERZEghRARIMMT

Non-Official Member of the Assessment Committee for the Funding Scheme to Support Transitional Housing Projects

by Non-government Organisations

XEFBAHER TR EEEENEHBTEEEEFEANE

Chairman of the Fishermen Claims Appeal Board (Trawl Ban) and Fishermen Claims Appeal Board (Marine Works)

BERFEEL LFEES (36 MARFEEM LFEES (8F1E) £F

« Observer of the Independent Police Complaints Council

BUREETRERFEEGRES

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY FEAX K B EIEF
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Titles and other major offices & #Fl1E fth = EREFE

* Independent Non-Executive Director of CK Hutchison Holdings Limited
RIMEEEERAREILIIFNTES

* Independent Non-Executive Director of Swire Pacific Limited
AEBRHBRASEIIFNTES

¢ Independent Non-Executive Director of MTR Corporation Limited
BEHRERATEIFNTES

* Vice Patron of The Community Chest of Hong Kong
BEEAGHESLERIER

* Fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers
BERTEEEREL

Past experience B{E4EER

Ms Rose LEE Wai-mun, JP
* Vice Chairman and Chief Executive of Hang Seng Bank Limited =Tt JP

[EERITHERAREIEERFITBHARH

* Group General Manager of HSBC Holdings plc
ESERERA B SEERLE

* Director of The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
BB LEEERTHERARES

* Chairman of the Board of Governors of Hang Seng University of Hong Kong
BREERERESERE

* Vice President of The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers
BERTESAER

* Member of The Community Chest of Hong Kong and Deputy Chairman of its Executive Committee
BEAGEEERAETHITEEGRIERF

* Member of the Financial Services Advisory Committee of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council

EREDRRPERRGHAZEGERR

Titles and other major offices & #Fl1E fth = ERKFE

* General Secretary of Culture Power
XHHEWER

* Co-Chairperson of Cultural and Art Committee of Hong Kong Women Professionals & Entrepreneurs Association
BELIBMREEABHEX M BNEEEHELTE

« Advisor, Our Hong Kong Foundation
BEEEBEESER

* Advisor of Hong Kong Guoshu Association
BEBERTEERER

* Member of Hong Kong Public Governance Association
BEALERBEENE

* Member of Environment and Conservation Fund Committee
HERBAREESESEEE

* Member of Working Group on External Lighting
PINE TR NERE

* Member of Appeal Tribunal Panel (Buildings)
BEYRG LIRERE (BEY) K8

Ms Yolanda NG Yuen-ting,
MH
{RgRiE L, MH

For more details, please visit the
West Kowloon Cultural District website.
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Miss Dee POON Chu-ying
BERATL

Ms Winnie TAM Wan-chi,
SBS, SC, JP
Bz,
SBS, SC, JP

Titles and other major offices &1 E fth = ZR%ETE

Awards and recognition $21E & EF

Titles and other major offices & &1 E fth = ZH%ETE

.

.

.

Past experience BE4EEH

.

.

Managing Director of Brands and Distribution at Esquel Group

EEEE MR R E AR

Member of the International Advisory Committee of Harvard University's Asia Center (Cambridge, MA)
MHASENFOEREREEE (BiEAZENRIET) B8

Member of the Family Advisory Council of the Ownership Project at Oxford Said

S EARBEERERMREE R EEREEENE

Member of the Global Steering Committee of Social Entrepreneurship to Spur Health (Hong Kong and London)
HELERBERREIEERE Y (FENMB BB

Member of the Asia Corporate Leadership Council of the Conference Board
HRAUGEBSETMNEEEEREENE

Member of the Board of Directors of the Esquel - Y.L. Yang Education Foundation
EGTTREREESRESENE

Member of the International Council of the Tate (London)

EERB R ENEEREEEHNE

Member of the International Council of The Museum of Modern Art (New York)
EEAHNRA BN EYEEREREEERE

Member of the Board of Directors of the China Arts Foundation (Beijing and New York)
FEENESE CRIIAELN) EFEHRE

Member of the Board of Directors of the Asia Art Archive

ENEN R EREREFERE

2014 Young Global Leader by the World Economic Forum
2014 R RBEIRE FEM
Fellow of the Aspen Institute’s China Fellowship Program

P AR ER LA IS

Recorder of the Court of First Instance of the High Court of the HKSAR
BENITRESHERRNEEREEE

Chairman of the Communications Authority

BAEBEERER

Member of the Law Reform Commission

FRENEEEERE

Member of the Board of Governors of the Hong Kong Philharmonic Society Limited
BEEEXHEERARNEERHKE

Member of the Chief Executive's Council of Advisers on Innovation and Strategic Development
TRRERFM RS RERENS

Member of the Independent Commission on Remuneration for Members of the Executive Council and the Legislature,
and Officials under the Political Appointment System of the HKSAR

EEFTHERITREHRE A EERBUAEAHEEEIEEIZEENE
Chairman of Des Voeux Chambers &= A2 EE T E/E

Chairman of the Hong Kong Bar Association & AR A S E/FE

Chairman of the Hong Kong Advocacy Training Council &8\ 5HE | S & £ fE

Member of the Hong Kong Tourism Board &8 ki EFBHRE

Member of the ICAC Advisory Committee on Corruption B A B E sHELXHEEGEE
Member of the Council and the Court of Hong Kong Baptist University 82 @ KEREG LABZTHRE

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY FEAX K B EIEF
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EiARS

* Has worked in senior executive positions in the property development and investment sector for over 30 years
EHERRIIRER REE0FSRITHRABLSE

» Founding Member and second President of the Hong Kong Institute of Housing
BERECELSGAEEENE_EER

* Member of the Commercial Properties Committee of the Hong Kong Housing Authority
BEEEZEEHEETNERS

* Member of the Vetting Committee of the Professional Services Development Assistance Scheme
HERBRREHETEZESREE

» Board Member of the Urban Renewal Authority
TEEZFES

* Member of the Board of the Airport Authority Hong Kong
BEERSEERESENE

Titles and other major offices &I Efth = ZREFE

Mr Peter TO, BBS
111G 5E4. BBS

» School Manager of Chi Lin Buddhist Secondary School
BEEETERE

» School Manager of HKICC Lee Shau Kee School of Creativity
BEIEABERRE

» School Manager of Diocesan Girls' School
RETERRE

* Honorary President of Youth Outreach
HEHREER

* President of the Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups
EESFHEER

* Member of the Hospital Authority
EIREEBHRE

Expertise 5%

Mr WAN Man-yee, BBS, JP
BX{ESELE, BBS, JP

Registered Professional Surveyor (General Practice)

SEMEEAEE (EXAE)

For more details, please visit the
West Kowloon Cultural District website.
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Members (Public Officers)
BB (ABAE)

Secretary for Culture, Sports and Tourism of the HKSAR Government
EENITRERNXLEERRERRR

Past experience @E4EES

1992-2012 Administrative Officer in the HKSAR Government
EBRTREBRBBEE
Worked in a number of bureaux and departments, including the Food and Health Bureau, the Home
Affairs Bureau, the Kowloon City District Office and the Hong Kong Economic and Trade Office in Sydney
BEZERKBRIIIRS - BERYRTLER REEBR - ERRBEEEAREERTELEES
WER

2012-2017 Under Secretary for Education of the HKSAR Government
EERITREBREEREIBR

2017-2022 Secretary for Education of the HKSAR Government

The Honourable Kevin HEFITHREEAEERBER

YEUNG Yun-hung, JP

SE#EE, JP

Secretary for Development of the HKSAR Government
EENITRERNERERR

Past experience B1E4EES

2005-2008 Deputy Secretary for Education of the HKSAR Government
HERITHRERNSERERER

2008-2010 Deputy Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury (Treasury) of the HKSAR Government
BEFITREBNMKEBLEBERNER (EH)

2010-2012 Private Secretary to the Chief Executive of the HKSAR
EEGITHREITRREDAWS

2012-2017 Director of Lands of the HKSAR Government
EERITREBNEBESER

2017-2022 Permanent Secretary for Development (Planning and Lands) of the HKSAR Government

Im?NHj:W'ab'e Bernadette ESBTHBRS RS AWER (REIRE)

HERLL, JP

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY AL B EER
ANNUAL REPORT 2021 / 22 A4 3R



Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury of the HKSAR Government

BEENNTHERNMEEERERRRR

Titles and other major offices R #TF1E fth = Z0%FS
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EiARS

Chairman of the Kowloon-Canton Railway Corporation
NEHBRABER

Non-Executive Director of the Board of MTR Corporation Limited
EEHRARADIFRTES

Member of the Board of Hong Kong Airport Authority
BERWSEEREFTNE

Past experience i@ 4E5H

1999-2003 Administrative Officer in the HKSAR Government

EERITRERNBBEME

Served in the Economic Development Branch, the Office of the Government of the HKSAR

Government in Beijing and the Home Affairs Department

The Honourable Christopher
HUI Ching-yu, JP

SFIEFFLE, JP

BHARICERRER - S8STREBAEHL N E R REEBES RS

2006-2018
REBRZATIERE13F
2019-2020
EEERBRRE TR

Education 2

Worked for the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited for over 13 years

Executive Director of Hong Kong Financial Services Development Council

Bachelor and Master (Hon) Degrees in Philosophy, Politics and Economics from the University of Oxford

EEIFEREHE AR BEREES T HET
Master of Business Administration Degree from INSEAD
INSEAD T BT 241

Attended the Stanford Executive Programme (SEP)
SEFHERSITRABEIIERE

For more details, please visit the

West Kowloon Cultural District website. L)
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Membership of the Board of the West Kowloon Cultural District Authority (2021/22)

AAXNVEERRESERERE (2021/22)

CHAIRMAN /&
The Honourable Henry TANG Ying-yen, GBM, GBS, JP
ERF L, KEFBE, GBS, JP

VICE CHAIRMAN ElIE/E
The Honourable Ronald ARCULLI, GBM, GBS, JP
BEBSSE, KEFBE, GBS, JP

MEMBERS (NON-PUBLIC OFFICERS) .8 (JEAKAS)
Mr Benjamin CHA Yiu-chung
TIRPEE

The Honourable Bernard Charnwut CHAN, GBM, GBS, JP
EREBER, KEFIENE, GBS, JP

Mr Henry FAN Hung-ling, SBS, JP
SEBERSE A, SBS, JP

Mr Glenn FOK

The Honourable Kenneth FOK Kai-kong, JP (since 25 February 2022)
EREIES, JP ((EHAR20225F2H25H1E)

Mr Wilson FUNG Ying-wai, MH
FHTIESEE, MH

Mr Andy HEI Kao-chiang
BERRSEE

Ms Tennessy HUI Mei-sheung, MH, JP
FFEE L, MH, JP

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY FEAX K B EIEF
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Ms Rose LEE Wai-mun, JP
FEHLL, P

Ir Dr the Honourable LO Wai-kwok, GBS, MH, JP
(until 22 October 2021)

EEEES, GBS, MH, JP (1E#iZE20215F10822H)

Ms Yolanda NG Yuen-ting, MH
{RYEE+, MH

Ms Dee POON Chu-ying
ERRET L

Ms Winnie TAM Wan-chi, SBS, SC, JP
Bz 4+, SBS, SC, JP

Mr Peter TO, BBS
1RSS4, BBS

Mr WAN Man-yee, BBS, JP
SBXESTAE, BBS, JP



GOVERNANCE REPORT

ERARE
MEMBERS (PUBLIC OFFICERS) N8 (2AAS) The Honourable Christopher HUI Ching-yu, JP
The Honourable Caspar TSUI Ying-wai, JP (until 30 January 2022) Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury
Secretary for Home Affairs FFIEF 54, JP
RS, P (EHAZE2022F1H30H) REBREBRRR
REEBRERER
AlternateZ#: Mr Joseph CHAN Ho-lim, JP
Alternate 24 Mrs Cherry TSE LING Kit-ching, GBS, JP Under Secretary for Financial Services and the
(until 11 October 2021) Treasury
Permanent Secretary for Home Affairs BRISERSTE, JP
$PERE L+, GBS, JP ((E#AZ20214E10811H) EEBREBREIRR
REEBEEANER
EX-OFFICIO MEMBER EfARE

Mr Joe WONG Chi-cho, JP (since 12 October 2021)
Permanent Secretary for Home Affairs

HEHS%E, JP ((EHiH20214108128iE)
RBREBREEEIWER

The Honourable Michael WONG Wai-lun, JP
Secretary for Development
HEMmAELE, JP

ZRERER

Alternate® 4 : Mr LIU Chun-san, JP
Under Secretary for Development
BRI, JP
ZRFEREER

Mr LAM Sai-hung, GBS, JP (until 7 October 2021)
Permanent Secretary for Development (Works)
S GBS, JP ((E8IZE2021410A78H)
BREBEIWVER (IH)

Mr Ricky LAU Chun-kit, JP (since 8 October 2021)
Permanent Secretary for Development (Works)
BHREESEAE, JP ((EEAE20214510A8AK)
BREBEIWER (IH)

Mrs Betty FUNG CHING Suk-yee, GBS (until 7 June 2021)
Acting Chief Executive Officer, WKCDA

B L, GBS (fEHiZE202146A7H)
AAXNEEEBEETBUES

Mrs Betty FUNG CHING Suk-yee, GBS (since 15 October 2021)
Chief Executive Officer, WKCDA

BIEREL L, GBS (fE#IF20214 108 15HiE)

BN EREBEFITEHER
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Roles of Senior Management
SARETE A\ SHEE

Mrs Betty FUNG CHING Suk-yee, GBS
HERELZL, GBS

Chief Executive Officer

TR

Mrs Betty Fung Ching Suk-yee has overall responsibility for the Authority’s strategic direction and
day-to-day operations, working with a strong team to deliver the visionary WKCD project. She had
been on secondment from the HKSAR Government to the WKCDA as Acting Chief Executive Officer
between December 2020 and June 2021 before assuming the post of Chief Executive Officer of
WKCDA on 15 October 2021.

BEAMELIEREEEERNERSHNAEELE  HEXNANEREFLRE - ZEEESHE
EBNFANIER - 117420205123 £202156F6 A B BH A THREBFEAEZERERREZETHE
# 0 2021510 A 15 B EEE BT -

Ms Wendy GAN Kim-see

et
Deputy Chief Executive Officer (District Development)

BIfTRAES (RIEER)

Ms Wendy Gan Kim-see oversees the development and delivery of the infrastructure, arts and
cultural facilities as well as district-level branding, marketing and facilities management in WKCD.
She also has lead responsibility for formulating the overarching strategies for driving business
development ranging from HOR to RDE facilities of the District. She assumed the post of Deputy
Chief Executive Officer (District Development) of WKCDA on 25 October 2021.

HEetZtESEERMANERER « MtBEIMESTERBRNERANELE  URESZEBENTS
HENREEE - BLLRBENHITEERE  KBERNNEE  BAENEES - URTE B8
FUERERRIER R - #hH20215610 8258 HEEBREITHRAR (BEHEE) -

Ms Eva KWONG
EBECIRZ L
Chief Corporate Services Officer

BRI EESAR

Ms Eva Kwong is responsible for the overall corporate services of the Authority, covering three
departments in the Division, namely Human Resources Department, General Procurement
and Administration Department and Innovation and Technology Department, in addition to the
remuneration and planning function as well as housekeeping the Communications and Public Affairs
Department. Ms Kwong joined WKCDA in June 2010 as Executive Director of Human Resources. She
was appointed Executive Director of Human Resources and Administration in May 2016 and Chief
Corporate Services Officer in January 2019. She also served as Acting Chief Executive Officer of
WKCDA from 19 June 2021 to 14 October 2021.

BERZTHEEERNEBERE  SFEANER - FEREEBTENAN RRREL =@ -
WESHFHRESNEAR ARERINABEEEE - BLER201056 AMAEERF  EEAD
ERITHRAE » 2016 F5 A BZERTHREANERITHAEE » WHR2019F 1 BEZ TR ERFHES
FEHEES - IR 20216 5 19H 2105 14B HEEEREETHES, -
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Ms Suhanya RAFFEL
ETRLt

Museum Director, M+
M+EEEEER

Ms Suhanya Raffel leads M+ as a whole and oversees all museum activities, including acquisitions,
programming, collections care, development, research, institutional collaborations, and museum
operations. She joined M+ as Executive Director in November 2016 and was appointed Museum
Director of M+ in January 2019.

ELZRLZLEEM+HER - RINSHBEYERESKENEE  BEERER  KEREK - BN
B BEEWMRE  HESENEYEEE - HRN2016F 1M1 B MAERER » EEMHTBEE - 20195
1AEZEAMHEMEER °

Dr Louis NG Chi-wa

REEFLT

Museum Director, Hong Kong Palace Museum
BEREXWEYEER

Dr Louis Ng was appointed Museum Director of the Hong Kong Palace Museum in August 2019.
He is responsible for developing the museum'’s strategic vision, exhibitions and programming, and
managing its collections, operations, and educational and audience-building strategies.
REEFLTEERREENEULENEERNKBES - RENEGE - SEEH - €2 - ZERE
BAREREE o b1E2019F8 BB ZERBEBHE LB EER -

Mr Paul TAM

FIEREE

Executive Director, Performing Arts
RESBMITRARE

Mr Paul Tam leads the Performing Arts Division to deliver world-class programmes and performing
arts venues and facilities in the District. He is responsible for steering the strategic planning
and sustainable development of these venues and oversees their business direction, artistic
development, venue operations, technical and production, facilities planning and delivery. He assumed
the post of Executive Director, Performing Arts of WKCDA on 2 March 2020.

EIREEFEREEMNE - EBANREEERENZEENG B RiGH - WESHREANTESHT
RENRERENTSERRE  EEREBHERRRS  BIRE  SiEE - BITEEURSE
FESREIFHER © tbFR2020E3 A2 R EHEEERFREEMITHMEE -

West Kowloon Cultural District website.
MRTRESHEN - BEEEASESS - (8]
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Ms Amy Maria TAM
EREt
General Counsel

KRR

Ms Amy Tam oversees the Legal and Secretarial Division and manages the legal, Board Secretariat,
and insurance functions of the Authority. She joined WKCDA as General Counsel and was appointed
Secretary of the Board of the Authority in August 2018.

BREZTEELIASHEIREERNERE EEEEEERNEE  EERUBERREEH - ity
R2018F8AMABER » EEAEERER  YEZEREEREZR/UE -

Ms Carmen LEE
FERXLL

Chief Financial Officer
BIE MR

Ms Carmen Lee oversees the financial planning and accounting, investment, financing, treasury and
external audit matters across the Authority. She also oversees the project procurement and control
of all planned arts and cultural facilities, and PIW entrusted by the Government, across the District.
Ms Lee is also responsible for the Authority’s Environmental, Social and Governance strategy and
reporting. Ms Lee joined WKCDA in July 2020 as General Manager, Finance and was appointed
Acting Chief Financial Officer of WKCDA in August 2021. She assumed the post of Chief Financial
Officer of WKCDA on 1 March 2022.

ZRNLZTESEERNUKRERET  £E - BlE EXEERIINIENEE - TLTMEEE
BREFNCRINEMSULERE URBFEZETNARERERIRNEERBEREESHE  UR
BE - HEMCEEARFHRERTE - TLTR2020F7 8 MAEERBIETHKELE - 142021
FOARZTAEERBEEREMSEE - #mH2022F3 81 HEHTEER B EMISHEE -

Mr Sunny CHAN Wing-chung
BREKEESE A

Chief Projects Officer
BELEEE

Mr Sunny Chan leads the Projects Division and is responsible for the design, construction and
management of all works projects in WKCD. He and his teams oversee the project implementation
covering design approval and construction delivery of all planned arts and cultural facilities, and
public infrastructure works entrusted by the Government, across the District. He assumed the post
of Chief Projects Officer of WKCDA on 24 November 2021.

BRPKBBAAEETRE  EERAMCERE ITREE MR - BENEEER © RESHEBAER

EEEBRESMLERE TRE B (RS TIEE  SEE B a0 R et B - )
RBFFrETN AL EMER T o f1H2021F11 A4 B RHEESER EELRLE -
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COMMITTEES AND PANELS

Functions and Conduct of Business

Seven committees have been established under the Board - the Executive
Committee (ExCom), Audit Committee (AC), Development Committee
(DC), Investment Committee (IC), Performing Arts Committee (PAC), Public
Private Partnership Projects Committee (PPP Projects Committee) and
Remuneration Committee (RC) — along with the Consultation Panel (CP)
and the Commercial Letting Panel (CLP). In conducting their business, the
committees generally follow the Standing Orders and Code of Conduct
adopted by the Board. Separately, CP has adopted a set of guidelines
governing the conduct of its business. CP is required to hold at least one
meeting a year, and its meetings must be open to the public.

Executive Committee
Key Functions

ExCom was established in February 2013 under the Board. It sits above the
other committees. Its key functions are:

¢ To provide a steer to the Management of WKCDA on pertinent
issues relating to the WKCD project, including but not limited to the
overall development programme, information and communication
technologies strategy, public relations and marketing, corporate
governance, planning for the operation of facilities and business
development, risk management as well as other overall policies and
measures;

* To facilitate coordination of the activities among the various Board
committees;

» To oversee the formulation and implementation of the annual Business
Plan and rolling three-year Corporate Plan of the WKCDA;

e To oversee the financial position of WKCDA in connection with the
WKCD project and provide guidance to the Management in respect of
the funding strategy;

* To be the approving authority in matters of financial management,
business planning, budget control, procurement and any other areas
delegated by the WKCDA Board from time to time;

¢ To review and endorse WKCDA's sustainability policies and practices;
and

e To perform any other functions as may be delegated to it by the
Authority or assigned to it by the Board in accordance with the WKCDA
Ordinance.

ExCom membership consisted of the chairpersons of the various
committees (except AC), the Boards of M Plus Museum Limited and Hong
Kong Palace Museum Limited, representative from the Home Affairs
Bureau, and the Chief Executive Officer or Acting Chief Executive Officer of
WKCDA.

Summary of Work Done

ExCom held seven meetings during the reporting year.
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Membership of the Executive Committee (2021/22)
TRZEEMEHE(2021/22)

CHAIRMAN Ef&

The Honourable Ronald ARCULLI, GBM, GBS, JP
Chairman of the Development Committee
BEESEA, REFIZIE, GBS, JP
BREESRTR

MEMBERS B8

Mr Benjamin CHA Yiu-chung

Chairman of the Investment Committee
BiEhsid

REZERTR

The Honourable Bernard Charnwut CHAN, GBM, GBS, JP
Chairman of the Board of Hong Kong Palace Museum Limited
BRE BEE, REFTE, GBS, JP

BRWEX A EYERRARESRERE

Mr Henry FAN Hung-ling, SBS, JP
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
SEISHR ST, SBS, JP

FTNEEEERE

Ms Winnie TAM Wan-chi, SBS, SC, JP
Chairman of the Performing Arts Committee
B Z 4, SBS, SC, JP
REBNEEGER

Mr WAN Man-yee, BBS, JP

Chairman of the Public Private Partnership Projects Committee
RSERSTAE, BBS, JP

AIERIFEEEEE LR

Mrs Betty FUNG CHING Suk-yee, GBS

Acting Chief Executive Officer, WKCDA (until 7 June 2021)
Chairman of the Board of Blue Poles Limited (until 7 June 2021)
IR L, GBS

AAXNEEERERTREAR ((EHHE202146A7H)

Blue Poles Limited EE/F T /% ((EEAE202146H7H)
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Mrs Betty FUNG CHING Suk-yee, GBS

Chief Executive Officer, WKCDA (since 15 October 2021)
Chairman of the Board of Blue Poles Limited (since 15
October 2021)

FHERELZ L, GBS

AN EEERERTEAR

({£EHBEH2021410A 15 H#E)

Blue Poles Limited EERB &

({£HAE2021410A 15Hi2)

The Honourable Victor LO Chung-wing, GBM, GBS, JP
Chairman of the Board of M Plus Museum Limited
Chairman of the M+ Acquisitions Committee
FEIRERSTAE, KEFIZNE, GBS, JP

M Plus Museum Limited EE/5EfF

M+ BERESETRE

Public Officers 2N &

Secretary for Home Affairs or Representative from Home
Affairs Bureau

RBREBREBERIHAR



Development Committee
Key Functions

DC was established by the Board under Section 11 of the WKCDA
Ordinance to deal with matters relating to the planning, development and
implementation of arts and cultural facilities and infrastructural facilities. Its
key functions are:

* To advise the Board on the overall policies and strategies relating to the
project planning and development of the District;

* To recommend to the Board a Programme of Implementation for
individual building and infrastructure projects for the District;

» To advise the Board on the viability of proposed facilities, including
proposals for defining project scope, engineering feasibility and cost in
order to ensure optimal utilisation of resources; and

*  To monitor the construction progress of arts and cultural facilities, the
hiring and management of consultants and contractors, and related
contractual matters for the planning, design and construction of both
individual projects and the District as a whole.

Summary of Work Done

DC held six meetings and considered by way of circulation during the
reporting year to deliberate on the following matters:

Procurement and Management of Consultancies

» Consultancy Agreement for Integrated Basement and Underground
Road in Zone 2 — Approval to Include and Exercise a Further Provisional
Sum for the Resident Site Staff for Zones 2B and 2C Piling Works

¢ Detailed Design Consultancy for the Integrated Basement and
Underground Road in Zones 2B & 2C — Update on Negotiation Results
based on Modified Scope to suit the Developer-led Approach

*  Consultancy Services for the Design and Construction of the Lyric
Theatre Complex — Endorsement for Instructing Additional Services

¢ P32 Artist Hostel/Residence Project — Additional Quantity Surveying
Consultancy Services for Modified Arrangement for the P32
Development

* Lead Consultancy Services for Construction Phase of Lyric Theatre
Complex and Extended Basement Project — Updated Proposal to
Enhance On-Site Services with Dedicated Design Liaison Resources

e Lyric Theatre Complex and Extended Basement in Zone 3B — Additional
Site-based Resources for Quantity Surveying Consultancy Services for
L2 Works Contract

e Consultancy Services for the Design and Construction of the Lyric
Theatre Complex of the West Kowloon Cultural District - Endorsement
for Instructing Additional Services of Provision of Certified Demarcation
Drawings for the Artist Square Towers Project

* M+ Museum Project Quantity Surveying Consultancy Agreement —
Approval for Additional Services

¢ Kowloon Park and China Ferry Terminal Footbridge Consultancy
Services for Design and Construction — Cancellation of Consultancy
Services Tender

GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Implementation

Foundation, Excavation and Lateral Support Works Contract for
the Integrated Basement and Underground Road in Zone 2A —
Endorsement for Implementing Scope Changes to Prepare for Parallel
Approach Programme

Foundation, Excavation and Lateral Support Works Contract for the
Integrated Basement and Underground Road in Zone 2A — Approval to
Exercise the Provisional Quantities for Reinforcement

Progress Update on Irregularities at West Kowloon Station Box in Zone
2A

Construction of the Lyric Theatre Complex — Risks and Technical
Difficulties

Public Infrastructure Works for Phase 1 Development of West Kowloon
Cultural District (Package 1) —Mediation with the Contractor of Museum
Drive

Public Infrastructure Works for Phase 1 Development of West Kowloon
Cultural District (Package 1) — Arbitration with the Contractor of
Museum Drive

Austin Road Pedestrian Linkage System Works Contract — Approval for
Extension of Time

WKCDA Head Office Fit-Out Works Contract — Approval for Extension
of Time

Public Infrastructure Works Southern Landing Facility — Proposal to
Proceed with Procurement of Works Contract

Tree Preservation and Removal Proposal in Zones 2A, 2B and 2C for the
West Kowloon Cultural District, KIL 11260

Proposed Surrender of Land Stratum with Part of the Existing
Footbridge Structure (known as Artist Square Bridge) within the
Surrender Upon Demand Areas of Kowloon Inland Lot No. 11260

Key Performance Indicators — Results for the reporting year 2020/21
Key Performance Indicators for the reporting year 2022/23

Business Plan/Corporate Plan — from the reporting years 2022/23 to
2024/25

Regular Reports

®

Projects Division Progress Report
Construction Safety Progress Report

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY AL B EERF
ANNUAL REPORT 2021/ 22 Bk &

I

BB R

2ABAREHIE K TTEEME RIS EAE AT TES
W EEEEEENEE (AU TR EEER)

2ABAREHE R T TERBEREREARAETIES

N-BHERMSNEEHE

2AEFEN BRI BREBRIRIER

BERBR GBS — RN AT

BAAXKES 1 PERALERERTE (HA1) —EiEY
BRI RE TR

BAAXCES 1 HERALERERTE(ES) —HEiEY
BRI AR RET R

MLAETAERARTIEAN —ERTHNEH

EEFERRETREGH - ERTHNEI

VHERERTERESFRE - ETIEGORENE
FENXKE (FLEEPIHEER S5 112605%) 2A ~ 2BFI2CERIAR
BIIBERER

FUBEPIHBER S5 112605 EE R R EHEN N RBETAKIE
B (B TEMESRR.) FITEN LR R

‘o

FEEBISIZE— 20202 1 REFEMNER
2022/23BEFENFEERIEER
HEI5ETE] BRI —2022/23F 2024/ 25 REFE

TR E

TREREERS
BETSERRE



GOVERNANCE REPORT

EiARS

Membership of the Development Committee (2021/22)
BRZEEME®E(2021/22)

CHAIRMAN E/&

The Honourable Ronald ARCULLI, GBM, GBS, JP
BB, KEFIZNE, GBS, JP

MEMBERS F&

Ms Tennessy HUI Mei-sheung, MH, JP Prof Raymond FUNG Wing-kee, JP
FFSEME L4, MH, JP KBS, JP

Ir Dr the Honourable LO Wai-kwok, GBS, MH, JP (until 22 October 2021) Ir Enoch LAM Tin-sing, SBS
EfEEEE, GBS, MH, JP (f£HAZE2021410822H) MRETIZEM SBS

Ms Yolanda NG Yuen-ting, MH Mr Christopher LAW, JP

{EgEE L, MH kL, 0P

Mr Peter TO, BBS Prof Eric MA Siu-cheung, GBS, JP
MG, BBS BHBEHUR, GBS, JP

Mr WAN Man-yee, BBS, JP Public Officers NEEA S

R &S, BBS, JP

Representative from Home Affairs Bureau

RREBREAE

Representative from Development Bureau

BREAR

Representative from the Office of the Government Chief
Information Officer
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Membership of the Performing Arts Committee
Key Functions

PAC comprises members from a broad spectrum of professional fields,
including the arts, business, legal and academic sectors. PAC, with
its members' diverse expertise and knowledge, assists and makes
recommendations to the WKCDA Board in various specialised areas
relating to the implementation of the WKCD project.

The key functions of PAC are:

* To formulate the vision and mission of PA Division of WKCDA for
approval by the WKCDA Board and to oversee the mode of governance
of the PA Division; and

* Torecommend the strategies, policies and guidelines in relation to the
PA Division to the WKCDA Board for approval.

Summary of Work Done
PAC held six meetings during the reporting year.

Devised by PA Division, the Business Plan and Corporate Plan were
briefed to PAC. After thorough deliberation on core items, including key
strategic direction, key assumptions, priorities and initiatives, programming
strategies, as well as proposed funding, capital expenditures and staffing
for PA Division, PAC endorsed the Business Plan for 2022/23 and Corporate
Plan for 2022/23 to 2024/25.

During the reporting year, PAC looked into the marketing campaign adopted
by the Management for the launch of the Performing Arts Season 2021/22
and provided suggestions on enhancing its outreach and visibility to a wider
audience. PAC's views were also sought for the business development
of PA Division - including the donation funds launch and framework of
Performing Arts patron/membership scheme — and the Performing Arts
venue hiring strategy framework for 2022/23.

PAC also provided input on the development of the Music Centre Acoustic
Brief. The Music Centre Working Group, formed by PAC, had put forward
recommendations for the Music Centre Acoustic Brief and the project
to PAC for discussion. The Music Centre Acoustic Brief was finalised and
endorsed by PAC in the reporting year.

Apart from the Music Centre, PAC was regularly briefed on the development
of LTC and shared its views on the project’'s design and construction
progress, acoustic optimisation, as well as partnership framework. For
the LTC partnership framework, PAC shared its views on the artistic and
partnership strategy, business and operational aspects, as well as potential
benefits brought by the partnership to the community.

PAC received regular briefings on the operations of PA Division in various
aspects, including strategic plan updates, programming, venue hiring, as
well as finance.

Formed under PAC, the Xiqu Centre Advisory Panel advises the
Management on matters relating to strategy and policy development for
the operation of the Xiqu Centre. The Panel held four meetings during the
reporting year. It gave advice on Xiqu Centre's programmes, operations,
facilities management, shop rental, marketing, venue hire, ticketing
arrangements, as well as collaboration and partnerships with stakeholders.
Member list and new terms of appointments of the Advisory Panel were
also endorsed during the reporting year.
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Membership of the Performing Arts Committee (2021/22)
REBNEEFMERE(2021/22)

CHAIRMAN E/&

Ms Winnie TAM Wan-chi, SBS, SC, JP
EZ 3+, SBS, SC, JP
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MEMBERS R &

Board Members EEFHRE
Mr Glenn FOK

Mr Wilson FUNG Ying-wai, MH
FHR{ESEAE, MH

Mr Andy HEI Kao-chiang
EEIREE

Ms Yolanda NG Yuen-ting, MH
Az L, MH

Ms Dee POON Chu-ying
EERTL

Mr WAN Man-yee, BBS, JP

BX &AL, BBS, JP

Non-Board Members
Prof Anna CHAN Chung-ying
BRARIRZUS

Mr Raymond CHENG Siu-hong
BUNRFEE

Ms Winsome CHOW
JEEUhscn

Mr JAT Sew-tong, SBS, SC, JP
EIRES . SBS, SC, JP

Dr LAM Fung
ME-LT

Mr Gus LEE
=S

Prof Gabriel LEUNG, GBS, JP
R EHIF, GBS, JP

Mr SE-TO Yok (LOONG Koon-tin), MH
BB (BEX) %4 MH

Ms Olivia YAN
MEKiEL

Dr Frankie YEUNG Wai-shing, BBS, MH, JP
15 fEiiE L, BBS, MH, JP

Public Officers
Representative from Home Affairs Bureau

RREBRAE

Representative from Leisure and Cultural Services

Department
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Membership of the Xiqu Centre Advisory Panel (2021/22)
EEETh DRV R S 8 (2021/22)

CHAIRMAN Ef&

Dr Frankie YEUNG Wai-shing, BBS, MH, JP
I{EHIEL, BBS, MH, JP

MEMBERS (&
Dr Estella CHAM LAI Suk-ching Public Officers 2\ A S
HENEE LT

Representative from Home Affairs Bureau

Mrs Eva CHENG LI Kam-fun, JP RREHBRR

BziRiyut, JP

Representative from Leisure and Cultural Services
Department

RERXNEBZRR

Dr LEE Siu-yan
/I EEL

Ms Candice LEUNG Wai-yee
PELH+ Executive Director, Performing Arts, WKCDA

BAAXKL R EEFHRBEMTEHRE

Mr LIU Kwok-sum

BERELE Artistic Director, Performing Arts, WKCDA
BAAXKREERREEMRE

Ms NG May-ying

RERLE

Mr SE-TO Yok (LOONG Koon-tin), MH
BEfENB (BEEX) 54, MH

Ms Winnie TAM Wan-chi, SBS, SC, JP
B2 Lt, SBS,SC, JP

Ms YIP Chung-man, BBS
Tz t, BBS

Mr YUEN Siu-fai, BBS, BH
FIkiEse 4, BBS, BH
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Remuneration Committee
Key Functions

The key functions of RC are:

* To make recommendations to the Board on organisational structure
and policies relating to staffing, remuneration, employment, discipline
and dismissal, with reference to the Authority's overall goals and
objectives;

* To make recommendations to the Board on the determination of terms
and conditions for employment of employees, including the provision
and maintenance of any schemes for the payment of pensions,
gratuities and retirement benefits to employees, former employees or
their dependants;

* To make recommendations to the Board on any other matters
relating to the remuneration, allowances or benefits made available to
employees, former employees or their dependants referred or assigned
to it by the Board;

» To review and make recommendations to the Board on changes in
salaries and terms and conditions of employment; and

* To perform any other functions as may be delegated to it by the
Authority or assigned to it by the Board in accordance with the WKCDA
Ordinance.

Summary of Work Done

RC held six meetings and reviewed 15 papers during the reporting year.
Among the most significant of its activities, RC deliberated on the following
issues.

Enhancing the Organisation Structure of WKCDA

RC made recommendations to the Board on the new organisation
structure of WKCDA, which would enable streamlining of functions and
responsibilities with clear lines of command while enhancing the internal
checks and balances of the Authority. In the new structure, divisions and
departments were grouped under three main functions, including Arts
and Culture, District Development as well as Corporate and Governance,
to create better functional synergies and achieve higher organisational
effectiveness. RC also endorsed the establishment of a new Business
Development Division to strengthen the Authority’s capability and
formulate the strategy to generate steady income streams from the
tangible and intangible assets of the District and the creation of senior
executive positions, including the newly appointed Deputy Chief Executive
Officer (District Development).

GOVERNANCE REPORT

EiARS

=SS
E R
FMER BT EHAERE

. REEERNEEEEZENEN  MABEEREEATE
B EFHE - A £ETHRBENEE  OEERRM
e

«  BBETRENERBGR  BERMHRMEFEACES - 8l
BERHERZEAZMBARE - AMBEFORAREFBIE
g mEFRREES

« BHEERENSERMEMERARERES - fiREHIER
BEANREHFM  RPHENEE - AEFRRMEE

o BUTREB(ENAXKEEERKF)HEEREBERNES
HEIREOEMIEHRAE -

Trass

FHNESENBEEERITT ARG  LEBT150XMH -
FHEESEESINTERESRE

B EEERAMLEE

FWEE G EERNFTABABAERRRLER - TR
BT BENEEEBRENRBREAMSUEE - EEROMN
ERHUET G ERRE - BN - REMEMITHEALEN - B
BERNEEER —EREAN T - {MANSEEREE
REIE - RFHRBNES - S - FINES GINEBAILHTY
EBBRRE - RIERRESN - MURIRTRE - EXCERETNE
WEE - ERERENEA - HFZE ST ERRISERITK
BE (RIFER) ENHNERITIRA SR -

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY EAX K EEEF
ANNUAL REPORT 2021/ 22 BFRE

®



GOVERNANCE REPORT

EAlRE

Reward Strategy
RC reviewed the consultancy study report on the design of a performance-

based incentive plan with key concepts for senior executive roles. With
due consideration of the current financial situation of the Authority and the
focus shift of the organisation structure to drive operational excellence
and financial sustainability, RC endorsed the proposed introduction of
the performance-based incentive plan to replace the current contract-
end gratuity for senior executive roles which have revenue-generating
accountability.

Pay Review
RC reviewed the latest development of the pay review exercise for WKCDA

and recommended to the Board the proposed way forward on the annual
pay review for 2022.

Human Resources Plan and Staff Cost Budget
RC endorsed the human resources plan and associated staff cost budget
for 2022/23 to 2024/25 for WKCDA.

Appointment, Special Duty Allowance and Gratuity Payments for Senior Executives

BREN R
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RC reviewed and endorsed the appointment and the proposed employment
terms for four senior executive posts and the termination of two senior
executives' employment. RC also endorsed gratuity payment for two senior
executives and a special duty allowance for a senior executive.
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Membership of the Remuneration Committee (2021/22)
MBS G B A EE (2021/22)

CHAIRMAN E/&

Mr Henry FAN Hung-ling, SBS, JP
SEIRERSTAE, SBS, JP
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The Honourable Ronald ARCULLI, GBM, GBS, JP
EERSE, REFIENE, GBS, JP

Ms Winnie TAM Wan-chi, SBS, SC, JP
B2 4rd, SBS,SC, JP

Mr William CHAN Fu-keung, BBS
BRE5R5E4E, BBS

Mr LI Yun-tai
TR

Mrs Eleanor LING LEE Ching-man, SBS, JP
MZFE L L, SBS, JP

Public Officers "B A &

Representative from Home Affairs Bureau

REEBRNAR
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Investment Committee
Key Functions

The key functions of IC are:

* To advise the Board on the Authority's investment objectives,
guidelines and strategies;

e To monitor and oversee the performance of investments made by the
Authority;

* To advise the Board on the selection and appointment of investment
consultants, fund managers and custodians, and to oversee and
monitor their performance;

* To advise the Board on the selection and appointment of financial
advisers on financial matters and to oversee and monitor the
performance of financial advisors;

* Toadvise the Board on the terms and conditions of external borrowings
and to oversee and monitor external borrowings;

* To oversee and monitor the financial and liquidity position of the
Authority and advise the Board on the financial sustainability of the
Authority; and

e To oversee and monitor the implementation of the approved Business
Plan and Corporate Plan.

Summary of Work Done

IC held three meetings during the reporting year. Among the most
significant of its activities, IC deliberated on the following issues.

Reviewing the Proposal for External Borrowing

IC reviewed the key terms and conditions of the proposal for external
borrowing, having regard to the Authority's financial position and cash
flow projection. A working group was formed to support the Authority's
endeavour to achieve the financial close of its debut borrowing.

Reviewing the Proposal for Funding Requirements
IC reviewed the Authority's proposal for funding requirements in the
Business Plan and Corporate Plan in accordance with the financial
framework endorsed by the Executive Committee.

Managing Bank Counterparty Risks
IC oversaw the Authority’'s management of its approved list of banks and
their respective exposure limits.

Maintaining a Highly Liquid Portfolio

In light of the substantial cash flow needed for the WKCD project and the
volatility of the financial markets, IC endorsed an investment strategy
focusing on placements with the Exchange Fund until its maturity and bank
deposits, which could protect capital while offering reasonable returns
and maintaining liquidity for the Authority to deploy funding efficiently for
project development.

Reviewing Investment Strategy and Monitoring Performance

IC reviewed the performance of the Authority's investment portfolio, giving
due consideration to asset allocation, cash flow projections and prevailing
market conditions. IC also endorsed the Authority’s investment strategy
and fund allocation.
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Membership of the Investment Committee (2021/22)
BREZEEMEHE(2021/22)

CHAIRMAN E/&

Mr Benjamin CHA Yiu-chung
BEPELE
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MEMBERS &
Board Members /5

The Honourable Ronald ARCULLI, GBM, GBS, JP
BEBSTA, KEFIENE, GBS, JP

Mr Glenn FOK

Ms Rose LEE Wai-mun, JP
ZE/L T+, JP

Il

Non-Board Members JEEE/F

Mr Leo KUNG Lin-cheng, GBS, JP
AL ESES, GBS, JP

Mr Kevin Anthony WESTLEY, BBS
Z8IB54, BBS

Dr David WONG Yau-kar, GBS, JP (until 5 May 2021)
HREEL (EHE202145H5H)

Public Officers ~\E{A S

Representative from Financial Services and the Treasury
Bureau

MREBREBRNR

Director of Accounting Services or his representative

BHEEERIHARE

Representative from Home Affairs Bureau

REEBRAR
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Audit Committee
Key Functions

The key functions of AC are to consider and advise on financial and audit
matters of the Authority.

Summary of Work Done

AC held six meetings during the reporting year. Representatives of the
external auditor attended two meetings to report and answer questions
about their work. AC considered the external auditor's independence and
noted its confirmation of independence in its audit report in respect of the
Authority’s financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021. AC
also held a private session with the external auditor without the presence
of Management. AC's work during these meetings included approving
the external auditor's audit strategy for the year ended 31 March 2022,
reviewing the financial statements of the Authority, its subsidiaries and M+
Collections Trust for the year ended 31 March 2021 for approval by the
Boards of the Authority and its respective subsidiaries and overseeing risk
management activities.

In the meetings conducted during the reporting year, AC endorsed the audit
strategy and work plan of Internal Audit for 2021/22 and reviewed twelve
reports on internal audits and one report on the advisory review to evaluate
and improve internal controls covering the following areas:

e Hiring of Performing Arts Venue

* Lease Management of Retail, Dining and Entertainment Facilities
* |IT System Development and Implementation Management

*  Procurement Procedures for Capital Projects

*  Project Cost Control - M+ Look Forward Approach

*  Project Cost Control - M+ Look Backward Approach

*  Project Management of the Hong Kong Palace Museum

*  Construction Quality Management of the Lyric Theatre Complex
*  Facilities Management of the Art Park and Associated Facilities

*  Procurement of General Goods and Services

*  Procurement of Artistic Goods and Services/Engagement of Artists
e Corporate Governance — The Board and Committees

*  Management of Overtime Work Compensation

AC also provided advice on the following areas:

* implementation of Control Self-Assessment

* proposed addition of risk management aspect in the terms of reference
of the Budget and Finance Committee under M Plus Museum Limited

* accounting policy on the cost of foundation and basement structure
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Membership of the Audit Committee (2021/22)
EitZEEMERE (2021/22)

CHAIRMAN E/&

Mr Wilson FUNG Ying-wai, MH
HTRIRSTAE, MH
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MEMBERS Rk &

Ir Dr the Honourable LO Wai-Kwok, GBS, MH, JP (until 22 October 2021)
BEFES, GBS, MH, JP ({FHAZE2021410822H)

Mr Clement CHAN Kam-wing, MH, JP
BRERELSE 4, MH, JP

Ms Christine LEUNG Wan-chong
RipEat

Mr LI Kwok-tso, SBS
ZE%ES4, SBS

Dr Carlye TSUI Wai-ling, SBS, JP
TREISEL, SBS, JP

Ms Sandy WONG Hang-yee, JP
=ERL L, P

Mr Raymond WONG Hung-chiu, GBS, JP
=GB, GBS, JP

Mr Franklin YU
ENC AV e
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Public Private Partnership Projects Committee
Key Functions

The key functions of the PPP Projects Committee are to oversee
Public Private Partnership (PPP) projects — including all HOR and RDE
developments procured by way of the BOT method under the Enhanced
Financial Arrangement, from planning, procurement and project
implementation to successful completion of works — carried out by the
Authority, its wholly owned subsidiaries or BOT third-party participants.

Summary of Work Done

During the reporting year, the PPP Projects Committee held three
meetings where it considered and endorsed a number of Management
recommendations for PPP projects. In the 14th meeting held on 13
May 2021, the PPP Projects Committee discussed and reviewed the
development parameters based on the approved high-level HOR (including
RDE) development strategy for submission to the Board for consideration.

During various meetings, the PPP Projects Committee also considered
and endorsed the tender strategy for the Artist Square Towers (AST)
(formerly known as P31, P32 and P34) development package (including
tender programme, key tender terms, tender evaluation criteria and tender
documents), and reviewed the concept design of Zone 2A. Subsequent to
PPP Projects Committee's endorsement, the tender invitation for the AST
Project was launched on 26 November 2021.
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Membership of the Public Private Partnership Projects Committee (2021/22)

ARESFABZEEEMERE (2021/22)

CHAIRMAN E/&

Mr WAN Man-yee, BBS, JP
RSUERSTAE, BBS, JP

MEMBERS &

Mr Henry FAN Hung-ling, SBS, JP
SEIBESE A, SBS, JP

Mr Andy HEI Kao-chiang
RERRSEE

Ms Tennessy HUI Mei-sheung, MH, JP
FFEE L, MH, JP

Ms Yolanda NG Yuen-ting, MH
{RRsEz L, MH

Ms Dee POON Chu-ying
BERRTL

Mr Peter TO, BBS
RS54, BBS

Mrs Betty FUNG CHING Suk-yee, GBS (until 6 June 2021)
Acting Chief Executive Officer, WKCDA

SIEEL L, GBS ((EHAE202146H6H)

AN EEERERITEAER

Mrs Betty FUNG CHING Suk-yee, GBS

Chief Executive Officer, WKCDA (since 15 October 2021)
TSIEMEZ L, GBS

AN EEREITEARS (EHAH20214F10815H#E)

CO-OPTED MEMBERS &/ 2
Mr David AU Ho-cheung
BIEESE

Sr Vincent HO Kui-yip, MH, JP
fAISEZESE 4, MH, JP

Mr Vernon Francis MOORE, BBS
S{&8HES 4. BBS

Mr David TANG Chi-fai (until 31 December 2021)
BREE A ((FEAZE20214128310)

Mr Daniel LAM Chun, SBS, JP (since 29 June 2021)
MWESTAE, SBS, JP ((EHAE202146 H29H#2)

SUBSTITUTE MEMBER Z#iF &

Ms Rose LEE Wai-mun, JP
TRHL L P
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Consultation Panel
Key Functions

CP was established by the Board in accordance with Section 20 of the
WKCDA Ordinance to gather public views on matters relating to the
functions of WKCDA.

CP members represent different segments of the community, thereby
providing CP with diverse knowledge and experience so that it can play a
role as a bridge between WKCDA and the public. CP meetings are open
to the public, and the discussion papers and minutes of the meetings are
available on the West Kowloon Cultural District website.

A Working Group on Youth and Community Engagement (the Working
Group) was set up in December 2014. Its primary objective is to take
forward initiatives to raise awareness of the WKCD project among young
people and the wider community and to devise implementation plans for
these initiatives.

Summary of Work Done

During the reporting year, four CP members were reappointed following the
approval by the WKCDA Board, with effect from 1 March 2022.

CP held one meeting during the reporting year to provide an update on
the development of M+ and the Hong Kong Palace Museum. CP members
were also given a report on the results and key insights of the community
engagement initiatives steered by the Working Group, including Crossover
Lab Initiative and | Go to West Kowloon .

The Working Group held two meetings during the reporting year in which
members offered valuable advice about community engagement, including
the strategy of partnership with NGOs with experience in community
services and capacity for programme development, hence further
enhancing the effectiveness of community programmes of WKCDA.

Before the opening of M+, a visit was arranged for CP members in giving
them a thorough introduction to the museum facilities.
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CHAIRMAN E/&

Mr Ambrose HO, SBS, SC, JP
{AihaEst 4, SBS, SC, JP
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The Honourable Ronald ARCULLI, GBM, GBS, JP
BEBSTA, KEFIENE, GBS, JP

Ms Yolanda NG Yuen-ting, MH
RgEEE L, MH

Mr Henry CHAN Chi-chiu, MH, JP
BRSHBSEAE, MH, JP

Ms Mimi CHEUNG Yee-may, JP
SRR L, JP

Mr Christopher Wicky CHEUNG
RERFEE

Prof Derek COLLINS
LB BT

Ms Anita GIDUMAL
Anita GIDUMALZ

Mr Andy HO Wing-cheong
fAKESEE

Mr Chris IP Ngo-tung, BBS JP
EEHLSEHE, BBS, JP

Mr Henry LAl Hin-wing
FEREESS e

Mr LAM Kin-man
IS4

Dr LAM Miu-ling
MYREL

Prof Lena LEE

Mr Wyborn LEUNG Wai-hong
RIBRFEE

Mr Kyrus SIU King-wai

Mr Jason WONG Chun-tat, JP
=EESSE P
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Commercial Letting Panel
Key Functions

The Commercial Letting Panel (CLP) is responsible for providing advice to
the Authority on matters relating to the strategy and implementation of
commercial leasing covering RDE and other tenants in the District.

Summary of work done

CLP held two meetings during the reporting year.

Further to the endorsement by CLP on commercial strategies for “The Art
of Place Making" for the leasing of commercial spaces at M+ Tower, the
Xiqu Centre, the Nursery Park and HKPM, Expression of Interest (EQI) and
Request for Proposal (RFP) was launched in 2021/22. The leasing proposals
were reviewed and endorsed by the CLP, and subsequently, the leasing was
concluded in Xiqu Centre, Nursery Park and HKPM. In addition, the Authority
leased six storeys of WKCDA Tower to an anchor tenant in December 2021
following the CLP's endorsement and the WKCDA Board's approval of the
leasing proposal.
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CHAIRMAN E/&

Dr the Honourable Allan ZEMAN, GBM, GBS, JP
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Ms Dee POON Chu-ying
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Non-Board Members IEEEFALE

Mr Andrew LAM Siu-lo, JP
WREFEE, JP

The Honourable Victor LO Chung-wing, GBM, GBS, JP
FRIPERSEA, KEFMENE, GBS, JP

Mr Paulo PONG Kin-yee, JP (until 4 January 2022)
REEERRSEAE, P ((EHAZE 202241 H4H)

Mrs Betty FUNG Ching Suk-yee, GBS (until 7 June 2021)
Acting Chief Executive Officer, WKCDA

FHEREZ L, GBS ({EHAE202146A7H)
BAAXLEERESBI TR

Mrs Betty FUNG Ching Suk-yee, GBS (since 15 October 2021 until 23 January 2022)
Chief Executive Officer, WKCDA

JERZ ML, GBS (since 15 October 2021 until 23 January 2022)
BAAXLEERE TR

Ms Wendy GAN Kim-see (since 24 January 2022)

Deputy Chief Executive Officer (District Development), WKCDA
Bt ((EHIE202241 B 24Hi2)
BAAXLEERFBETBHRR (EEERE)

Mr Kenneth WONG (until 29 March 2022)
General Manager, Commercial, WKCDA
EEESE ((FHAE202243H29H)
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SUBSIDIARIES

Functions and Conduct of Business

Five active subsidiaries — M Plus Museum Limited, M Plus Collections
Limited, Hong Kong Palace Museum Limited, West Kowloon Cultural District
Foundation Limited, and Blue Poles Limited — have been established under
WKCDA. The Articles of Association of the subsidiaries define, among other
things, the general powers, authority and modus operandi of the respective
boards. The subsidiaries also generally follow the Standing Orders and
Code of Conduct adopted by the Board in conducting their business.

M Plus Museum Limited
Key Functions

M Plus Museum Limited was incorporated on 14 April 2016 as a wholly
owned subsidiary of WKCDA.

The Board of Directors of M Plus Museum Limited (M+ Board) formulates
the vision and mission, as well as the strategies, policies and guidelines in
relation to museological matters and professional standards of operation
for the museum.

The Acquisitions Committee operates under the M+ Board; its principal
function is to review, approve and make recommendations to the M+ Board
and the WKCDA Board on matters relating to acquisitions by M+.

Summary of Work Done

The M+ Board met four times in the reporting year. At these meetings, the
M+ Board was briefed on the Learning Strategy of M+; the M+ opening
events schedule and communication plan; a high-level overview of M+
sustainability; the key elements and readiness of M+ security control;
and the M+ Key Performance Indicators (KPI) results for 2020/21. The M+
Board was also given an update on the works of its committees (namely
the M+ Budget and Finance Committee (M+BFC) and the M+ Enterprise
and Partnerships Committee (M+EPC)); the handover status of the M+
building; the future ticketed exhibitions of M+ from 2022 to 2024; the Place
of Public Entertainment License for M+ galleries; the new Business Plan
and Corporate Plan approach; the execution of the optional two-year term
of M+ outsourced security management contract for M+; the guidelines on
the M+ Facade content and structure; the achievements to date and the
2022/23 action plan of M+ fundraising; as well as the arrangement for the
2021 annual general meeting of M Plus Museum Limited.
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The M+ Board considered and endorsed or approved various proposals
at its meetings or via paper circulation during the year. These included the
proposal to award the contract for gallery lighting fixtures and systems for
the M+ galleries and display spaces; the temporary use of Level 12 of M+
Tower as WKCD Vision Gallery; the adoption of WKCDA Guidelines for the
Commercial Leasing Process for the florist concession operator within the
retail shop on B1 in M+; the new M+ ticketing structure to extend the waiver
of general admission fee to Mainland and overseas visitors in the first year
after M+ opening; a variation order for extending the existing M+ museum
event and Members Lounge catering services; the Report of the Directors
and the financial statements of M+ for the year ended 31 March 2021; the
2022/23 KPI framework and the Business Plan for 2022/23 and Corporate
Plan for 2022/23 to 2024/25 of M+; the ex-officio membership of the
M+BFC and M+EPC; as well as the amendments to the Standing Orders of
the Acquisitions Committee, the M+EPC and M+BFC. The M+ Board also
adopted the revised Articles of Association of M+ and reviewed the M+
Collections Management Policy.

The M+ Board received regular updates on M+'s business performance and
its ongoing work on Development, reports on the acquisitions made for the
M+ Collections and outgoing loans on the M+ Collections, and the latest
developments of M+, including its programmes and activities as well as the
manpower plan. It also received the annual analysis on the M+ Collections.

During the reporting year, the Acquisitions Committee held three
meetings in which it received regular updates on the acquisition budget
and considered and endorsed or approved acquisition proposals for
the M+ Collections and other acquisition-related issues. Reports on the
acquisitions approved by the Museum Director, M+ and the Acquisitions
Committee were presented to the M+ Board and the WKCDA Board on a
regular basis. The Acquisitions Committee was also given an update on the
M+ Collections roadmap and adopted the revised Standing Orders of the
Committee.
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Membership of the Board of M Plus Museum Limited (2021/22)
M Plus Museum Limited EEERE & ¥ (2021/22)

CHAIRMAN XEF§

The Honourable Victor LO Chung-wing, GBM, GBS, JP (until 31 March 2022)
RIRERSTAE, RESHIENE, GBS, JP ((EAE202243A31H)

VICE-CHAIRMAN EIE/E

Mr Vincent LO Wing-sang, SBS, JP (until 31 March 2022)
FEERAE S, SBS, JP ((EHAE202243H31H)

MEMBERSH&

Mr Benjamin CHA Yiu-chung
BiEhEE

Ms Dee POON Chu-ying
e

Mr WAN Man-yee, BBS, JP
RX &S, BBS, JP

Mr Nick ADAMUS
Nick ADAMUSE4E

Ms Mimi BROWN
BRRELZL

Ms Monique BURGER
JCES e

Mrs Marissa FUNG SHAW
Bt

Mr Roger GARCIA (until 31 March 2022)
=B ((EHAZE202243H31H)

Mr Alan LAU Ka-ming
BIZBRSEE

Ms Wendy LEE
FzEdl &+
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Ms Joan LEUNG Hing-yee
REELL

Prof LO Kai-yin, SBS (until 31 March 2022)
ZERAIFEIR, SBS ((EHAZE 202243 831H)

Mr Daryl NG Win-kong, SBS, JP
EARLSEAE, SBS, JP

Mr David PONG Chun-yee, JP (until 31 March 2022)
FERIR 4, JP (EHAE202243H31H)

Dr Uli SIGG
Bl &riEt

Ms Catherine YEN
EEaZtT

EX-OFFICIO MEMBERS E#A &

Mrs Betty FUNG CHING Suk-yee, GBS (until 7 June 2021)
Acting Chief Executive Officer, WKCDA

FEIEMELZ L, GBS ((EHAE 202146 H7H)
BAAXKEEERERITBRHR

Mrs Betty FUNG CHING Suk-yee, GBS

(since 15 October 2021)

Chief Executive Officer, WKCDA
gL L, GBS ((FHAER2021410A 158iE)
BAAXNVEERBITBHER

Ms Suhanya RAFFEL
Museum Director, M+
BTt
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Membership of the M+ Acquisitions Committee (2021/22)
M+EREEEMERE (2021/22)

CHAIRMAN E/&

The Honourable Victor LO Chung-wing, GBM, GBS, JP (until 31 March 2022)
FRIRERSEE, REEHIENE, GBS, JP ((EAE202243A31H)

GOVERNANCE REPORT

EiARS

VICE CHAIRMAN EIEfE

Mr Vincent LO Wing-sang, SBS, JP (until 31 March 2022)
FEERAE S, SBS, JP (1EHAZE20224F3F31H)

MEMBERS X &

Ms Mimi BROWN
BEEEZL

Ms Wendy LEE
FlzEdl 2+

Prof LO Kai-yin, SBS (until 31 March 2022)
ZERNIHUR, SBS (EHAZE202243831H)

Mr David PONG Chun-yee, JP (until 31 March 2022)
FERIR A, JP ({EHAE202243H31H)

Dr Uli SIGG
Bl FriEt

Non-M+ Board Members JEM+

Ms Claire HSU Man-kai (until 31 March 2022)
BN+ ((FEZE202243831H)
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M Plus Collections Limited

Key Functions

M Plus Collections Limited was incorporated on 12 August 2016 as a wholly
owned subsidiary of WKCDA to act as the Trustee of the M+ Collections
Trust (the Trust). Under the Trust Deed made on 28 March 2017 by WKCDA,
M Plus Collections Limited, as the Trustee, holds the legal interest in the
Museum Collections for the benefit of the Hong Kong community. M Plus
Collections Limited has engaged M Plus Museum Limited to manage
the Museum Collections on a day-to-day basis, while M Plus Collections
Limited provides oversight of the Museum Collections through an annual
audit.

Summary of Work Done

The Board of M Plus Collections Limited (M+ Collections Board) held two
meetings during the reporting year. At these meetings, the M+ Collections
Board received regular financial updates and reports on collection activities
including the collection consolidation project and the installation progress
for the M+ opening as well as the online platform of M+. It was also briefed
on the museum security system and structure; M+ collection management
highlights; the key challenges and lessons learnt during M+ opening; and
the arrangement for the 2021 annual general meeting of M Plus Collections
Limited. The M+ Collections Board also approved the Report of the
Directors and financial statements of M Plus Collections Limited for the
year ended 31 March 2021, as well as the Trustee's Report and financial
statements of the Trust for the year ended 31 March 2021.

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY AL B EERF
ANNUAL REPORT 2021/ 22 Bk &

M Plus Collections Limited

FERRAE

EIRFHR2016F8 B 12 H i it A i £ & i /8 2 & M Plus
Collections Limited * B #E % M+ Collections Trust ({53%) HI5%
FEA o RIBEEFIN2017HE3A28HETIIMEE24A » M Plus
Collections Limited{F A3t A B B EBMEAIAEER » X
{REEF BT ERIFIZE o M Plus Collections Limited EZEEEM Plus
Museum Limited B EEMEBENEEEE » WEBFER
BEEY e o

TIFmE

M Plus Collections LimitedZ % /5 (M+ CollectionsE=EF) IR
SFEENETTMREE ° £8 L » M+ CollectionsEZFHEE
EHMBERNERESHERS  SEMHAENERESEIX
HREE  URM+IE_EFE o th4h - M+ CollectionsZEE/F
TMEBIEERT RGNS  MHEREESE ; M+HEERE
B ERRERAIAE P IRERERIARES ; M Plus Collections Limited
2021 FERERAERGMRH ° 1b4h » M+ CollectionsEEF
IMEAZM Plus Collections Limited&iZ2021E3831H 1L 2 FE
NEZRREMMBRET  UREFEE2021F3A31HIEZ
FEENZAARSMMBEERE -



GOVERNANCE REPORT

EiARS

Membership of the Board of M Plus Collections Limited (2021/22)
M Plus Collections Limited EEERE % (2021/22)

CHAIRMAN E/&

Mr Philip TSAI Wing-chung, BBS, JP
KBS, BBS, JP

MEMBERS X &
Mr CHAN Shing-wai
BREESEE

Prof David CLARKE
CIPNCED 63

Mr Davide ERRO
Davide ERRO% 4

Mr Douglas SO Cheung-tak, BBS, JP
EREZBSE4E, BBS, JP
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Hong Kong Palace Museum Limited
Key Functions

Hong Kong Palace Museum Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of
WKCDA. The Board of Directors of the Hong Kong Palace Museum Limited
(the HKPM Board) is responsible for formulating the HKPM's vision and
mission as well as its strategies, policies and guidelines in relation to
curatorial matters, professional standards and operation.

The HKPM aspires to become one of the world's leading cultural institutions
committed to the study and appreciation of Chinese art and culture
while advancing dialogue among world civilisations through international
partnerships. Located at the western tip of the District, with sweeping views
of the city's iconic Victoria Harbour, the museum was opened to the public
in mid-2022. Embracing new curatorial approaches, the museum will offer
a Hong Kong perspective and a global vision, presenting the finest objects
from the Palace Museum and other leading cultural institutions around
the world. Through innovative research and travelling exhibitions, as well
as educational, cultural, and professional exchange programmes, it will
build international partnerships and help position Hong Kong as an East-
meets-West centre for international cultural exchange. The museum is a
collaborative project between WKCDA and the Palace Museum. It is funded
by The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust with a donation of HK$3.5
billion for its establishment, as well as some of the annual exhibitions and
education programmes in 2023-2031.

Summary of Work Done

The HKPM Board held 10 meetings during the reporting year. At these
meetings, it endorsed for approval by the WKCDA Board on the proposal for
the establishment of the HKPM Acquisitions Committee; the sponsorship
proposal for a special exhibition; the proposed budget for the Palace
Museum loan management fee; the amendments to the Articles of
Association of Hong Kong Palace Museum Limited; the review on ticketing
and admission strategy; and an acquisition proposal (donation of objects).

It also endorsed the museum shop and retail strategy; the learning
and engagement strategy; the museum retail strategy; the volunteer
programme; the e-commerce business model; the Business Plan 2022/23
and Corporate Plan 2022/23 to 2024/25; the marketing strategy; and the
friends membership scheme.
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The HKPM Board also discussed the social media strategy; the
membership strategy; the access guidelines and work plan; the security
planning; the stakeholder engagement report; the update on the special
exhibition programme 2022/23; and the public submission: proposed youth
engagement programmes.

It has received information on an overview of the loaned exhibits from the
Palace Museum for the 2022 opening exhibitions; and noted an acquisition
proposal (donation of object).

The HKPM Board approved the procurement proposal and tender award for
phases one and two of exhibition fabrication services as well as multimedia
design, production and installation for the 2022 opening exhibitions; the
request for approval on variation to contract for phase one tender of
exhibition fabrication services for the 2022 opening exhibitions; the brand
visual design; the key performance indicators framework; packing and
transportation services for the Palace Museum loans for the 2022/23
exhibitions; inviting request for proposals and the contract award for book
publishers for the 2022 opening exhibitions; the term of office and standing
orders of the acquisitions committee; the learning and engagement
programme plan from 2022 to 2025; the sponsorship proposal for opening
events, special exhibitions, music and dance performances on Chinese
art and ticketing sponsorship for underprivileged; the procurement of
outsourced visitor services; and two acquisition proposals (donation of
objects).

In addition, the HKPM Board also approved the Report of Directors and
financial statements for 2020/21.
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Membership of the Board of Hong Kong Palace Museum Limited (2021/22)

BENEXEMERRARAEERMEBE (2021/22)

CHAIRMAN E/&

The Honourable Bernard Charnwut CHAN, GBM, GBS, JP
PRE BEE, REFEZNE, GBS, JP

VICE CHAIRMAN B E %

Prof LEE Chack-fan, GBS, JP
IS5 B, GBS, JP

MEMBERS R&

Mr Andy HEI Kao-chiang (since 1 April 2021)
REERSEAE ((EHAH20214F4 A 1HitS)

Ms Yolanda NG Yuen-ting, MH (since 1 April 2021)
RgEE T+, MH ((E#H20214F4 8 10i)

Prof Raymond FUNG Wing-kee, JP
RERERIR, JP

Mrs Nancy Maria LEE CHANG, JP
FsReBE L, JP

Ms Nisa Bernice LEUNG Wing-yu, JP
RFEEFLL, P

Mr LOU Wei
BREE

Prof Harold MOK Kar-leung
EREHIR

Ms Helen SO Hiu-ming (since 1 April 2021)
fREEIR L L ((E8AFR2021 4 B 1 HiR)

The Honourable Robert TANG Ching, GBM, SBS, JP
BRtadeE, REHBE, SBS, JP

Prof Joseph TING Sun-pao, BBS
THEHIR, BBS

Mr TSANG Tak-sing, GBS, JP
BiERSEE, GBS, JP
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MEMBERS (PUBLIC OFFICERS) B & (ABAS)

Mrs Cherry TSE LING Kit-ching, GBS, JP

(until 11 October 2021)

#ERZEL L, GBS, JPEHAE20215F10811H)
Permanent Secretary for Home Affairs
REEBEEENER

Alternate Z##: Ms Kinnie WONG Kit-yee
(until 11 October 2021)
=RIA T (EHE2021410A118)
Deputy Secretary for Home Affairs (2)
REEHEANSER2)

Mr Joe WONG Chi-cho, JP (since 20 October 2021)
EHERSEAE, JP(1EHAER2021410H 20H#2)
Permanent Secretary for Home Affairs
RBEEBEEANER

Alternate Z##: Ms Kinnie WONG Kit-yee
(since 20 October 2021)
2Bt (EEIFR20214E10 A 20Hi2)
Deputy Secretary for Home Affairs (2)
REEBEANSER2)

Mr Vincent LIU Ming-kwong, JP
ZIRRYeoE4E, UP

Director of Leisure and Cultural Services
RERXNVEHEBEER
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Alternate Z+##: Ms Elaine YEUNG Chi-lan, BBS
(until 29 October 2021)
S IERZ L, BBS ((EHEE2021410829H)
Deputy Director of Leisure and Cultural Services (Culture)
RERWEBZERZBR CLL)

Ms Linus FUNG Wai-fan

(since 10 November 2021 until 22 February 2022)
BRIt (EEFR20214E11 B 10B 25202242 H22H)
Deputy Director of Leisure and Cultural Services (Culture)
BRERXNEBERIZR (L)

Ms Eve TAM Mei-yee (since 8 March 2022)

FEEEE ((EHIR2022F3 A 8H L)

Deputy Director of Leisure and Cultural Services (Culture)
BRERXNMEBEAZSR (L)

WKCDA REPRESENTATIVE FFA XV EEBBERE

Mrs Betty FUNG CHING Suk-yee, GBS

SRR L, GBS

Acting Chief Executive Officer, WKCDA (until 7 June 2021)
FEAXKERERBEE TR (FHE202146A70H)

EX-OFFICIO MEMBER &R E

Mrs Betty FUNG CHING Suk-yee, GBS
&L L, GBS

Chief Executive Officer, WKCDA (since 15 October 2021)
FANAXNEEERBTEHEE ((E8AH20214E10R 15H#E)
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West Kowloon Cultural District Foundation Limited
Key Functions

West Kowloon Cultural District Foundation Limited, is a wholly owned
subsidiary of WKCDA. Established on 30 January 2019, it was set up
to raise funds in support of the Authority's charitable activities for the
advancement of education and cultural development for the benefit of the
Hong Kong community. It has obtained charitable status under section 88
of the Inland Revenue Ordinance.

West Kowloon Cultural District Foundation Limited is the primary

governance body for fundraising matters across the Authority. Its key

functions are:

*  To formulate strategies and policies relating to fundraising operations
and associated activities across all areas of WKCDA;

. To ensure professional standards of fundraising operations;

*  Tobe responsible for the receipt and allocation of donated funds; and

*  Toensure that donations are used in accordance with the purposes for
which they are donated.

Summary of Work Done

The Board of West Kowloon Cultural District Foundation Limited approved
the Report of the Directors and financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2021, the sponsorship proposal for special exhibitions and other
events of HKPM, the release of donations to WKCDA, HKPM and M+, as well
as the written resolutions in lieu of the 2021 annual general meeting of the
West Kowloon Cultural District Foundation Limited via circulation of board
papers. No meetings were held during the reporting year.

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY AL B EERF
ANNUAL REPORT 2021/ 22 Bk &

AAXKEEESHRAR
FERRAE

AAXLCEESEERAG(E2Y) EEERNEERBA
B o BRI > BiR2019F1H30H » EEAEERNEEEHE
5% BERENULERE  SREEHT - E&TA(RE
1&451) 88 T AR EHEAS -

EceREERENEENIREEEE  EX R

© REERTESENETEFRBREEH TR RECR

TEREFEEIKE |
«  BERFEEEINAE ; Mk
+  ERBEREEENERER o

TiFhEss

EeeEERKHEREERXGE AN ESRESTNEE
20213A31HIENEENMBERE - MREBEFBREX
L EMENSIRBMEMEFENEES - HBBRTERE
B~ EEREXAEYEIM - MERERAXCEESEE
RAB2021FEMEAFAENEEAE - EETEFHNK
HEENIERTEES



GOVERNANCE REPORT

EiARS

Membership of the Board of West Kowloon Cultural District Foundation Limited (2021/22)

BAAXKEREZERARARNEEFRERE (2021/22)

CHAIRMAN E/&

Mr Henry FAN Hung-ling, SBS, JP
SEIRHSEAE, SBS, JP

MEMBERS Rk &

The Honourable Henry TANG Ying-yen, GBM, GBS, JP
FEBEAES T, REFIENE, GBS, JP

The Honourable Bernard Charnwut CHAN, GBM, GBS, JP
BRE BB E, REFIENE, GBS, JP

Dr Peter LAM Kin-ngok, GBS
&S L, GBS

The Honourable Victor LO Chung-wing, GBM, GBS, JP
FRIRERSAE, REENE, GBS, JP

EX-OFFICIO MEMBER E5ARE

Mrs Betty FUNG CHING Suk-yee, GBS

BIEEL L, GBS

Acting Chief Executive Officer, WKCDA (until 7 June 2021)
BAAXKEEERERTRAH (FHE20214687H)

Mrs Betty FUNG CHING Suk-yee, GBS

EREER T, GBS

Chief Executive Officer, WKCDA (since 15 October 2021)
FAAXKEEERDTEERE (EHAHE2021410A 15HIE)
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Blue Poles Limited
Key Functions

Blue Poles Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of WKCDA. It was
incorporated to become the employer of a replacement contractor and
to complete the construction of WKCDA's M+ project in the event that the
original main contractor was unable to complete the works.

The original main contractor's employment under the main works contract
for the M+ project was terminated on 17 August 2018, and Blue Poles
Limited assumed responsibility for the completion of the construction of
the M+ project from 18 August 2018.
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Membership of the Board of Blue Poles Limited (2021/22)
Blue Poles Limited EEFRE % (2021/22)

CHAIRMAN XF§

Mrs Betty FUNG CHING Suk-yee, GBS

BEREL L, GBS

Acting Chief Executive Officer, WKCDA (until 7 June 2021)
AAXLEEERFEBTEES ((EHHE202146H7H)

Mrs Betty FUNG CHING Suk-yee, GBS

FHEREZ L, GBS

Chief Executive Officer, WKCDA (since 15 October 2021)
AAXKEEERBTEGES (EHHHE2021410A158)

MEMBERS Rk &

WKCDA Board Members FEA XV EEREEE
The Honourable Ronald ARCULLI, GBM, GBS, JP
FEELSE, REFBE, GBS, JP

Mr Henry FAN Hung-ling, SBS, JP
SEIRH ST, SBS, JP

Mr WAN Man-yee, BBS, JP
SR &SE4E, BBS, JP

Non-WKCDA Board Members IFEEEEEBRE
The Honourable Victor LO Chung-wing, GBM, GBS, JP
FRIRERSEE, RETENE, GBS, JP

GOVERNANCE REPORT

EiARS

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY A XL B EERE
ANNUAL REPORT 2021 / 22 [A4E4R 4%

@



"\IEPORT OF THE BOARD
EERHEE

The members of the Board are pleased to present the Annual Report,
together with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2022.

West Kowloon Cultural District Authority

Pursuant to the WKCDA Ordinance (Cap. 601) (the WKCDA Ordinance),
which took effect on 11 July 2008, WKCDA was established to develop
West Kowloon into an integrated arts and cultural district.

Board members

The members of the Board since 1 April 2021 and up to 31 March 2022 are
set out on pages 92 to 93.

Principal activities

The functions and objectives of WKCDA are set out in Sections 4(1) and
4(2) of the WKCDA Ordinance. In brief, the principal activities of WKCDA
are planning, developing, operating and maintaining the arts and cultural
facilities, related facilities, and ancillary facilities of the District. Details of the
principal activities of the WKCDA's subsidiaries are set out in note 11 in the
financial statements.

Financial statements

The results of WKCDA and its subsidiaries (the Group) for the year ended 31
March 2022 and the financial position of WKCDA as at that date are set out
in the financial statements on pages 138 to 194.

Transfer to reserves

The Group's deficit for the year of HK$1,559 million (2021: deficit of
HK$869 million) was transferred to reserves. Other movements in reserves
are set out in the statement of changes in equity.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Movements in property, plant and equipment and intangible assets during
the reporting year are set out in notes 12 and 14, respectively, to the
financial statements.

Capital

Details of WKCDA's capital are set out in note 24 to the financial statements.
Upon establishment of the M+ Collections Trust (the Trust) during the year
ended 31 March 2017, WKCDA made a contribution of HK$1,214 million
from its endowment fund to M Plus Collections Limited (a wholly owned
subsidiary of WKCDA) as the Trustee on behalf of the Trust.
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Operation Review

The operation review of WKCDA for the year ended 31 March 2022 is set
outon pages 26 to 72.

Financial summary

A summary of the financial results and of the net assets and equity of the
Group for the last five years is set out on pages 195 to 196.

Indemnity Provisions

Section 40 of the WKCDA Ordinance provides that:

‘No personal liability is incurred by a Board member or a committee member
in respect of anything done, or omitted to be done, by him in good faith
in relation to the performance or purported performance of any function
under this Ordinance (including a function purportedly delegated or sub-
delegated under this Ordinance)'.

Directors liability insurance is in place to protect the Board and committee
members of WKCDA against potential costs or liabilities arising from claims
brought against them.

Board members' interests in contracts

No contract of significance, to which WKCDA, or any of its subsidiaries, was
a party and in which a member of the Board had a material interest, existed
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Management contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of any business of WKCDA were entered into or
existed during the year.

Auditor

The financial statements were audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers,
which was appointed by the Board in September 2020, in accordance with
Section 29 of the WKCDA Ordinance.

On behalf of the Board
ERKREER

Henry TANG Ying-yen, GBM, GBS, JP

[ERESE - KERIEE, GBS, JP

Chairman of the Board of the West Kowloon Cultural District Authority
BAAXCEERREEERIF

Hong Kong, 26 August 2022
&% > 2022488 26H
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“EPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

@
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY
(established in Hong Kong pursuant to

the West Kowloon Cultural District Authority Ordinance)

Opinion
What we have audited

The financial statements of West Kowloon Cultural District Authority (the
“Authority”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”), which are set out on
pages 138 to 194, comprise:

* the consolidated Statement of Financial Position of the Group and the
Statement of Financial Position of the Authority as at 31 March 2022;

* the consolidated Statement of Income and Expenditure and Other
Comprehensive Income of the Group and the Statement of Income and
Expenditure and Other Comprehensive Income of the Authority for the
year then ended;

* the consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity of the Group and
the Statement of Changes in Equity of the Authority for the year then
ended;

* the consolidated Statement of Cash Flows of the Group and the
Statement of Cash Flows of the Authority for the year then ended; and

* the notes to the financial statements, which include significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Group and of the Authority as at 31 March 2022,
and of the Group's and the Authority’'s deficit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the West Kowloon Cultural District Authority Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY (CONTINUED)
(established in Hong Kong pursuant to

the West Kowloon Cultural District Authority Ordinance)

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (‘HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code"), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Other Information

The Authority is responsible for the other information (“Other Information”).
The Other Information obtained at the date of this auditor's report is the
information included in the financial statements of M+ Collections Trust
and our auditor's report thereon, but does not include these financial
statements of the Group and the Authority and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the Other
Information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the Other Information and, in doing so, consider whether the
Other Information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we
obtained prior to the date of this auditor's report, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B ET R S

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY (CONTINUED)
(established in Hong Kong pursuant to

the West Kowloon Cultural District Authority Ordinance)

Responsibilities of the Authority and Those Charged
with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Authority is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the West Kowloon Cultural District Authority Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the Authority determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of the financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Authority is responsible for
assessing the Group's and the Authority's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Authority either
intends to liquidate the Group and the Authority or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with section 29 of the West Kowloon Cultural District Authority Ordinance
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY (CONTINUED)
(established in Hong Kong pursuant to

the West Kowloon Cultural District Authority Ordinance)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements (Continued)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group's and Authority's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the Authority.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Group's and the Authority's
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's and
the Authority's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group or the Authority to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
EERKES SRR
Certified Public Accountants
BT

Hong Kong, 14 June 2022
& 202246148
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BENANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR 3R

STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

WX RE M EN TR
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022
HE2022F3831HILEFE
The Group The Authority
L EEF
2022 2021 2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BETT BT
Income WA ;
Revenue g 4 157,772 43,976 311,826 191,925
Income from placements with SMEESFFUIN
the Exchange Fund 316,142 | 341,823 | 316,142 | 341,823
Bank interest income SRATFIRBA 7.297 | 24976 : 7297 : 24,969
481211 410775 635265 558,717
Expenditure 353 :
Staff costs BIRA 5 ¢ (448,736) ! (390.875) : (293,923) ! (266,894)
Programmes and research MEMARER (92,411) (54,886) (32,725) (23,851)
Other operating expenses Hih&E&ER 9 (662,340) (455,350) (570,768) (411,988)
Netimpairment losses on financial ~ &RIEERIERE
assets $EE 18 = 3 - 477,717) (370,857)
(1203487)  (901,111)  (1,375133)  (1,073,590)
Deficit before depreciation, REHAE. EHH.
amortisation, finance costs BB ]
and income tax PSRz (722,276) | (490,336) (739,868) | (514,873)
Depreciation and amortisation e 12,14
&16 . (835948).  (378088) .  (821070).  (371.817)
Finance costs R A 6 (695) : (330) (692) : (195)
Income tax st 10 | - - - -
Deficit and total comprehensive  FEFFRLMEEE ;
loss for the year i) . (1,558919) | (868,754) | (1,561,630) : (886,885)
The notes on pages 145 to 194 are an integral part of these financial F1452 194 E M R AR MR N BREE S -

statements.
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Non-current assets

Investments in subsidiaries

Property, plant and equipment and
interest in leasehold land

Investment properties

Intangible assets

Right-of-use assets

Current assets

Inventories

Museum collection

Trade and other receivables
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Placements with the Exchange Fund
Bank interest receivables

Cash and bank balances

Current liabilities
Amount due to a subsidiary
Amount due to M+ Collections Trust

Trade and other payables

Deferred income
Lease liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Deferred income

Accrued contract gratuities
Other non-current liabilities

Net assets

FEREBEE

KRB AEZIE

Y2t ~ MBS BRI
HE bl

wEY=

BEE

EREEE

RENEE

FE

EYEERS

B Eticlide
[EMB AR 2 &8
INEEETFR
FEWERITHIR
RERIRITHEER

mEaE
ENNBAR 2 &8

J&{IM+ Collections Trust

2
B 5 RHMERR
RIEWN
HE&H

RENEERE
BERERREBERE

FEhREIEE
I ON
FERH4OTRENE
HitfER#&aE

BESE

11

12
12
14
16

13
17
18
15

19

18

20
21
23
22

23

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MEHRE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

The Group
3|

2022
HK$'000

BT

2021
HK$'000
BT

SRR
AS AT 31 MARCH 2022
®202243H318

The Authority
EEGF
2022
HK$'000
BT

2021
HK$'000
BT

50 50

16737222 15742589 . 16437,177 15719420
1,645,525 1585133 | 1645525 = 1585133
164,581 158,004 | 151,034 158,004

- 1970 - 402
18547,328 = 17487696 . 18233786 = 17,463009
6,451 - 4 -
12,755 28581 : - -
509,465 586,385 505472 | 583,477

- - 222684 88

- 9,005,351 - 9005351

4,493 46 4,493 | 46
8,065,106 486082 | 8,053,190 ! 485,008
8508270 10106445 8785843 10073970
- - 331,548 496,358

364,096 384,477 | 364,096 384,477
2,957,163 2547137 | 2524522 . 2,002,382
170,448 - 152,145 -

- 2,043 | - 433
3,491,707 2933657 = 3372311 . 2883650
5,106,563 7172788 5413532 7,190,320
23653891 24660484 @ 23647318 24,653,329
2,154,576 1591683 . 2154576 1,591,683
26,262 : 37,401 | 20,266 | 27,540
572 - N _
2,181,410 1629084 . 2174842 1619223
. 21,472481 = 23031400 = 21472476 = 23,034,106
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
BMER R (47)

AS AT 31 MARCH 2022
R202243H31H

Equity TS

Capital - Endowment from & -HBRITHE ]
the Government of HKSAR BURFER 24(a) :

Distribution reserve to M+ Collections Trust
M+ Collections Trust ZoTKGEE 24(b) :

Retained profits and other reserves {8235 H J B :

The Group The Authority

E e ] EEF

2022
HK$'000
BETT

2021
HK$'000
BT

2022
HK$'000
BETT

2021
HK$'000
BETTT

21,600,000 | 21600000 | 21,600,000

21,600,000
(12140000 (1,214000)  (1,214000).  (1,214,000)
1086481 | 2645400 | 1086476 : 2648106

. 21472481 23031400 = 21472476 = 23,034,106

The financial statements on pages 138 to 194 were approved by the Board
of the Authority on 14 June 2022 and were signed on its behalf by:

The Honourable Henry TANG Ying-yen, GBM, GBS, JP
BRESE, KEMEE, GBS, JP

Chairman of the Board

EERERE

The notes on pages 145 to 194 are an integral part of these financial
statements.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR RS

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
EmEER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022
BE2022F3831HILEE

Balance at 1 April 2020
Deficit for the year and total

comprehensive loss for
the year

Balance at 31 March 2021

Deficit for the year and total
comprehensive loss for
the year

Balance at 31 March 2022

R202054 81 HRVERR

FEFFRFESERE

120213831 B&EER

FEFRFRFELERE

122022F3H 31 HI4EER

The Group
£E
Capital - Distribution
endowment reserve to
fromthe M+ Collections Retained
Government Trust Profits and
of HKSAR M+ Collections  other reserves
-85 Trust REEFIR Total
T E AR Py a 13 ] HitufkfE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T BT BT
21,600,000 (1,214,000) 3514154 . 23,900,154
- - (868,754) | (868,754)
. 21,600,000 (1,214,000) 2645400 23,031,400
- - (1558,919) . (1.558919)
. 21,600,000 (1,214,000) : 1086481 21,472,481

The notes on pages 145 to 194 are an integral part of these financial

statements.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)
EmEER (7))

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022
HE2022F3831HILEFE

Balance at 1 April 2020
Deficit for the year and total

comprehensive loss for
the year

Balance at 31 March 2021

Deficit for the year and total
comprehensive loss for
the year

Balance at 31 March 2022

R2020F 481 B4R

FERFREESEBE
]

R2021F3831 B4R

FEAFREESHEBE

122022F3H31 HRAEER

The Authority
EEE
Capital - Distribution
endowment reserve to
fromthe M+ Collections Retained
Government Trust Profits and
of HKSAR M+ Collections  other reserves
& —HERR Trust {REREHIR Total
TR EBATER Py i3 HfthfeE #Est
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T BT
21600000 | (1,214,000 3534991 © 23920991
- - (886,885) (886,885)
. 21,600,000 (1,214,000 2,648,106 23,034,106
- - (1561,630) . (1561,630)
. 21,600,000 . (1,214,000 1,086,476 . 21,472,476

The notes on pages 145 to 194 are an integral part of these financial

statements.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MBRR
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
BERER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022
BE2022F3831HILEE
The Group The Authority
S ] EHF
2022 2021 2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT T
Operating activities LEEE
Deficit for the year FERFE (1,558,919) (868,754 (1,561,630) (886,885)
Adjustments for: SEEIER ] E : ]
Net impairment losses on ERIEEREEE : ‘
financial assets P - - 477,717 370,857
Depreciation and amortisation ITEE Rk 835,948 ! 378,088 821,070 : 371,817
Loss on disposal/written off of HE S « BRR N
property, plant and equipment SENEEEEZ SR ] ] ]
and intangible assets 798 | 80,984 : 798 | 80,984
Income from placements with INEEBFRUN
the Exchange Fund i (316,142 (341,823 (316,142) | (341,823)
Bank interest income SRETRISIA (7.297) : (24,976 (7.297) : (24,969)
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEaENEXH 3 330 - 195
Interest expense on bank borrowings  SRITEEFIR X 692 : - 692 | -
Changes in working capital: EEERHE :
Decrease in museum collection SRR 15,826 : 5,227 = -
Increase in inventories FEIEM (6:451) | - @ -
Decreasef/(increase) in trade and B 5 R EAMEKR
other receivables D (50 76,920 | - 78,005 | (7.854)
Increase in net amounts due from e AT 2 58
subsidiaries SEEIE N - - (865,123) : (281,647)
Decrease in amount due to M+ FEfM+ Collections
Collections Trust TrustZ SRR (20,381) : (40,781 (20,381) : (40,781)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 K EARFER G0 434,237 325,280 381,541 | 503,240
Decrease in deferred income BTN (97,283) | (6,556) (115,586) : (6.556)
(Decrease)/increase in other HitdER#a s 3
non-current liabilities CRib) /#80 (10,567) : 23,102 (7.274) : 16,295
Cash used in operations SEFRARS . (652616);  (469879): (1,133614):  (247,127)
Interest paid on lease liabilities HEaEENTIA @3): (330 - (195)
Net cash used in operating activities &EEEIFIANRSEE ¢ (652619):  (470209): (1,133614):  (247,322)
Investing activities BERE
Purchases/construction of property, &, BEYE - BMEX
plant and equipment, investment B B ENER E : :
properties and intangible assets BE @ (1919952): (3040249 (1,451,409) |  (3,266,434)
Donations received from The Hong EREEBEFGRERET
Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust ELRE (@ : 830,624 . 1,104,014 830,624 . 1,104,014
Receipt from placements with the EERINEE ST RRIBER
Exchange Fund upon maturity . 9,321,493 | - 9,321,493 | -
Net receipt from time deposits with FEHRSa=EA 2 EH
original maturities over three months ~ FRRHINHUEEE - 2644530 - 2644524
Interest received BKFIR 2,850 : 44,265 2,850 : 44,265
Net cash generated frominvesting  1&&REIELMNIREFHE
activities ¢ 8235015 ! 752560 i 8,703,558 : 526,369
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MR

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

RERER(E)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022
#E2022453031 HILFE
The Group The Authority
ESe] EER
2022 2021 2022 2021
Note HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
553 BETT BT T BETT BT
Financing activities RYEEED
Payment of principal elements of EEREaEAEED
lease liabilities 27 (2,680) : (23,341) | (1.070) : (17.021)
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITEESHIE : 260,000 : - 260,000 : -
Repayment of bank borrowings HERITEE (260,000) : - (260,000) : -
Interest paid on bank borrowings RITEEEMAIR (692) : - (692) : -
Net cash used in financing activities B EEIFT MRS B4 (3372) (23,341) | (1.762) (17,021)
Netincrease in cash and cash REMREEEYILINEE
equivalents 7,579,024 | 259,010 | 7,568,182 : 262,026
Cash and cash equivalents at FUNREFREEEY :
beginning of year 486,082 227,072 | 485,008 : 222,982
Cash and cash equivalents at FERNRERIRSEEY ] :
end of year 19 | 8,065,106 : 486,082 : 8,053,190 : 485,008
Notes: =g

(@) The cash reimbursement from The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust
("HKJCCT") of HK$831 million (2021: HK$1,104 million), in the form of cash
donation, was received to finance the construction costs of Hong Kong Palace
Museum of HK$875 million (2021: HK$1,349 million) which were included in the
“Purchases/construction of property, plant and equipment, investment properties
and intangible assets".

(b) Major non-cash transactions:

The Group reinvested the income of HK$404 million (2021: HK$318 million)
which was earned from the placements with the Exchange Fund for January to
December 2021. The income was repaid together with the principal amount on
the maturity dates in January 2022 (2021: 2022). Details of the arrangement are
disclosed in note 15.

The notes on pages 145 to 194 are an integral part of these financial
statements.

®
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1 General information

The West Kowloon Cultural District Authority (the “Authority”) and its
subsidiaries are collectively referred to as the “Group” in the financial
statements. The Authority was established as a body corporate in Hong
Kong under the West Kowloon Cultural District Authority Ordinance
(the "WKCDA Ordinance”), Cap. 601, which was enacted on 11 July
2008. The address of the principal office of the Authority is 9/F WKCDA
Tower, West Kowloon Cultural District, 8 Austin Road West, Kowloon,
Hong Kong.

The functions and objectives of the Authority are stipulated in sections
(4)(1) and (4)(2) of the WKCDA Ordinance respectively. In brief, the
principal activities of the Group are the planning, development,
operation and maintenance of the arts and cultural facilities, related
facilities or ancillary facilities of the West Kowloon Cultural District
("WKCD").

The WKCD Development Plan (“DP") was approved by the Chief
Executive-in-Council on 8 January 2013. The approved DP provides a
statutory land use planning framework to guide the development and
redevelopment of land within the WKCD. Subsequently, the Authority
applied for a 15% increase in the total gross floor areas of the WKCD
site under section 16 of the Town Planning Ordinance. The planning
application was approved by the Town Planning Board on 14 November
2014.

As announced in the January 2017 Policy Address, the Government
decided to provide the Authority with an enhanced financial
arrangement by granting it the development rights over all of the hotel/
office/residential (‘HOR") portion of the WKCD. On 28 May 2019, the
Chief Executive in Council decided to grant the site to be known as
"Kowloon Inland Lot No. 11260" (“Lot") to the Authority at a nominal
premium of HK$1,000, free of administrative fee, for a lease term of 50
years subject to the approved basic terms and conditions for the land
grant of the Lot. The Government executed the land grant on 2 April
2020. The land grant enables WKCDA to take forward the development
of the site into an integrated arts and cultural district together with the
HOR development.

As at 31 March 2022, the following arts and cultural facilities were in
operation: Arts Pavilion (opened in 2016), Xiqu Centre and Freespace
(opened in 2019) and M+ Museum and Conservation and Storage
Facility (opened in 2021). The construction of Hong Kong Palace
Museum was completed during the year.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBHWR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBS ERRBIE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022
BZE2022F3A31HILFE

2

Significant accounting policies

(@) Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"),
which include all applicable individual HKFRS, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA"), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and requirements of the
WKCDA Ordinance. The significant accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to both years presented, unless
otherwise stated. The titles of the financial statements have been
updated during the year.

(b) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis,
under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of accounting estimates. It also requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenditure. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the year in
which the estimates are revised if the revisions affect only that year, or
in the year of the revision and future years if the revisions affect both
current and future years.

New standard, amendments, improvements to standards and
interpretation adopted

Amendments to existing standards which are effective in the
current financial year and adopted by the Group

During the year, the Group has adopted the following amendments to
existing standards which may be relevant to the Group's operations and
are effective for accounting periods beginning on 1 April 2021:

Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-related Rent
Concessions
Amendments to HKFRS 4, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKFRS 7, Reform Phase 2
HKFRS 9 and
HKAS 39

The amendments listed above did not have a material impact on the
amounts recognised in the current and prior periods and are not
expected to significantly affect the future periods.
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
(b) Basis of preparation (Continued)
(i) Standards, amendments and interpretations which are not yet effective

New standards, amendments and interpretations to existing
standards which may be relevant to the Group but are not yet
effective and have not been early adopted by the Group

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the following
new standards, amendments and interpretation to existing standards
have been issued but are not yet effective for the year ended 31 March

2022:

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 3¢

Amendments to HKAS 37¢

Annual Improvements Project?
Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 21

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 8¢

Amendments to HKAS 120

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Revised Guideline and
Interpretation®

Revised Guideline and
Interpretation®®

Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before
Intended Use

Business Combinations:
Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets:
Onerous Contracts —
Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

Annual Improvements to
HKFRS Standards
2018-2020

Presentation of Financial
Statements - Disclosure of
Accounting Policies

Presentation of Financial
Statements - Classification of
Liabilities as Current or
Non-current

Accounting Policies, Changes
in Accounting Estimates
and Errors — Definition of
Accounting Estimates

Income Taxes — Deferred
Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

Accounting Guideline 5 Merger
Accounting for Common
Control Combinations

Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(2020) Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification by
the Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause

o Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
@ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
@ No mandatory effective date yet determined but is available for adoption

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the impact of
these standards and amendments, certain of which may be relevant
to the Group's and the Authority’'s operations and may give rise to
changes in disclosures and remeasurement of certain items in the

consolidated financial statements.
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(c) Consolidation

®

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the
date that control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions
between Group companies are eliminated on consolidation. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred asset. When necessary, amounts
reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with the
Group's accounting policies.

In the Authority's Statement of Financial Position, the investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for impairment losses, if
any. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Authority on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

(d) Foreign currency translation

@

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Authority's
subsidiaries are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollar ("HK$"), which is the Authority’s functional and presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year-end exchange rates are recognised in surplus or
deficit.
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2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(e) Property, plant and equipment, investment properties and

(0]

interest in leasehold land
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than assets under construction,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are
included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
are charged to the Statement of Income and Expenditure during the
year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to their estimated
residual values over its estimated useful life as follows:

Buildings

—Building structure 50 years
—Facade 20 years
—External works —softlandscaping ~ 10to 15 years
— External works —hard landscaping 30 years

Leasehold improvements 5to 15 years or the unexpired

lease term, whichever is

shorter
Furniture and equipment
—Building services 20 years
— Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5to 15 years
— Exhibition furniture and fixtures 3to5years
Computer equipment
—ICT Infrastructure 8to 20 years
—ICT equipment 3to8years

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any accumulated
impairment loss. Costs comprise direct costs of construction, such as
materials, direct staff costs, construction overheads, the initial estimate,
where relevant, of the costs of dismantling and removing the items
and restoring the site on which they are located. Capitalisation of these
costs ceases and the asset concerned is transferred to the appropriate
property, plant and equipment and investment properties categories
when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use are completed.

No depreciation is provided for construction in progress until the
construction is completed and the assets are ready for their intended
use.

The gain or loss arising from the retirement or disposal of an item
of property, plant and equipment is the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and is
recognised in the Statement of Income and Expenditure on the date of
retirement or disposal.

(e

(0]

~

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBHWR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MATSERAR P =E

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

#ME202263A31 HILEFE

ERGFBER(R)
YE - BERRE - REVFENHEE D bER

Yz ~ B RERE

BRERTREIN W% BERREBEEEABRRATTERR
FHREEEAIR - RASEEBEREBEEERNES -
RERARBERAEEREEFREZIE B BRIIARKRE
B MREBRNRARE SRR - 7 EFEEEN
IREENER R —REBEE WER) - A EMAEET
REBREHELENFENTABER

TERAEREHE @ BEEYE - BERREORAE
BUTEOfhET AR D e EH AL FHRIEREE

BB

—I1EEEE 504

— SN 204

—INBIIE—EHE 102154

—SNERILAE — IRkt 304

THEERERE SZE1SERFIERM
HEEH
(UBREEBHE)

REREE

—-EFHEE 204F

—fRE - BERRE 5F 154

-BERAXKE 3E5E

B

—EM BRI ERERS 8F 204

—EMREAR R 3E8E

ESERSHER RN EENHGREENERSE
B WS EHEEEE (UER) ©

FERTRERAREMRTREGEANER - RA8ETE
BHEAA MR BEEETAA - TIREEHX - 186
FENERBIRIE B B R TR ERE R A A (AER) - B
BEERNRERSHENBAS T ER ML - £k
EREEFELEAL  UEEIBEENYE - BERR
Bk EmEEs

ERIENHRINE EEARERTETRURERE
EEERERERRRL

BEIHEYE  BMEMREBRBEMEENREHEER
IR HEMR R FHEEIRE SR BESR » WIRRE
U E AR IERIERR

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY EAX K EEEF

ANNUAL REPORT 2021/ 22 B4R &

®



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBHWR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i1

FOI

BEERRMIGE

R THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

HE202243A831HILFE

®

2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(e) Property, plant and equipment, investment properties and

(i)

(iii)

(f)

interest in leasehold land (Continued)
Investment properties

Property that is held to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or
both, and that is not occupied by the Group, is classified as investment

property.

Investment property is carried at cost, including related transaction
costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the
cost of the investment properties over their estimated useful lives.

Subsequent expenditure is included in the asset's carrying amount only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are expensed in the
Statement of Income and Expenditure during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified as
property, plant and equipment, and its carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes.

Interest in leasehold land

On 2 April 2020, the Government executed the land grant for the
site known as “Kowloon Inland Lot No. 11260" to the Authority at a
nominal land premium of HK$1,000 for a lease term of 50 years. The
interest in leasehold land is stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Depreciation is
calculated using the straight-line method over the lease term.

Museum collection

Museum collection acquired by purchase are stated at cost less any
impairment losses while those acquired by donation are stated at
nominal value. Capitalised artworks are not depreciated because they
are deemed to have indefinite lives, but are subject to impairment
reviews where damage or deterioration is reported.
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(g) Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Identifiable
intangible asset with a finite useful life is amortised on a straight-line
basis over its expected useful life as follows:
Computer software, licences and systems 5years

Costs associated with maintaining computer software, licences and
systems are recognised as an expense as incurred. Development costs
that are directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and
unique software and systems controlled by the Group are recognised as
intangible assets where the following criteria are met:

it is technically feasible to complete the software and systems so

that it will be available for use;

— management intends to complete the software and systems and
use or sellit;

— thereis an ability to use or sell the software and systems;

— it can be demonstrated how the software and systems will
generate probable future economic benefits;

— adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete
the development and to use or sell the software and systems are
available; and

— the expenditure attributable to the software and systems during its

development can be reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the software
and systems include employee costs and an appropriate portion of
relevant overheads. Capitalised development costs are recorded as
intangible assets and amortised from the point at which the asset is
ready for use.

No amortisation is provided for computer software, licences and
systems in progress. The estimated useful life of an intangible asset is
reviewed annually.

(9)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBHWR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MATSERAR P =E

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

#ME202263A31 HILEFE

ERGEHEBER(ER)
mEEE
i AEREL R ARE R R R EB AR o

BERRAERFHNTHM BT EECHRANERSE
HIPREAOREET

B - ERENRGR 5%

RIEFBMRG - ERERAGHEBRARELRERSD
X o B EEREEEIEH R A BRI R R 28R
SRR AA « AU TRE  EUERAEY

BE

— BN ERTSERER R ARG B PIER
- EEEERERR AR Z ERSNEE ;

— FHENERIEEZRGRREL ;
— R R ARG AR R A P RE AR

— AR - ERSHERRG R AR Z RSTEAMT « B
HREMER ; K

— HEASIERERERRAREETZHX
ARG RRRNEERABIEE THRANEE LEIRIE

FRERX FUEAUMES - EERUHNREREEHK
AR EE - WEREE P RR R -

R EMEY - ERERAGAITETHE - BEE
ERMEE AIERFIHREE TR

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY EAX K EEEF

ANNUAL REPORT 2021/ 22 BFRE

@



®

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBHWR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBS ERRBIE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022
BZE2022F3A31HILFE

2
(h)

0]

)

(K)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through surplus or deficit

The Group has designated the placements with the Exchange Fund
under “financial assets at fair value through surplus or deficit” (equivalent
to “fair value through surplus or deficit” under HKFRS 9). The Group
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition,
and such classification depends on the business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

Financial assets at fair value through surplus or deficit are recognised
when and only when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments and on a trade date basis. These financial
assets are initially recognised at fair value and transaction costs are
expensed to the Statement of Income and Expenditure. They are
subsequently carried at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised
in the Statement of Income and Expenditure in the year in which they
arise. These assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows have expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Inventories

Inventories, which principally comprise goods held for resale, are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is calculated using the
weighted average method. Inventory provision is recognised when the
net realisable value from sale of the inventories is estimated to be lower
than the carrying value.

Bank interest receivables, amounts due from subsidiaries
and trade and other receivables

Bank interest receivables, amounts due from subsidiaries and trade
and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter
stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
provision for impairment (see note 2(l)).

Leases

Lessee

All leases with a term of more than 12 months are recognised (i.e.
an asset representing the right to use of the underlying asset and a
liability representing the obligation to make lease payments), unless
the underlying asset is of low value. Both the asset and the liability are
initially measured on a present value basis. Right-of-use assets are
recognised under non-current assets and are measured at cost less
any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses and adjusted
for any remeasurement of the lease liabilities. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the useful life of
the assets and the lease term. Lease liabilities are initially measured at
the present value of unpaid lease payments and subsequently adjusted
by the effect of the interest on and the settlement of the lease liabilities,
and the re-measurement arising from any reassessment of the lease
liabilities or lease modifications.

Lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception
whether each lease is a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease
is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to the ownership of an underlying assets to
the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is classified as an operating
lease. Assets leased under operating leases are included in investment
properties under non-current assets. When a contract contains lease
and non-lease components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to each component on a relative stand-alone selling
price basis. Revenue arising from operating leases is recognised in
accordance with the Group's revenue recognition policies set out in
note 2(p) below.
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

() Impairment of assets

(i) Impairment of financial assets

General approach

Expected Credit Losses (“ECLs") are recognised in two stages. For
credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit
losses that result from default events that are possible within the
next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected
over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of
the default (a lifetime ECL).

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-
looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases,
the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default
when internal or external information indicates that the Group
is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the
Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under
the general approach and they are classified within the following
stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables and
contract assets which apply the simplified approach as detailed
below.

Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs

Stage 1:

Stage 2: Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3: Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting
date (but that are not purchased or originated credit-
impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured at

an amount equal to lifetime ECLs
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(ii)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Impairment of assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

- Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at the end of each reporting period. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to
the debtors and the economic environment.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period to identify indications that the property, plant and
equipment, investment properties, intangible assets and right-of-use
assets may be impaired or an impairment loss previously recognised
no longer exists or may have decreased.

The carrying amount of each item of museum collection is reviewed
where there is an indication of impairment, for example where it has
suffered physical deterioration or breakage or new doubts arise as to
its authenticity.

If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is
estimated. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its net selling price
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where the assets do not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined only for the cash-generating unit which is the
smallest group of assets that includes the asset and generates cash
inflows independently.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a positive change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount and which
results in an increase in the recoverable amount.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the assets’ carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in previous years. Reversals of impairment losses
are credited to the Statement of Income and Expenditure in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(m) Cash and cash equivalents

(n)

(o)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand, and
time deposits with original maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Amount due to a subsidiary, amount due to M+ Collections
Trust, trade and other payables

Amount due to a subsidiary, amount due to M+ Collections Trust, trade
and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter
stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in surplus or deficit
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits. Apart from differences
which arise on initial recognition of assets and liabilities, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised.

2

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBHWR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MATSERAR P =E

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

#ME202263A31 HILEFE

ERGFBER(R)

(m) RERREEEY

(n)

(o)

RERREEEYEERITER RERFEZHE=EA
H Pz EHER c WA RERE R A EMBRBNERS -
MEEESS) 2 ERE(R -

BB AR Z&%E - FE{TM+ Collections TrustZ
2% - EHREMEMRTR

BB AR 2% » FEfIM+ Collections TrustZ £%8
B REMEMRRIIEADEERR  HEUERA=E
ERTERE R AR  IRITRAENEZELTREX
BIFRERANIR ©

FRfSi

AEERSREEAPRENECRELELRG RN
B - AERBENLELERIEE E E A ENE S E R T i
# o BNMREEEM S ER N E T PR RIER
IHE - AAERRRO N EE e E RS S R

=7
at ©

APRERRAFERRREN - REBERSHERER
THEE LEATHREATNEABMRE - i EUE
FERNRIEEFRE

EEREEEHRGED B NNNERRERERE
4 - EREEREEENREEMBREPIIREEERM
BLUEERSBNRERNER - BEREZSEDBAN
HARERREERNARERRTINRES  BRT HEHER
BEEMBEELNERS - TEREREAETREIELE
MIBAE R RINR A LS RRMERAE U EZE IS
IREEFUERNER T2 FHERR o

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY EAX K EEEF

ANNUAL REPORT 2021/ 22 B4R &

®



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBHWR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBS ERRBIE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022
BZE2022F3A31HILFE

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 2 FEEHEEGE)
(p) Revenue and other income (p) W R EL AU

®

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises from the
sale of goods, the provision of services or the use by others of the
Group's assets under leases in the ordinary course of the Group's
business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service is
transferred to the customer, at the amount of promised consideration
to which the Group is expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax
or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Further details of the Group's revenue and other income recognition
policies are as follows:

EHERR - RURBREMTRIBER —MREZEREN
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- Revenue from contracts with customers - EBFR&aHKE
- WKCDA performance programmes — EERFEEHE

Revenue of WKCDA performance programmes is recognised in
the accounting period at a point in time when the programmes
are rendered to the customers.

— Ticketing operation revenue of external hires
Ticketing operation revenue of external hires is recognised in
the accounting period at a point in time when the services are
rendered on the sale of tickets to the customers.

— Sale of goods —retail
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at a point in time
when the Group sells the products to the customers.

— Membership income
Membership income is recognised over time on a straight-line
basis throughout the membership year.

— Facilities management services income
Facilities management services income is recognised over
time when the services are rendered to the tenants.

— Management fee income from subsidiaries

Management fee income is recognised over time when the
services are rendered to the subsidiaries.
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- Revenue and income from other sources — REEMIRRRIE RN
- Sponsorships - EB

Sponsorships are recognised as income when the right to
receive payment is established and when the Group has
complied with the conditions attached to the sponsorships.
Sponsorships that compensate the Group for the purchase
or construction of property, plant and equipment, investment
properties and intangible assets are initially recognised as
deferred income, and then recognised as income in the
Statement of Income and Expenditure over time on a straight-
line basis over the estimated useful lives of the related assets.
Sponsorships that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in the Statement of Income
and Expenditure over time on a systematic basis in the same
periods in which the expenses are incurred.

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY FAh XL B &I
ANNUAL REPORT 2021/ 22 F4E$R &

EBN BRI R B AL 2 IR LU TR SR B8 ST E B
PR RIS 2 R FERR BN » BBIEESEE
WEEVE - BERRE - REVMENBTEEN
HBh - RADFERAERIEWAN - ARRIGAAEEERD
R A A F IR E SRR R PR BN
EEEBENAEANERNES) - @EEREL
HEHERBRAMEEERR SR PER S K
NG



2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(p) Revenue and other income (Continued)

— Revenue and income from other sources (Continued)

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method. For financial assets measured at amortised
cost or FVOCI (recycling) that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount
of the asset. For credit impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying
amount net of loss allowance) of the asset (see note 2(1)(i)).

Changes in fair value of financial assets or liabilities at fair value
through surplus or deficit

Changes in fair value of the placements with the Exchange
Fund which is designated and included as “financial assets or
liabilities at fair value through surplus or deficit”, is recognised as
gain or loss in the Statement of Income and Expenditure in the
year in which they arise.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised
in surplus or deficit in equal instalments over the periods
covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis
is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted
are recognised in surplus or deficit as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals
are recognised as income in the accounting period in which
they are earned.

Donations

Donations are recognised as income when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and when the Group
has complied with the conditions attached to the donations.
Donations that compensate the Group for the purchase or
construction of property, plant and equipment, investment
properties and intangible assets are initially recognised as
deferred income, and then recognised as income in the
Statement of Income and Expenditure over time on a straight-
line basis over the estimated useful lives of the related assets.
Donations that compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognised as income in the Statement of Income and
Expenditure over time on a systematic basis in the same
periods in which the expenses are incurred. Donations that
compensate the Group for the cost of museum collection are
deducted from the carrying amount of the asset.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(g) Contract liabilities

(r)

(s

(t)

-~

Upon entering into a contract with a customer, the Group obtains rights
to receive consideration from the customer and assumes performance
obligations to transfer goods or provide services to the customer. The
combination of those rights and performance obligations gives rise
to a net asset or a net liability depending on the relationship between
the remaining rights and the performance obligations. The contract
is a liability and recognised as contract liabilities if the measure of
the remaining performance obligations exceeds the measure of the
remaining rights.

Employee benefits

Salaries, contract gratuities and annual leave entitlements are accrued
in the year in which the employees render the associated services.

Contributions to Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF") scheme are
charged as expenses on an accrual basis in the year in which the
related employees render the associated services.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation as a result of a past event, when it is probable that the Group
will require an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
to settle the obligation, and when the amount of obligation can be
estimated reliably. Where the effect of time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Deferred income

Deferred income includes (i) sponsorships and monetary donations,
which are recognised as income in the surplus or deficit in accordance
with the terms of the sponsorships and donations; and (ii) government
grants received and receivable by the Group designated for the
construction of foundation and basement structure funded by the
Government, which are recognised as income in the surplus or deficit
on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the related
assets.

(u) Government grants

The cost of foundation and basement structure funded by the
Government is recognised by the Authority as property, plant and
equipment and investment properties in the appropriate category, and
deferred income, as and when the works are substantially completed.
The deferred income is recognised as income in surplus or deficit
over time on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
related assets.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(v) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported
in the Statement of Financial Position where the Group currently has a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts, and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

(w) Related parties

(i)

(ii)

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the
Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control over the Group;
(2) has significant influence over the Group; or
(3) is amember of the key management personnel of the Group.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions
applies:

(1) The entity and the Group are members of the same Company
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others);

(2) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in
(i); or

(3) A person identified in (i)(1) has significant influence over the entity
or is a member of the key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in
their dealings with the entity.
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3

Accounting judgements and estimates

(@) Critical accounting judgements in applying the Group's

(@)

(ii)

accounting policies

Cost allocation between investment properties and property, plant and
equipment

Certain properties have different uses. The relevant cost is attributed
to the different parts of the properties based on cost estimation by
professionally qualified personnel, and the cost of the respective
parts is allocated into investment properties and property, plant and
equipment according to the construction floor area of the respective
uses.

Certain investment properties have costs separately identifiable
from the property, plant and equipment. The relevant cost of the
works is estimated by professionally qualified personnel. The relevant
consultancy and preliminary costs are allocated to the investment
properties on an appropriate allocation basis (such as construction
floor area or works value) as determined by the professionally qualified
personnel.

Cost of foundation and basement structure

On 2 April 2020, the Government of the HKSAR executed the land grant
for the lot of land where the WKCD is situated, except some strata
of land being specified as “Excluded Areas” and not being included
in the land grant, at a nominal land premium of HK$1,000 for a lease
term of 50 years. The leasehold interest is considered to have the
characteristics of land in Hong Kong, and the nominal land premium of
HK$1,000 was recognised as interest in leasehold land in its present
and existing conditions on 2 April 2020.

Subsequent to 2 April 2020, the foundation and basement structure
become fixtures to the land once constructed, and are partly funded by
the Government and partly by the Authority. The cost of the foundation
and basement structure is considered to have been incurred to obtain
future economic benefits of the leasehold interest by enabling the
topside development of the site.
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Accounting judgements and estimates (Continued)

(a) Critical accounting judgements in applying the Group's

(ii)

(iii)

accounting policies (Continued)
Cost of foundation and basement structure (Continued)

For the foundation and basement structure funded by the Government,
the design and construction are entrusted by the Government to the
Authority through entrustment agreements. The relevant cost not
attributable to the Excluded Areas is recognised by the Authority as
property, plant and equipment in the appropriate category as and when
the works are substantially completed.

For the foundation and basement structure funded by the Authority, the
relevant cost is recognised by the Authority as construction in progress
during construction, and transferred to the appropriate category
of property, plant and equipment when the works are substantially
completed.

Estimated useful lives and depreciation of property, plant and
equipment and investment properties

Management estimates the useful lives of property, plant and
equipment and investment properties based on their design lives,
expected usage, wear and tear, technical obsolescence arising from
changes in the market demands or service output of the assets.
Management reviews the estimated useful lives at the end of each
reporting period.

(b) Major sources of estimation uncertainty

(i)

Project provisions

The Group establishes project provisions for the settlement of
estimated claims that may arise due to time delays, additional costs
or other unforeseen circumstances common to major construction
contracts. The claims provisions are estimated based on an assessment
of the Group's liabilities under each contract by professionally qualified
personnel, which may differ from the actual claims settlement.

Government rent and rates

For the tenements which have not been assessed by the Rating
and Valuation Department, the Group has made estimates of the
government rent and rates payable with reference to the rateable
values assessed by professionally qualified personnel. The actual
assessment and valuation basis adopted by the Rating and Valuation
Department may differ from the Group's estimates.

~

(a

(ii)

(iii)

(b)
@)

(i)
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4 Revenue

(a) Disaggregation of revenue

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by major
products or service lines is as follows:

4 s

(a) 73FIeaR
REZERIRBENDINEEESLREAOT

The Group The Authority
£E BEHEE
2022 2021 2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRETIT BT IT BT BT
WKCDA performance EERBRENE
programmes 7,052 2,885 6,997 2,868
Ticketing operation of external ~ ¥14MEFRIGHIN ZREEE
hires 782 135 782 135
Gross rental income iR O 56,912 : 25617 | 51,293 25,617
Facilities management services  sRMEE RIS
income 7,507 3,605 7,507 3,605
Sponsorships =ah 11,010 4942 | 584 : 1334
Membership income ZEIRA 5418 1,657 - -
Donations 188 60,603 ' 2,642 | 51,856 : -
Sale of goods - retail HERR-—TE 3227 | 90 - -
Government subsidies BURF 8 1,225 2,040 | 550 : 1,920
Others Htth 4,036 : 363 | 3,466 | 263
Management fee income from B ABEEEIRAN 5 :
subsidiaries - - 188,791 : 156,183
157,772 | 43976 : 311,826 | 191,925
Note: Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the iR . BTHBBEFEENDELURFEANEEMNIILE -

current year's presentation.
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Revenue (Continued)

(b) Performance obligations

(0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(Vi)

Information about the Group's major performance obligations is
summarised below:

WKCDA performance programmes

The Group operates performing arts programmes. The performance
obligation is satisfied upon rendering of the programmes and payment
in advance is normally required.

Membership income

Membership income is recognised on a straight-line basis throughout
the membership year.

Ticketing operation of external hires

The Group operates ticket sales operation for external hire
performance programmes. The performance obligation is satisfied
upon rendering of the services and the payment of the service fee by
the external hirers is normally offset against the ticketing proceeds
received on their behalves.

Sale of goods - retail

The Group operates a retail shop to sell products, including gifts and
items for the home, clothing and accessories, stationery products, and
art books and exhibition catalogues. The performance obligation is
satisfied upon delivery of the products to customers. Payment of the
transaction price is due immediately.

Facilities management services income

The Group provides commercial property management services to the
tenants. The performance obligation is satisfied upon rendering of the
services and generally deposit is normally required.

Management fee income from subsidiaries

Management fee income represented the recharged costs incurred
by the Authority's supporting functions to support the subsidiaries’
activities. The performance obligation is satisfied upon rendering of the
services and the fee is payable on demand.
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4 s (48)
©) REEHHARREERSNELRRERKERN

4 Revenue (Continued)

(c) Revenue expected to be recognised in the future arising

from contracts with customers in existence at the end of the
reporting period

As at 31 March 2022, the aggregated amount of the transaction
price allocated to the remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied
or partially unsatisfied) under the Group's existing contracts with
customers is HK$9.7 million (2021: HK$10.4 million) (the Authority:
2022: HK$0.1 million 2021: HK$2.6 million). This amount represents
revenue expected to be recognised in the future mainly related to
membership, ticketing services and programmes. The Group will
recognise the expected revenue in future when or as the performance
obligation is completed.

(d) Gross rentalincome

Gross rental income mainly included rental income from leasing of
investment properties and venue hire of arts and cultural facilities.
During the year, HK$56.9 million (2021: HK$25.6 million) (the Authority:
2022: HK$51.3 million, 2021: HK$25.6 million) was recognised in
surplus or deficit in respect of the operating leases, which included
contingent rentals of HK$8.5 million (2021: HK$5.9 million) (the
Authority: 2022: HK$8.5 million, 2021: HK$5.9 million).

(e) Total future minimum lease payments receivable

@

The total future minimum lease payments (excluding contingent rentals)
under non-cancellable operating leases receivable by the Group are as
follows:

Within one year —&FR
After one year but within five years —FREAFN

6

R202253H31H ' RBEEEREEFSNSRERTE
WET (RBITEHDRET) R BEREERITOESET
(20214 : 1,0408E7T) (BER : 20224 : 1088 7T
20214 : 260&E7TT) - WRBERMEERTE - TERD
FNETE MIBHATE R RFERR LSS  SEEAF IR RIEBLIE
{ETER R RERTEHA RS

(d) FRERNIEE

HEWNEETEOERBRENEREREM UL
SHHASENHESIRN - £ - e EREHERRE 45,690
BB (20214 : 25608 E7T) (BER : 20224 : 5,130
BB 20214 : 25608 T) + R EIEHEHEES850
BB (20214 : 5908 87T) (BIEF 1 20224 : 85088
JC » 20214F : 5908 87T) ©

(e) FEMKRIRERIKFAEAEER

SEERBAIHE S EHE 2 R RREEE REERE
THE) 4880 :

The Group
&E

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
52,827 | 14,654
163,820 ! 9,894
216,647 24,548

Within one year —FEN

—FREAFN

After one year but within five years

The Authority
BEE

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETIT BT
52,020 14,654
163,820 ! 9,894
215840 24,548
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5 Staff costs 5 BI/KAE
Staff costs for employees directly hired by the Group and the Authority HEBKEERHEERBENEEUKBEEEFIITHRER
as well as secondees from the Government of HKSAR are as follows: FEANAEZETRANT :

The Group The Authority
£E EEF
2022 2021 2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BT BT
Salaries, contract gratuities and e LS R EAhET)
other benefits 481,298 460,290 330,613 339,577
Contributions to MPF scheme setEEETEIR 11,866 10,491 : 7,738 ! 7,223
Total staff costs STHARE 5 493,164 470781 338,351 346,800
Less: Direct staff costs capitalised i | BN EIEZEETHA&
(note 2(e)) (BitzE2(e) (44,428) (79,906) (44,428) (79,906)
448,736 390875 | 293923 266,894
Representing: &K :
Salaries, contract gratuities and e RMEREMEN ]
other benefits 437,638 381,624 | 286,953 : 260911
Contributions to MPF scheme setEE AR 11,098 9,251 : 6,970 : 5,983
448,736 390875 | 293,923 266,894
6 Finance costs 6 FIEmRE
The Group The Authority
3] EEF
2022 2021 2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT
Interest expense on bank borrowings  $RATEFFI B H 692 - 692 -
Interest expense on lease liabilites ~ FHE&SEHIEXE 3 330 : - 195
695 330 692 195
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7 Board/Committee/Consultation Panel members’
remuneration

The chairman and members of the Board of the Authority, the
Committees and the Consultation Panel of the Authority and the
directors of the Authority's subsidiaries were not entitled to any
remuneration for their services rendered to the Authority or its
subsidiaries, except as below:

— Chief Executive Officer (and during her time as Acting Chief
Executive Officer) is appointed as an ex-officio member of the
Board of the Authority and her remuneration is stated in note 8.

— Museum Director, M+ is appointed as an ex-officio member of the
Board of M Plus Museum Limited and her remuneration is included
in the remuneration disclosure for executive directors in note 8.

8 Remuneration of Senior Executives

Remuneration received and receivable by Senior Executives of the
Group (note) are as follows:

7 BEER 88 FEHEREME

EEREER EERNEZERREHATNIRRMEE -
Uk EBEFNNBARNES @ EREREERHNEN
BB RO WEUEMENE - X T AR

— TR (REHEBETREEE) B EAEER
EERMNERRE - MEMSENHIEES -

- M+EYEREREZEAM Plus Museum LimitedEEEF
HNERRE » MEMEEERH8 TR R EIRE
q:l o
8 BERITHASME
SEENEHITEAS (GER) B WEUR EKE 2 B0 T

Chief Executive

Officer and Acting
Chief Executive Officer Other Senior

TTRHERR Executives Total
EIRTEHER HtSHBITRAS fast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT BRTIT

2022 2022
Salaries and other emoluments  ¥7EM R ELAtEN S 6,671 : 23,687 ! 30,358
Contract gratuities Eyli bl 674 | 2,067 : 2,741
Contributions to MPF scheme RS ETEIHEER 15 14 129
7,360 25,868 33,228

2021 20214
Salaries and other emoluments  F7Eil & ELAth Bl 5,396 : 22,290 27,686
Contract gratuities HomEN 677 : 3371 | 4,048
Contributions to MPF scheme 35 BIHR 12 128 140
6,085 25,789 31,874

Note: s -

(@) During the year, Senior Executives comprise Chief Executive Officer, Deputy
Chief Executive Officer (District Development), Acting Chief Executive
Officer, Chief Corporate Services Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Chief
Projects Officer, Executive Director, Performing Arts, General Counsel,
Museum Director, Hong Kong Palace Museum and Museum Director, M+.
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8 Remuneration of Senior Executives (Continued) 8 BRITHASMS (&)
The remuneration of Senior Executives are shown in the ranges as ESHRITHABZHEEENT
follows:

HK$6,000,001 - HK$6,500,000
HK$5,500,001 - HK$6,000,000
HK$5,000,001 - HK$5,500,000
HK$4,500,001 — HK$5,000,000
HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000
HK$3,500,001 - HK$4,000,000
HK$3,000,001 - HK$3,500,000
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000
HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000
HK$2,000,000 or below

6,000,0017%7T —6,500,000787T
5,500,0017#7T —6,000,00077T
5,000,001#7T —5,500,00047T
4,500,001#7T —5,000,0007T
4,000,001#7T—4,500,0007T
3,500,0017#7T —4,000,00077T
3,000,001#7T —3,500,00047T
2,500,001#7T —3,000,00047T
2,000,001%7T—2,500,000787T
2,000,0008TTH AT

2022 2021
Number of Number of
individuals individuals

N N
1 -

- 2

3 2

1 1

- 1

2 1

1 1

3 2

11 10

9 Other operating expenses

Facilities management and
park operation
Government rent and rates
Information and communications
technology
Marketing and communications
Venue operation
Museum collection management
Consultancy fees
Office and administrative expenses
Legal fees
Recruitment
Operating lease payments
—Museum collection storage
- Office
Auditor's remuneration
Office accommodation
Written off of capital project costs

Reversal of long outstanding accruals #[aRHAAFEETIRER

Others (note (a))

9 Hfth&EEHR
The Group The Authority
&5 BEEE
2022 2021 2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT BT T BT BT IT
HEEERNEEE
209,475 111,306 180,310 104,877
HORE K Z 78,119 86,095 78,119 86,095
Bl REARE
77,657 50,169 77,657 50,169
TiGHEERER 45,753 32,226 45,774 32,226
SHhEE 36,476 15,555 20,366 10,462
B e R ETE 35,420 20,155 - -
FERER 31,468 14,369 29,740 11,193
MAEFTBER 18,780 14,503 18,780 14,503
EEER 17,364 11,053 17,364 11,053
Er2)ie 10,876 9,283 10,876 9,283
&EHEER
— SR SRR 4,158 8,634 - -
—WNE - 109 - 109
I ERTEN 800 893 800 893
WIS 695 11,264 695 11,264
TS EATE B BRA - 80,963 - 80,963
- (42,103) - (38,818)
Hith (327 (@) 95,299 30,876 90,287 27,716
662,340 455,350 570,768 411,988
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#E202263A31 BILEE

9

Other operating expenses (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

(b)

Other expenses mainly included cost of hired services, training and
development, other administrative expenses and accrued interest in relation
to the performance bond from AIG (note 26) for the year.

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the
current year's presentation.

10 Taxation

(@) Pursuant to section 41(1) of the WKCDA Ordinance, the Authority

is exempt from taxation under the Inland Revenue Ordinance,
Cap. 112. Pursuant to section 41(2) of the WKCDA Ordinance, the
Authority is also exempt from stamp duty under the Stamp Duty
Ordinance, Cap. 117 in respect of any instrument relating to (a) the
conveyance of any immovable property under which the beneficial
interest of the property passes by way of gift to the Authority; or
(b) the transfer of any stock within the meaning of the Stamp Duty
Ordinance, under which the beneficial interest of the stock passes
by way of gift to the Authority.

(b) The subsidiaries of the Group have not recognised deferred tax

assets arising from cumulative tax losses of HK$1,654 million
(2021: HK$1,050 million) as it is not probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the tax losses to be utilised in the
foreseeable future. The tax losses do not expire under current tax
legislation.

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY AAA XK B EEF
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11 Investments in subsidiaries
As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, the principal subsidiaries of the Group

comprise:

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR RS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MBS ERRBIE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022
BE2022F3831HILEE

11 RBARZI%E

2022 %20214%3A31H » EENEENBLAREHE :

Principal Activities

EERE

M Plus Museum Limited

M Plus Collections Limited

Blue Poles Limited

Hong Kong Palace Museum
Limited
BERE XM IEYERRAR

West Kowloon Cultural District
Foundation Limited

BAAXKEEEEERAR

Effective

Interest

Directly Held

by the

Authority

and the Group

Place of Incorporation EHEEHRER

and Operations HERFEN

SRR R EE MR, R

Hong Kong 100%
0

Hong Kong 100%
0

Hong Kong 100%
aE

Hong Kong 100%
5

Hong Kong 100%
5

To plan, design, operate, manage, maintain and
otherwise deal with the arts and cultural facilities
and related or ancillary facilities of the M+ Museum
A 5RET - BE - B - ERIMEMTRE
M-+ BB RIS I EATRR IE K AR RS R =8

To act as the Trustee of M+ Collections Trust (the
“Trust") under the terms of the Trust Deed and
hold the legal interest in the museum collection of
the M+ Museum

RIBEFERLINERIEAM+ Collections Trust (M5
FNNZFEA  RFEM+HEYE 2 1H YRR RN
EERET

To execute the main work contract entrusted by
the Authority
BTEERETNETIESN

To carry out activities to prepare for the opening
and subsequent operation of the Hong Kong
Palace Museum
ETEENEX L EYENHEESHENHRZEE
IfE

To formulate strategies, policies and guidelines
in relation to the operations of fundraising and
related activities

BEARERERESFIZTHR - BERIIESI

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY AV B ETEF
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AR R
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MBS ERRBIE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022
HE2022F3831HILEFE

12 Y15 ~ BB RRE - REYFENEE DitiEn

12 Property, plant and equipment, investment properties
and interest in leasehold land

The Group
£0
Property, plant and equipment and interest in leasehold land
Y%, BERAFENEE LIRS
Leasehold
improvements,
Furniture &
Equipment &
Motor Vehicles
(note (a)) Construction Investment
s Buildings in progress Properties
i, AR (note (b)) Computer (note(c)) Interestin (note(e))
HisfseE & Equipment HEIE  leaseholdland Sub-total bt Total
(L) (£ (o)) Bl (0  EEDHER Izt (#(e) @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT ik AMTT AMIT BT BRI BRI BRI
2022 2022
Cost A
A1 April 2021 R20214A10 5,588,411 6,905,478 305,086 3,565,456 1 16,364,432 1,636,153 18,000,585
Addtions g 107,669 - 31,699 1,698,168 - 1,837,536 - 1837536
Reclassitication B 163,140 (163,140) - - - - - -
Transfers note d) E Rl 1,736,581 1233912 71428 (3,179,590) - (137,669) 137,669 -
Disposal/Write off HE /3 (11,085) = (1403) = = (12,468) = (12468)
At31March 2022 R202253A310 7,584,736 7,976,250 406,810 2,084,034 1 18,051,831 1773822 19,825,653
Accumulated depreciation  BFHTE
A1 April 2021 R021%4818 296,071 253,506 72,266 - - 621843 51,020 672,863
Charge for the year EpiE 4012713 260059 43120 - - 704452 nan 781,729
Reclassffication Exipi] 95,250 (95,250) - - - - - -
Disposal/Wite off HE /G (10283) - (1.403) - - (11,686) - (11,686)
At31March 2022 R20223A318 782311 418315 113,983 - - 1,314,609 128297 1442906
Net ook value IREHE
At31March 2022 R202253A318 6,802,425 7,557,935 292821 2,084,034 1 16,737,222 1,645,525 18,382,747
2021 2021
Cost A
At 1 April 2020 R2020%54818 292875 5002901 158,230 9,440,707 - 14894713 - 14894713
Addtions g 4,268 - - 3193996 1 3,198,265 - 3198265
Reclassification iR 1186128 (1676575) (627) - - (491,074) 491074 -
Transfers note d) SRR 4,116,569 3579152 147483 (8988,283) - (1,145079) 1,145079 -
Disposal/Wite off e/ (11429) - - (80.964) - 92393 - (92399)
At31March 2021 R021%£36318 5588411 6,905478 305,086 3565456 1 16364432 1,636,153 18,000,585
Accumulated depreciation ~ B3HiTE
A1 April 2020 R202054518 86,603 242860 40114 - - 369577 - 369577
Charge forthe year ENITE 158681 99,080 32049 - - 290010 24,685 314,695
Reclassffication ENE 62,196 (88434) 97) - - (26335) 26335 -
Disposal/Witg off HE /2 (11.409) - - - - (11.409) - (11.409)
At31March 2021 R202153A310 296071 253,506 72,266 - - 621843 51,020 672863
Net book valug IREE
At31March2021 R202153A310 5292340 6,651972 232820 3565456 1 15742589 1585133 17321722

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY FAAX L EEEF
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12 Property, plant and equipment, investment properties
and interest in leasehold land (Continued)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MEBHR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBS ERRBIE

The Authority
EER
Property, plantand equipment and interest n leasehold land
W%, BERARENHEE DR
Leasehold
improvements,
Furniture &
Equipment &
Motor Vehicles
(note (a)) Construction Investment
e Buildings inprogress Properties
&, HAR (note (o) Computer (note(c)) Interestin (note(e))
HiEiRE L Equipment #EBIE  leascholdland Sub-total fEnE Total
(sH(a) (&#(o) Bkt (o)  AEHbER It (&#(e)) &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT AMTT AR BT BRI AMIT ARIT ik
2022 2022
Cost 773
At1 April 2021 R20214A10 5588411 6,905,478 305,086 3,542,287 1 16,341,263 1,636,153 17977416
Addtions g 35,267 - 18,458 1494823 - 1,548,548 - 1548548
Reclassification Ex 163,140 (163,140) - - - - - -
Transfers (note (c) ER(ER) 1626022 1233912 71428 (3,069,031) - (137,669) 137,669 -
Disposal/Wrie off HE /3 (11,065) = (1,403) = - (12468) = (12468)
At31March 2022 R202253A31H 7401775 7,976,250 393,569 1,968,079 1 17,139,674 1773822 19,513,496
Accumulated depreciation  B3HE
At 1 April 2021 R02154R18 206,071 253,506 72,266 - - 621,843 51,020 672,863
Charge forthe year FNHTE 390,264 260,059 42017 - - 692,340 7121 769617
Reclassification EZiyi ] 95,250 (95,250) - - - - - -
Disposal/Write off HE (10283) - (1.403) - - (11,686) - (11,686)
At31 March 2022 R2022%3E318 771302 418315 112880 - - 1302497 128297 1430794
Net book value REHE
At31March 2022 R202253A310 6,630473 7,557,935 280,689 1,968,079 1 16,437,177 1,645,525 18,082,702
2021 2021
Cost 7.8
At 1 April 2020 A202054R18 292875 5002901 158,230 9,440,707 - 14894713 - 14894713
Additions o 4268 - - 3170827 1 317509 - 3,175,006
Reclassification Eing 1,186,128 (1676575) (627) - - (491,074) 491074 -
Transfers (note (d) EG) 4116569 3579,152 147483 (8983283) - (1145079) 1145079 -
Disposal/Wite off e /HH (11429 - - (80964) - (92393) - 92393)
At31March 2021 R021%536310 5588411 6905478 305,086 3542281 1 16341263 1636153 17977416
Accumulated depreciation ~ B3HE
At 1 April 2020 A202054F18 86,603 242860 40,114 - - 369577 - 369577
Charge for the year FRifE 158,681 99,80 32249 - - 290010 24685 314695
Reclassification B 62196 (88434) (97) - - 26,335) 26335 -
Disposal/Wite off HE /2 (11,409) - - - - (11409) - (11409
At31March 2021 R021%53F310 206071 253,506 72,266 - - 621,843 51020 672863
Net ook value REHE
At31March 2021 R202153A310 5292340 6651972 232820 3542287 1 15719420 1585133 17,304,553

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022
BE2022F3831HILEE

12 Y% - BERRE - REVFENHE L R
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

#E202263A31 HILFE

12 Property, plant and equipment, investment properties
and interest in leasehold land (Continued)

Notes:

(@) Leasehold improvements, furniture, equipment & motor vehicles included
building services (such as mechanical, electrical and plumbing installations),
theatrical equipment, museum equipment, office furniture and equipment,
fitting out, etc.

(b) The buildings include Art Pavilion, Xiqu Centre, Art Park, Freespace, M+
Museum, Conservation and Storage Facility, WKCDA Tower, Hong Kong
Palace Museum ("HKPM"), district cooling system sub-plant room, carpark
and waterfront promenade.

(c) The net book value of construction in progress includes mainly the costs
incurred for the design and construction of the Lyric Theatre Complex & its
extended basement.

(d) The transfer from construction in progress to the appropriate categories
of the property, plant and equipment during the year ended 31 March 2022
mainly represented the design and construction costs of HKPM, which
achieved practical completion during the financial year ended 31 March
2022.

(e) Investment properties represented properties held for rental embedded in
the arts and cultural facilities and Art Park. The investment property is stated
at cost net of accumulated depreciation and impairment losses with fair
value disclosed for reference purpose.

The Group engaged an independent firm of surveyors, Multiple Surveyors
& Consultants (“the valuer”), to value its investment property for disclosure
purposes. The fair value of the Group's investment properties is determined
by the Income Approach. Under the Income Approach, the existing rental
income from all lettable space of the investment properties is capitalised for
their respective unexpired terms of contractual tenancies. Upon reversion
at the expiry of an existing tenancy, each space is assumed to be let at the
market rent at the reporting date, and vacant units, if any, are assumed to
be let at market rents at the reporting date, both of which are capitalised
at the market yield as expected by investors for this type of property.
Due consideration has been given for the assignment restrictions on the
investment properties under valuation. The summation of the capitalised
value as appropriately deferred provide the fair value of the investment
property. As at 31 March 2022, the fair value of the Group's investment
properties amounted to HK$4.6 billion.

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY AAA XK B EEF
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBRR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EARSERARME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022
HZE202253831HILEE
13 Museum collection 13 B R m
The Group The Authority
£H EEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRTIT BT T
2022 20224
Cost 2%
At 1 April 2021 1202148 1H 28,581 : -
Additions e 4,516 -
Assignment R (© (20,342) -
At31 March 2022 720224E3A318 12,755 -
Net book value IRERE
At 31 March 2022 14202243A31H 12,755 : -
2021 20214
Cost 2%: N
At 1 April 2020 1202044818 33,808 ! -
Additions e 35,554 | -
Assignment iR (© (40,781) | -
At31 March 2021 12021438318 28581 | -
Net book value IREFE
At31 March 2021 1R202143H31H 28581 | -
Notes: 5338
(@) Pursuant to a Deed of Declaration of Trust dated 28 March 2017 signed (a) 1RIZEEF M Plus Collections Limited ("2 5E A 1) 1

between the Authority and M Plus Collections Limited (the “Trustee”), the 20174E3H28HETIIMS B AL  [FFEERMI » B

Trust was established for the following objectives and purposes: EMENT

() the development of culture with an emphasis on the development ) #EEXHEE TUERRBXHUREAEZY &
of contemporary visual culture for the benefit of the Hong Kong BHEZE;
community;

(i) the advancement of learning and education anywhere in the world; and (i) (REHRZMWHNETNEE ; &

(i) the Trustee shall hold the legal interest in the museum collection (i) ZFEABHEEYEBRRNEEED  MELTEARE
whereas the Trust shall hold the beneficial ownership of the museum B ENFEMSE Y ERRN B
collection for the benefit of the Hong Kong community.

M Plus Collections Limited was appointed as the Trustee of the Trust in M Plus Collections Limitedi¥20174E3 B EZEAEFEMNZ

March 2017. A

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY BA XL EEEF
ANNUAL REPORT 2021 / 22 A4k



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBHWR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR RAR b =E

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

#E202263A31 BILEE

13 Museum collection (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

()

(d)

(€)

(f)

The Group's museum collection included acquisitions by way of monetary
and non-monetary donations. The total value of approved donations as at
31 March 2022 was HK$1.45 billion (2021: HK$1.43 billion) for M+ Museum
of which $7 million (2021: HK$nil) has yet to complete the accessioning; and
HK$0.47 billion (2021: HK$nil) for Hong Kong Palace Museum with the full
amount yet to complete the accessioning.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, pursuant to deeds of assignment
entered into between the Authority, M Plus Museum Limited and the Trustee,
the Authority and M Plus Museum Limited assigned the legal interest in
part of the museum collection, which were acquired by purchases with
the aggregated carrying amount of HK$20.3 million (the Authority: HK$nil)
(2021: HK$40.8 million (the Authority: HK$nil)), at a consideration of the same
amount to the Trustee to hold on behalf of the Trust, the beneficial owner
of the museum collection. In addition, pursuant to deeds of assignment of
donated works entered into between the Authority, M Plus Museum Limited
and the Trustee, the Authority and M Plus Museum Limited gifted the legal
interest in part of the museum collection, which were acquired by donations
with the carrying amounts stated at nominal value, to the Trustee to hold on
behalf of the Trust.

No impairment loss was recognised during the years ended 31 March 2021
and 2022 as the Group considered there is no impairment indicator.

The balance of the museum collection at 31 March 2022 represents museum
collection pending for assignment to the Trust.

The Group has classified the museum collection as current assets on the
basis that the Group is required to assign the legal interest in the museum
collection to the Trustee.

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY AAA XK B EEF
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14 Intangible assets

2022

Cost
At 1 April 2021
Additions
Transfers
Disposal

At 31 March 2022

Accumulated amortisation
At 1 April 2021
Charge for the year
Disposal

At 31 March 2022

Net book value
At 31 March 2022

2021

Cost
At 1 April 2020
Additions
Transfers

At 31 March 2021

Accumulated amortisation
At 1 April 2020
Charge for the year

At 31 March 2021

Net book value
At 31 March 2021

20224F

5%
MR2021F4H81H
wE
EETH
HE

R202243H31H

HeHy
R2021F4H81H
FEPiEEY
HE

R202243H31H

IRELH{E
1120224F3R31H

20214

2%
112020548 1H
e
EEd

#2021F3H31H
Rty

2020F4H1H

FEpuiEey

R202143H31H

IRELR{E
R202143H31H

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR RS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBS ERRBIE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022
BE2022F3831HILEE

14 BREE
The Group
&m

Computer

software,

Computer licences and

software, systems in

licences and progress

systems R
RS EREERAF Total
EFER R SEFATER R4 4ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETIT BETT BT
248594 30714 279,308
- 58,205 58,205
41,137 | 41,137) -
(50) - (50)
289,681 | 47,782 337,463
121,304 - 121,304
51,612 - 51,612
(34) - (34)
172,882 - 172,882
116,799 47,782 164,581
185,760 | 56,144 241,904
- 37,404 | 37,404
62,834 (62,834) | -
248594 30714 279,308
80,521 - 80,521
40,783 : - 40,783
121,304 - 121,304
127,290 30714 158,004
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MBS ERRBIE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022
HE2022F3831HILEFE

14 EREE (&)

14 Intangible assets (Continued)

The Authority
BEEE
Computer
software,
Computer licences and
software, systemsin
licences and progress
systems ESEEL )
AR BREERE. Total
(EFRERRL EFRERRG a5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT
2022 20225
Cost 3%
At 1 April 2021 R2021F481H 248,594 : 30,714 : 279,308
Additions E - 43,460 43,460
Transfers et 26,751 (26,751) -
Disposal HE (50) - (50)
At31 March 2022 1202243H318 2752905 47,423 322,718
Accumulated amortisation FsHE
At 1 April 2021 R2021F4H81H 121,304 - 121,304
Charge for the year Py 50,414 | - 50,414
Disposal HE (34) = (34)
At 31 March 2022 1202243 H31H 171,684 - 171,684
Net book value IREFE
At 31 March 2022 1£202243A31H 103,611 | 47,423 | 151,034
2021 20215
Cost 523
At 1 April 2020 1202054818 185,760 | 56,144 | 241,904
Additions wE - 37,404 | 37,404
Transfers i 62,834 (62,834) | -
At31 March 2021 12021438318 248594 30714 279,308
Accumulated amortisation Sty
At 1 April 2020 R2020F4H81H 80,521 - 80,521
Charge for the year FE Y 40,783 | - 40,783
At 31 March 2021 202143H31H 121,304 - 121,304
Netbook value IREFE
At 31 March 2021 1£202143A31H 127,290 30,714 | 158,004

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY FAAX L EEEF
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15 Financial assets at fair value through surplus or
deficit

Placements with the Exchange Fund

Principal amount ¥

Income earned but not withdrawn RIRERRE BB R
at the reporting date =GN ON

Current portion TRENERS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBRR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBS ERRBIE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022
BE2022F3831HILEE

15 UAREEFEREHEESHARBNEMEE

HNERETFMR

The Group and the Authority

SEREER
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BEETIT
- 6,500,000
- 2,505,351
- 9,005,351

The placements, by way of credit facilities entered into between the
Authority and Hong Kong Monetary Authority (“HKMA"), had a term
of six years from the respective dates of placements. Under general
terms, the Group was not able to withdraw the principal amounts before
the maturity dates. The principal amounts of HK$6,500 million together
with the accrued income has been repaid by HKMA in January 2022.

The rate of return on the placements, which was determined annually in
January and payable annually in arrear on 31 December, was calculated
on the basis of the average annual rate of return on the Investment
Portfolio of the Exchange Fund over the past six years or the average
annual yield of three-year Exchange Fund Notes in the previous year
(subject to a minimum of zero percent), whichever is the higher. This
rate has been fixed at 3.7%, 4.7% and 5.6% per annum for January to
December 2020, 2021 and 2022 respectively.

The Group has designated the placements with the Exchange Fund as
“financial assets at fair value through surplus or deficit”. The financial
assets are denominated in HK$.

REEEREFTETHEER ("EERINEERH 73
HERR A8 B R B H65F o BIR—MRIGMS

EEREENREIEHRREEAS - KEFHEN2022F1AR
BATEEREEETTERBEM LA

ERNOSHREREEE1ABEEEREE12A31HEK - O
RERZRINERES MR E A ETEBEFEN T EERED
R SIFHNEERESTE F—EFEENTYEERE
E(U0% A TR) 5HE » LMETPRSEABLE © 20205 »
2021 %2022 F 1 B E12B ZRIRBESFIEEHEE
3.7% ~ 4.7%%5.6% °

SERIERSERIEER UL REEFEEHEHEIA
BENESHEE LEMEEDUBEEHE -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

HE2022F3A31HILFE

16 Right-of-use assets

16 (EREERE

The Group The Authority
£E EEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT HBRTT
2022 20224
Net book value RESE
At 1 April 2021 202154818 1,970 : 402
Additions e 637 : 637
Depreciation e (2,607) (1,039)
At31 March 2022 R202243H31H - -

The Group The Authority
£E BEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BHETIT
2021 20214F
Net book value REFE
At 1 April 2020 202054818 22,800 | 14,962
Additions wE 1,780 | 1,780
Depreciation e (22.610) (16,340)
At31March 2021 R202143831H 1,970 | 402

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY BB XL EEEF
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022
HE202243A31HILEE
17 Trade and other receivables 17 E5 R HMERER
The Group The Authority
| =5
2022 2021 2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETTT BT BT T BT IT
Trade receivables B SR (@ 12,282 7,330 11549 7,324
Amount due from the Government FEINE 425117 B @ BT
of HKSAR ZEFE (b) 418,310 432,346 418,310 432,346
Amount due from The Hong Kong  [EREBBEE QEESR
Jockey Club Charities Trust HEe2 &8 50,738 110,134 48,203 109,405
Other receivables, prepayments  EftfEIGR » FERIRIR R
and deposits e (© 28,135 36,575 27,410 34,402
509,465 586,385 505,472 583,477
Notes: 53
(a) Trade receivables (a) BBREKT

(b)

(c)

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly payments in
advance from tenants, venue hirers, ticket buyers, sponsors, donors and
members; or cash on delivery at the museum shop or members' lounge. The
trade receivables mainly represent amount invoiced to tenants (due and not
yet due). The Group seeks to maintain strict control over the outstanding
receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by management. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing. They are stated net of loss allowance.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for expected credit
losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which requires the use of the lifetime
expected loss for all trade receivables. To measure the expected credit
losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due. The expected credit losses have also
incorporated forward looking information.

The recoverability of the trade receivables was assessed with reference to
the credit status of the debtors, and the expected credit loss as at 31 March
2022 is considered to be minimal.

Amount due from the Government of HKSAR

The Authority entered into several agreements with the Government for
carrying out government entrustment works on its behalf. The Group agreed
with the Government to receive reimbursements from the Government or
entrust some construction works of the Group to offset the balance. They
are unsecured, interest-free and generally due for settlement in the following
month after the work being certified. The expected credit loss is considered
to be minimal.

Other receivables, prepayments and deposits
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits mainly included prepayment

for operating expenses and deposits for office rental and utilities. The
expected credit loss as at 31 March 2022 is considered to be minimal.

SEEZFZENEZHRERZES  HtERE - B
BE - HbE  BEENGESRELAMR  REBVEEE
HEETEARAR - EZBBREERABEFRFHREER
HOE3E (BUEARN R EUER) - SEEEN BRARIEHIH R EIHAME
R - BEAE R R EREEIER - BB
B WRRESIRE BRI o

EEEAE LU EEHBREER)FEIRATREN
TRENE R LR (BRIXERIR ERATE B 5 EGRE
RBEREERE) - AERPEERE  BSRIER
ERBHEGERRSEIRNR B ME - 1o - REBE
EEIRTEMAREIEER, o

BRI RO EESEEHANEERRTE - M
112022537 31 HNTRHE B RAR R B INER -

(b) FEREBRHTRERNZESR

EEREBAIL S0 - UARBAETRRBRNE
LR - EHERFRREESERAAEED X MRIE
FEFABITETE TEETRDURHGER - EHER/E
B REURBREIRERSRBRNOTERZNE
I - RIS B R PR AN

(c) EfthFEKER. RMIRRKRRE

HARKR » BAIRR MRS T EEESEERNEANTIIR
FURMAZEHEMRERE - 1202263831 HIA
HEEEERR BB
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022
HE2022F3831HILEFE

18 Amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries

The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free

18 Bl () B AR 2 &8
e (1) AR 2 ARG - B RIDEARE

and repayable on demand. BE o
The movements of the amounts due from subsidiaries are as follows: FEWFIB AR 2 EE 2 BT :
The Authority
EEE
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT AT T
At1 April #4aB1R 88 35,363
Additions oE 720,655 : 376,363
Assignment of museum collection (note 13) EYEREREE (IE13) (20,342) | (40,781)
Impairment losses (note) TERIE () @771,117) (370,857)
At 31 March MW3A31H 222,684 88
Note:

The Authority recognised impairment losses relating to the current accounts
with subsidiaries that are loss making and there is no reasonable expectation of
repayments from these subsidiaries.

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY BB XL EEEF
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19 Cash and bank balances

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR RS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBS ERRBIE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022
BE2022F3831HILEE

19 RERIRITLHEER

The Group
£E

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000

months or less
Cash at banks and in hand

Cash and bank balances

[REIE A A =B AU Z EHER

Time deposits with original maturities of three

RITERIRE

RERIRITHRR

BT BETTT

7,875,000 479,500

190,106 : 6,582
8,065,106 486,082

The Authority
EEG

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000

months or less
Cash at banks and in hand

Cash and bank balances

Time deposits with original maturities of three  [REIZFR A ={E A kU Z EEAER
RITFERAIRS

RERIRITHRR

BETT BT T

7,875,000 479,500

178,190 5,508
8,053,190 485,008

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY FAAX K B ETE/F
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20 Amount due to M+ Collections Trust

The amount due to M+ Collections Trust is unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.

At 1 April

Amount due from a subsidiary

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment

Assignment of museum collection

At 31 March

R4B1H

FEW BB 2 58
BEYE  BEX

i)

YRR 13

M3A31H

20 fE{IM+ Collections TrustZ£%E

F&ftM+ Collections TrustZ £28 5 HEIKIE « REKIZEBEA

BRFEE o
The Group The Authority
£E BEHEE
2022 2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT BT
384,477 425,258 384,477 425,258
= - (20,342) (40,781)
(39) - (39) -
(20,342) (40,781) - -
364,096 384,477 364,096 384,477

21 Trade and other payables

21 ES REMERMNR

The Group
Trade payables

contracts

entrustment works

and MPF contributions
Accrued contract gratuities

Contract liabilities

Other payables and accruals

Payables and accruals for construction
Payables and accruals for government

Provision for annual leave entitlements

Performance bond from AlG (note 26)

e
BHEMR

BIEEH Z AR ERTIRR

BN R TR Z BN TR ERTIRR

AEENFRERIIRESHR

FERT#RENE
GHAE

EERRIBESRES (EE26)

EMEN SR ERTIRER

46,360 | 24,393
1,554,874 1,579,085
400,314 397,007
22,460 14,497
26,034 10421
9,663 23418
327,455 327,455
570,003 170861
2,957,163 2,547,137

The Authority
Trade payables

contracts

entrustment works

and MPF contributions
Accrued contract gratuities

Contract liabilities

Other payables and accruals

Payables and accruals for construction
Payables and accruals for government

Provision for annual leave entitliements

Performance bond from AIG (note 26)

EEE
BHEMAR

BEEHZ BN EIRR

BN & TR 2 BT ERTIRTR

AEERNERERRRREHR

FEfT4T S
BHEE

SR RIBRIENREE (fiEE26)

HAOEAFURERIRR

20,141 | 14,799
1,223376 1,082,777
400314 397,007
17,528 11515
16,795 6,618
56 15,632
327,455 327,455
518,857 146,579
2,524,522 2,002,382

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY FEAX ¥ B ETEF
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22 Lease liabilities

(@) Amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Position

The Statement of Financial Position shows the following amounts
relating to leases:

The Group £H
Right-of-use assets EREEE
Lease liabilities HEaRE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBRR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBS ERRBIE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022
BE2022F3831HILEE

22 iHEEE
(a) MRBAEIRRRIEDHISEE
MR RERY THRERESE -

2022 2021
HK$'000

BHTIT

HK$'000
AETT

= 1,970

- 4 2,043

The Authority EEF
Right-of-use assets EREEE
Lease liabilities HEaE

2022 2021
HK$'000

BHTIT

HK$'000
BETT

- 402

- 433

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY BA XL EEEF
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HE2022F3831HILEFE

22 Lease liabilities (Continued)

(b) Amounts recognised in the Statement of Income and

Expenditure

The Statement of Income and Expenditure shows the following

amounts relating to leases:

2022 2022¢F

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FERESEREER

Interest expense (included in finance cost) FERX GTARERAN)

Expense relating to short-term leases BRGERATAENX L
(included in other operating expenses) GIA\EMEEERN)

Expense relating to variable lease BRERFTNHEEEN
payments not included in lease liabilities AE#HEERANZ T
(included in Other operating expenses) GIAEMEEERN)

22 HEESE )
(b) FRKZRIERHIREE

W RRBER THERREER |

The
Group

%m
HK$'000

BETT

(2607)

The
Authority
EEF
HK$'000
BETIT

: (1,039)

@ -
(4158) -
(72,707) (72,707)

The
Group

%8
HK$'000
BT

(22,610)

The
Authority
B
HK$'000
BT T

2021 20214

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FEREESETEER

Interest expense (included in finance cost) FERAX GTARERAN)

Expense relating to short-term leases BRI ENX
(included in other operating expenses) GIAEMEEERN)

Expense relating to variable lease BRARGFNHEESREN
payments not included in lease liabilities AEEEERANIH
(included in Other operating expenses) GtAEMEEERN)

. (16,340)

(330) (195)
©743) (109)
(80.085) - (80,085)

The total cash outflow for leases and government rent in 2022 was
HK$8.1 million (2021: HK$33.9 million) (the Authority: HK$2.4 million
(2021: HK$18.9 million)).

~

(c) Variable lease payments

The Government has executed the land grant for the lot of land where
the WKCD is situated for a lease term of 50 years. Government rent
is calculated at 3% of rateable value assessed by the Rating and
Valuation Department. The Group has not included Government rent,
which represents variable lease payments under the land grant, in its
measurement of lease liabilities.

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY BB XL EEEF
ANNUAL REPORT 2021/ 22 A&
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23 Deferred income

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBRR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MATSERAR P =E

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

#ME202263A31 HILEFE

23 IEEIRA

The Group The Authority
5] EHF

2022 2021 2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT BT

Current portion mEED
Sponsorships/donations received B WU, 185 (@) 19,108 - 805 -

Donationincome fromHKJCCT ~ &EEEERERETES
LN (b) 151,340 - 151,340 | -
170,448 - i 152,145 -

Non-current portion EREES

Donationincome fromHKJCCT ~ EBBEGEEETES : :

LN () i 2154576 @ 1591683 | 2,154,576 : 1,591,683
Notes: S

(@)

(b)

Sponsorships/donations received

As at 31 March 2022, deferred income amounted to HK$19.1 million (2021:
Nil) (the Authority: HK$0.8 million, 2021: Nil) represented sponsorship and
monetary donations received by the Group for which the conditions for
income recognition will be met in the following 12 months.

Donation income from HKJCCT

On 29 June 2017, WKCDA signed a Collaborative Agreement with the Palace
Museum to develop the Hong Kong Palace Museum (the "HKPM") at the
WKCD. The design and construction costs of the HKPM are funded by a
donation of HK$3.5 billion from HKJCCT. As at 31 March 2022, HK$2,356
million (2021: HK$1,592 million) was received or receivable from HKJCCT, out
of which HK$50.4 million has been recognised as donation income during
the year upon completion of the construction of HKPM in December 2021.
The balance of the deferred income was HK$2,306 million (2021: $1,592
million).

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY AAX K EEEF

() ElrEE iR

R202243A31H » BEWAA19108 57T (20214 : T
HBIT) (BB : 808 BT 20214 : BHIT) » HEEE
WEIFEB R FEIBE - WA 28 B R E 54

b) EEBRFSREETESRBBA

1201746 A290 » EEFEKREEYRETSERE
ELURBANZEEESENEXEYE(EEHE)) - &8
HENR R ER A E S EEETESM3S
BB TTIBIIENS ° 1R2022F3H31H » 23,5627t (2021
£ 1 15928 7T) ABKSEREEEE TR EETES
HFIE - 50408 BT ER2021FE 128 B BKZIR
THRERAENBEIKN « EER N4 23.06E87T
(20214 : 15.92f=H7T)

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 / 22 A4k

®



®

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBHWR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBS ERRBIE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022
BZE2022F3A31HILFE

24 Capital and reserves

(a) Capital

On 4 July 2008, the Finance Committee of the Legislative Council
of HKSAR approved an upfront endowment of HK$21.6 billion to the
Authority for developing WKCD.

Pursuant to section 22(2) of the WKCDA Ordinance, the Authority
shall (@) manage its finances (including resources) with due care and
diligence; and (b) ensure the financial sustainability of the operation and
management of arts and cultural facilities, related facilities and ancillary
facilities.

(b) Distribution reserve to M+ Collections Trust

In relation to the upfront endowment of HK$21.6 billion, an amount
of HK$1,214 million has been designated for the acquisition of
museum collection. Upon the establishment of the Trust during the
year ended 31 March 2017 (see note 13(a)), the Authority has set up
the distribution reserve to M+ Collections Trust and transferred an
amount of HK$ 1,214 million from the endowment fund, which was held
on behalf of the Trust as the Trust's capital fund, to M Plus Collections
Limited to hold on behalf of the Trust as the Trust's capital fund for the
acquisition of museum collection.

Details of the assignment of museum collection from the Group to the
Trust have been set out in note 13(c).

25 Banking facilities

The Group has uncommitted money market line facilities of HK$2,750
million (2021: HK$1,750 million), of which the Board has set a maximum
drawdown limit of HK$500 million. Interest is payable on amounts
drawn down at a rate related to Hong Kong Inter-bank Offered Rate.
There was no outstanding balance as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March
2021.

On 13 April 2022, the Authority has achieved financial close for a
sustainability-linked term loan and revolving credit facilities for a loan
amount of HK$4 billion and loan tenor of three years. The loan is
unsecured and repayable in full upon maturity. Interest is payable on
amounts drawn down at a rate related to Hong Kong Inter-bank Offered
Rate.

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY AAA XK B EEF
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24 EERfEHE
(a) &

(b

25

L

R2008F7H4H @ EBFITHRELAEVRZEZEAE
AEEFRE—EBIEH216[EB TR

RB(ENFRG)FE2202)F - EEBACUEEHEETSE
HEBNSS  EEAMB(BEER) ; kOFEREEN
EEBM RN - A RER B REEME LR

M+ Collections TrustZ (%

F16EEBITRIEERM S » —£12.14RETNEEERE
ERANRESEYERR ° EETREE2017F3831H1E
FERIME (RHtzE13() © EERBERIIM+ Collections
Trust 2 MR > LR ZERPEE —F1214R%8 T
HNEeE(RREAFEEREANELESR) FMPlus
Collections Limited (R RISEHFEEREENELRAESR) -
FREEEYERm

EEAETEREYERRNFEEHNMEE13(C) -

RITEERH

EEEE] T —IBEE27.50/F%87T (20214 : 17.50(2%7T)
ZIEEAEEETBEERE  HPEERERERSIEN
[REEASESTT - FIBUEBRTRERBIRE X B&ET
& 0 A202243 8310 %20214%E3831 A EXREEER
@ °

2022%4H13H - EERHM—EERESEA0EET - B
H=FNHEERREHNERERNEREESEH
& BRERAEIRAMNRIPHESHEE - AIBUES
RITEREREREXASENE -
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HZE202253831HILEE
26 Capital Commitments 26 BAREE
Commitments in respect of capital expenditures on property, plant and BYE - BERSZE  KREYENBREEESANFERAIA
equipment, investment properties and intangible assets are as follows: EOT :

The Group and the Authority

SEREER
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Contracted but not provided for (note) EELEREE GEHR)
— Property, plant and equipment and —¥% B REREREYE
investment properties 4,435,084 5,814,482
—Intangible assets —EREE 2,616 16,372
4,437,700 | 5,830,854
Authorised but not contracted for BitEEREL
- Property, plant and equipment and —¥% - BB RS EIREYE
investment properties 26,171 370,012
-Intangible assets —EREE 481 5,156
26,652 375,168
Note: 53

As at 31 March 2022, apart from the foregoing, commitments relating to
government entrustment works of HK$3,352 million (2021: HK$1,960.8 million)
were contracted but not provided for.

The Authority terminated the employment of Hsin Chong Construction Company
Limited (“Hsin Chong") under the M+ Main works contract on 17 August 2018.On
24 September 2018, the Authority entered into an entrustment agreement with
its wholly owned subsidiary, Blue Poles Limited to complete the construction of
the M+ Museum project on its behalf, including the novation of subcontracts, the
completion of works entrusted under the M+ Main Works Contracts, etc. Blue
Poles Limited also engaged Gammon Construction Limited as the management
contractor to oversee the completion of works. The works have now been
completed with the Practical Completion Certificate being issued in February
2021 and the Defects Liability Period expired in February 2022. The Authority is
now finalising the total capital project costs for the M+ Museum project and any
additional costs that have been incurred.

Hsin Chong is in liquidation and it was ordered to be wound up by the court
in November 2020. Following the Practical Completion of the M+ Museum
project, there are substantial claims from both sides. The Authority lodged its
proof of debt in the amount of approximately HK$1.8 billion with the provisional
liquidators of Hsin Chong (who were subsequently appointed as liquidators by the
majority of creditors at the creditors’ meeting on 15 June 2021) (“Liquidators”)
for the purpose of voting at the creditors’ meeting. The Liquidators admitted
the Authority's claim at HK$1 for voting purposes. The High Court (by decision
dated 24 November 2021) upheld the Liquidators’ decision. The Authority can still
pursue its proof of debt in the liquidation for its full amount. Its claims may be the
subject matter of an arbitration between the Authority and the Liquidators of Hsin
Chong.

R2022F3A31H  IRTEHRE SN - BRABREE IR ZA
EB{EA33.52E87T (20214 : 19.608(2H7T) EEABKRE
o

EERBR2018FE8A17HREM+IEYEETETRGLRILEE
F#EEERBRAR (&) - R2018F9H24H » BEF
B H 2 &M /AEBlue Poles Limiteds 1M E:T 5% » AKRES
BM+EYEEENEETRE  8FEHENGHNES « K
REM+HEYEEZETEAHRTNIRSE © 1b5h  Blue Poles
Limited N EIE& FIREERAFAEABE BEARY » 8FR
BIRMW5ER - TIREBSEM @ WiR2021F 2 EEERTET
BRE - MREEAER2022528 ER - EEFREHMM+E
YIREIE B AR EANIE B A U RATAEEINR A EI TRIERTE o

WMERIEETER » WiR2020511 B AR ESER © FEM+
EYEEEBREIZE  EAWRHERRE - AT EER
AEEBLRR  BERERESBNA18EETNERERY
HENRRERA (HAERKR2021E6 B 15ANEEZATZ L
WBEEEEARERERA) (TERAN)) - FRALHRFRE
HAREERBNHERNEER1ET - S5 AR (IREN20214F
11 B24HEHARE) HREERARGRE - EERMAIEER
FERAEGEEEBANLHEE HRRSERAEERENS
TEREA Z BREI TS ©
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26 Capital Commitments (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

On 2 April 2020, the High Court gave summary judgement in favour of the
Authority and made an order for AIG Insurance Hong Kong Limited ("AlG") to pay
the full value of the performance bond to WKCDA together with pre and post
judgement interest. On 14 April 2020, the amount of approximately HK$327.5
million was received from AIG (including some HK$30 million interest). However,
AIG appealed against the summary judgement and the Court of Appeal heard
the appeal on 10 September 2021. At the end of the hearing, the Court of Appeal
allowed AIG's appeal with reasons to be handed down. The Authority filed its
Notice of Intended Application for Leave to Appeal and Notice of Motion on 28
September 2021 and 8 October 2021 respectively, with grounds of appeal to be
supplemented upon handing down of the reasons by the Court of Appeal. There is
a further extant (fourth) demand by WKCDA for the full value of the performance

26 EAEIE (B)

=R (8

1202054828 - &FARFEHES IR » HIEEERR - I
EEMSEREGREEBERAF (TEEFRE)) 2EHME
HIRJBETFTEER » WERFGRATNHIREFNE ° 202044
A148 » ERREBX—F43.2758THRUE (835493,000
BATHR) - A ERRRMESHIMRE LR LIRERE
1R2021F9 A 108 7 EFRETIRM ° TERAERE - LIRAR
FIETRR LIRS E - TiISEHER - BB/ RINR202149
A28H#12021F10A8H1ER T B A _LaFET Al HOB AN
BB 0 LIRIERBE LIFAEERERETUEE - BE
BHEBEHRESNSBEERD TE—F (FER)EX - #ZE
202243A31H - HETRIRIFEHIEALLE -

bond. As of 31 March 2022, the dispute with AlG was still on-going.

27 Reconciliation of lease liabilities arising from

financing activities

As at 1 April 2021

Cash flows - principal payment
Acquisition — lease

As at 31 March 2022

Liability from financing activities

R BRI A
*2021F4H1H

RER—FEXN
W —THE

1?202253H31H

27 MEERESNEESERR

The Group
%0

HK$'000

BT

The Authority
BB
HK$'000
BT

2,043 433
(2,680) (1,070)
637

637 :

At 1 April 2020

Cash flows - principal payment
Acquisition —lease

As at 31 March 2021

Liability from financing activities

RIEEEIMERE
122020%4H81H

RER— AT
Wi —HEE

1?202153H31H

The Group
ESE]

HK$'000

BT

23,604

The Authority
BEF
HK$'000
BT

15,674

(23341) | (17,021)
1,780 | 1,780
2,043 433
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28 Material related party transactions

(@) For the purpose of the financial statements, transactions between
the Group and Government departments, agencies or Government
controlled entities, other than those transactions such as the payment
of government rent and rates, fees etc. that arise in the normal dealings
between the Government and the Group, are considered to be related
party transactions. During the year, the Authority provided certain
premises free of charge for the use by M Plus Museum Limited and
Hong Kong Palace Museum Limited. In addition to the balances and
transactions detailed elsewhere in these financial statements, the
Group had the following material transactions with related parties
during the year:

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBRR

NO